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Agenda of the 158th Diocesan Convention

of the Diocese of California
Saturday, October 20, 2007

Time Item- Location
8:00-9:00 am Registration Cathedral Nave

9:00 Call to Order Cathedral Nave
Morning Prayer
Bishop's Address

10:00 Break —Move to Gresham Hall

10:15 Business Meeting Gresham Hall
Report of Committee on Credentials
Secretary's Announcements
Report of Committee on Dispatch of Business
Adoption of Rules of Order
Reading of Amendments to National Church Constitution

10:45 Report of Committee on Nominations
Instruction on the First Ballot
Vote I51 Ballot (Tellers collect ballots at tables)

11:10 2"d Report of the Committee on Resolutions
11:20 Report of the Commission on Marriage and Blessing.
I l :35 Report of the Ethnic & Multicultural Task Force
11:50 Report on Governance Review

Proposed Amendment to Constitution

12:15 pm Lunch Plaza
Hearings on Resolutions (during lunch) Chapter Room
Discussion of Governance Review Chapel of Grace
Discussion of Ethnic &Multicultural Report North Transept
Discussion of Marriage and Blessing Report Indoor Labyrinth
Discussion of Companion Diocese Report Gresham Hall

1:15 pm Reconvene Gresham Hall
Report on 1 5C Ballot, Vote 2"d Ballot

1:35 Treasurer's Report
Report of Program and Budget
Action on Budget &Assessment Formula

2:05 Report of Standing Committee
2:20 Report of Diocesan Council
2:35 Report on Companion Diocese

2:50 Break

3:00 Reconvene Gresham Hail
Results of 2"d Ballot

3:10 3 d̀ Report of Committee on Resolutions
Action on Resolutions

4:30 Courtesy Resolutions
Margaret Wosser Award Presentation
Greetings from Province VIII
Bishop's Appointments &Announcements

4:45 Adjourn
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Bishop's Appointments to Convention Committees
for the 158~h Diocesan Convention

Chancellor
William Orrick

Archivist
Michael Stroup

Committee on Canons
William Orrick, Chair (Chancellor)
Sandy Boone
Paul Burrows
John Eastwood
Rob Gieselmanri
Michael Glass

Committee on Credentials
David Frangquist, ex officio, Chair
Mary Louise Gotthold
Jane Kallgren

Committee on Dispatch of Business
Barbara Bender Breck, Chair
Michael Barlowe
David Frangquist

Committee on Elections
Roulhac Austin, Chair
Mark Henderson
Melissa Ridlon

Committee on Logistics
Roulhac Austin, Chair
Gail Greenwell
Martin Juarez
Kathy Kirkpatrick

. Connie Lam
Carole Jan Lee
Dariiel Simons
Dianne Smith

Committee on Nominations
Martha Kuhlman, Co-chair
Anna McHargue, Co-chair
Ricardo Avila
Ron Culmer
Jan Heglund
Albe Larsen
Helen Sause
Earl Clinton Williams
Warren Wong

Committee on Personnel Practices
Bruce O'Neill, Chair
Bruce Bearden
Christopher Butler
Joan Clerk
Sarah Crawford
Jim Forsyth
David Lawson
Thomas D. Matthews
Jeannie Thomas

Committee on Program and Budget
Jim Forsyth; Chair
Ruth Baney
Peggy Greene
Peter Jensen
Carole Jan Lee
Melissa Ridlon
Sue Thompson, Council President
Mary Jane Wood

Committee on Resolutions
John Kirkley, Chair
Bob Birss
Carolyn Bolton
Shelley Chesley
Kathy Henry
Mrs. E. J. Hilliard
Carol Luther
Sean McConnell
Nigel Renton
Salying Wong

ii

DioCal 004465



Bishop's Appointments to Convention Committees
for the 158~h Diocesan Convention

Commission on Ministry

Class of 2008
Jane Brooks
Martin Juarez
Carl Zachrisson

Class of 2009
Paul Burrows (resigned as of Dec. 31, 2007)
Hailey McKeefry Delmas (for unexpired term)
Georgene Keeler
David Lui

Class of 2010
Pamela Clare Magers
Kenneth Schmidt
Clinton Williams

Class of Z011
Shelley Chesley
,Sally Mancini
Joanne Sanders
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MINUTES
158TH CONVENTION OF THE

EPISCOPAL DIOCESE OF CALIFORNIA
Friday, October 19 and Saturday October 20, 2007

Grace Cathedral
San Francisco, California

The 158 x̀' Convention of the Diocese of California opened with Holy Eucharist iri the nave of
Grace Cathedral at 7:00 p.m. on Friday, October 19, 2007. Bishop Marc Andrus presided and the
sermon was given by Archbishop Njongonkulu Ndungane of South Africa.

The convention continued on Saturday, October 20, 2007 with Morning Prayer beginning at 9:00
a.m. in the nave of Grace Cathedral. Bishop Marc delivered his Address to the Convention
during Morning Prayer.

THE BISHOP'S ADDRESS

"Clear to Our Sources"

"For just as the body is one and has many members, and all the members of the body, though
many, are one body, so it is with Christ. 13For in the one Spirit we were all baptized into one
body Jews or Greeks, slaves or free—and we were all made to drink of one Spirit. "
1 Corinthians 12:12,13

"They that sing as well as they that dance shall say, All my fountains are in thee. "Psalm 87:7

For the last few three nights, as we have been making our way around the Diocese with our
Convention guest, the Most Reverend Njongonkulu Ndungane, the Chinyakare Music and Dance
group performed a Zimbabwean dance, a welcoming dance, using jugs of water balanced on the
heads of vigorously dancing women. The precious water almost all stayed within the jugs, which
were then reverently sat on the floor. Then a young man made a mirroring dance that culminated
with his gratefully drinking from one of the jugs.

When we think of baptism, in water and the spirit, I think we most often envision the water rite, a
washing and immersion of the baptizand. The New Testament points us beyond the water rite of
immersion that signaled repentance, to a deeper, greater aspect of baptism, baptism in the Spirit,
that was as transforming as fire.

A stranger drinking precious water offered in hospitality, and becoming by so doing no longer a
stranger but one known and accepted —this seems to me to express what St. Paul means by the
Body of Christ having all drunk of the same Spirit, Thus, we find a corollary to the baptismal
image of immersion in the drinking of water. One, the immersion, is for repentance, the other,
sharing water, signals transformation of life:
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The transformation of Baptism is the movement from an illusory life of isolation and
independence to a clarity about our existence in mutuality with one another and with all that is
other. Our beautiful individuality is preserved, even enhanced by our consciousness of our
connection to the great web of creation that is our individuality's source, and the fountain of God
that causes all creation to be.

The Episcopal Diocese of California exists within the world of the Bay Area, and as with every
faith community we are in the world but, we pray, not of the world. Because the extreme
individualism of our culture has yielded the rewards of creativity and inventiveness, we see a
cultural feedback loop, reinforcement of the very trait,
individualism, identified as the source of creativity.

It is a fiction, though, that I accomplish anything apart from a great web of creation, to which I
contribute and from which I draw my life. Drinking the shared water of the Spirit signifies the
process of becoming clear to the sources of our lives, first to the many who participate in life
with us, and ultimately to the fountain of all life and creativity, and indeed of individualism
properly understood —God.

Last year I talked at Diocesan Convention about our entering the dance of the Trinity. Returning
to this theme, and extending it, I am reminded of the quotation from Psalm 87, "They that sing
as well as they that dance shall say, All my fountains are in thee. "

As Christians we have, through Baptism, been dis-illusioned about the reality of life. While the
saving act signaled in Baptism is accomplished in Jesus the Christ, Christians are always in the
process of appropriating the gifts of Baptism — we are always being transformed. So, within the
Diocese of California we have attention to our own life, always inviting the Spirit to make us one
in our diversity, always drinking, that is, of the same Spirit. This means resisting again and
again, by resorting to the saving help of the spirit, the world's tendency to see oneself as a
monad, cut off and independent of others, always taking the proffered opportunity to share the
gift of water, inclusion and welcome, with others.

And for the world within,which we live, this baptismal reality means offering the precious water
of the Spirit to the world around us. It means offering the gift of individuality and creativity that
is clear to its sources, the ever-flowing fountain of God.

All my episcopal ministry is founded in the ideas of this baptismal reality. I believe that the
particular ministry of the episcopate calls me to both always seek to discern the reality of our
common life founded in God, and point the Diocese to it. I would like to review our ministry and
mission from the year past with you, and indicate some directions for the coming year.

We have made changes and progress in how we are organized to do the work of the diocese
in a transparent and efficient manner.

Governance Review — I requested a review of our diocesan governance, specifically with
attention to be given to transparency and best practices for our three major governing bodies
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outside of Diocesan Conventions: the Board of Directors, the Diocesan Council, and the
Standing Committee.

A Working Group and Steering Committee have been working throughout the year with me,
with all three governance bodies, and with our deaneries. Their recommendations are excellent,
accomplishing my goals for the review, and taking us towards a governance structure that will
serve the Diocese well for the future.

Staff — It was my goal for the past year to reconfigure the Diocesan Staff to better reflect my
sense of the leadership needed to best minister in the context of the world within which the
Church is embedded today. We worked to create a more collaborative, horizontal structure.

The accomplishments of the Diocesan staff under Bishop Swing's leadership were remarkable,
and the staff configuration of that time served those times fittingly. Particularly, I want to thank
the Rev. Canon Michael Hansen, Canon Holly McAlpen, and Jackie Fielding for their service to
the Diocese during Bishop Swing's leadership. We all begin with the solid legacy they left for
us.

In addition to the administrative foundation, we have begun our work to know where the
Spirit is leading us as a body, in our common life.

Visioning — At Diocesan Convention 2006 I called on the Diocese to begin abroad-based
visioning process that would lead to a set of shared priorities to focus the mission of the Diocese
for the next three to five years. It was my hope that the process we created would be organically
related to the worship life of the Church, and not anoff--the-shelf strategic planning process laid
down on top of our unique, vibrant life.

A working group, led by Julia McCray-Goldsmith assisted me in creating the hoped-for process,
and last May 5 over 300 people gathered for the initial visioning event, held at Grace Cathedral.
The day generated a great deal of enthusiasm, and over 50 pages of comments and ideas about
how we in the Diocese might manifest being the Beloved Community, the place where the
voiceless have a voice, where all are lovingly, attentively seen by all, where we have all drunk
from the same Spirit and become one Body.

Following the first event; four more regional visioning events are planned around the Diocese,
and a "playbox" is being prepared that any congregation or specialized ministry can use to
contribute to the final vision.

Part of the Visioning process is that it is a "wiki" process, an evolving process, that incorporates
comment on each iteration as it unfolds. Preliminary results can be viewed on the diocesan
webpage, and you can comment on the comments, and also fnd yourself influenced by the
thoughts of others in the Diocese as yourself participate in the visioning.

Let me mention some of the nodes of interest that have emerged from the first Visioning event,
as a step in this wiki process. First, there is a strong interest in the Diocese becoming inclusive to
the point of reflecting in its membership the demographic makeup of the Bay Area. There is an
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oft-noted sense that we need to strengthen the communication within the Diocese. Youth and
young adult ministries need to be strengthened, and the deaneries need to be reinvigorated.

After the 2003 General Convention, I began thinking about how global reconciliation could be
brought close to home, into the lives of Episcopalians. It occurred to me that Companion Diocese
relationships, many of which already exist across the Church, could be the medium for this
practical engagement with the relief of global suffering and the promotion of global flourishing.

I proposed at our last Convention that we begin a process to identify a new companion diocese
for the Diocese of California. A diverse, talented committee, under the leadership of the Rev.
Ted Thompson, worked to identify not a community of several possible companion dioceses, as I
had first thought, but one. It was their suggestion that we establish the first relationship, and then
in partnership with our new companion diocese, identify a third companion to make amulti-
diocese relationship.

The diocese they have proposed is that of Curitiba, in the Province of Brazil. One of the criterion
I proposed to the committee was that our new companion diocese not have other companions.
While dioceses like Haiti can use the partnership of almost as many dioceses as they can
manage, at the same time it is true that there are more than 90 dioceses across the Communion
desiring companion relationships who either have never had one, or do not at the present time.

Curitiba is a very new diocese, having been in missionary diocese status unti12003. They are
located in the extreme south of Brazil. The entire province of Brazil has been in solidarity with
the Episcopal Church in the tensions that emerged after General Convention 2003. The province
has been deeply shaped by liberation theology, and they have a profound commitment to justice
founded on their liberation theology reading of the Gospel.

It is my hope, that if we enter this exciting new possible companion diocese we would pattern the
relationship through .the lens of the Millennium Development Goals. This means that Curitiba
.would present themselves to us in terms of the MDGs, identifying their development priorities
such as universal primary education, or the eradication of pandemics like HIV/AIDS,
tuberculosis, and malaria in their diocese, inviting us into mission with them; and that we would
do the same regarding- our own self-understanding of development needs within the Diocese of
California.

I also believe that the varying ways that each diocese has understood and received Christ would
lead to a deepened way of being Christians for us both, that is, we would be growing in our
spiritual understanding through this relationship.

Also at the last Convention in addition to calling for the Visioning process, the Governance
Review, and the Companion Diocese identification process, I named some of my own
priorities as your bishop.

Youth and young adult ministries, environment, and peace were areas where I've directed my
energies and those of the Diocesan staff. Also, from the walkabouts on I have shared my
conviction that we must move to new modes of congregational development for the renewal of
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our Diocese. It must be noted that I and the diocesan staff view all of the above, indeed all our
ministry as interconnected, even unified, rather than as separate containers of ministry effort.

Susan Peek has been supporting regional youth efforts throughout the Diocese, has reshaped the
youth and young adult department, and working with a consultant, has initiated an action-
oriented Mission Initiative program that holds great promise for further reinvigoration of
Diocesan youth and young adult ministries.

Working with Environmental Commission co-chairs Barbara Bissell and Sally Bingham I have
asked each congregation to identify at least one person to serve as a liaison to the Commission.
To date about sixty liaisons have been identified, a great group with whom we will be working in
the coming year for coordinated earth stewardship across the Diocese.

Environmental stewardship was the theme of this year's Clergy Conference, with a record
attendance of 200 clergy and with the participation of our Presiding Bishop Katherine Jefferts
Shori.

Last Spring I led the second Pilgrimage for Peace to the TEAM Conference, hosted by
Archbishop Ndungane, in Boksburg, South Africa, where the theme was mission in the Anglican
Communion framed by the Millennium Development Goals, which includes environmental
sustainability. Working with the directors of the Bishops Ranch and St. Dorothy's Rest we are
planning a Young Adult Environmental Pilgrimage that utilizes both facilities, introducing young
adults to the different ecosystems and the connected economies, all in the context of sacred
pilgrimage.

Promoting peace has been a deliberate, sustained effort throughout the year. The December 7
peace event in front of the Federal Building had close to 300 participants representing 40 of our
congregations. Since then we have worked to help promote alocally-produced documentary on
conscientious objection in the Iraq war, called "Soldiers of Conscience," and in interfaith peace
events this Fall.

The position of working group head for congregational development, which was slated to
disappear after the three years of Jubilate Deo, seemed vital to me for leading the diocese into
patterns of renewal and growth. The Rev. Canon Michael Barlowe is in this leadership position,
and is working vigorously to help the diocese adapt models of congregational development that
transition away from atomistic, disconnected congregational life and into more porous,
interdependent models that honor the contributions of the laity.

Other notable efforts during the past year have included fund raising and supporting strategic
planning efforts in diocesan institutions. With a gap of $1.7 million lacking last spring for the
Bill and Mary Swing Pavilion at the Bishops Ranch, we are now within $600,000 of raising the
full funding for this important facility for the life of the Diocese. The Episcopal Charities board
has undertaken and nearly completed a strategic planning process that is using the lens of the
Millennium Development Goals for creating new vision for the future, and we have been
working with the Partner Agencies to deepen their work together using the MDGs as well. The
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Episcopal Homes Foundation has a name change, to Episcopal Senior Communities that reflects
a deliberate move on their part to extend their service to low-income seniors.

For me, all of the above is within the container of being the Beloved Community, this place
where we drink of the same Spirit, and become one Body in Christ.

What of the year to come? We will continue with all the efforts I've outlined above, as well
as prayerfully manifesting the Beloved Community in the following ways, with your
approval and support.

We are already responding to the emerging diocesan priority on increased communication that
emerged in the first Visioning Day. Under Sean McConnell's leadership the webpage is being
completely redesigned, DioBytes is now html-based and available to everyone in the Diocese,
communication liaisons will be identified in all our congregations and specialized ministries, and
a diocesan database is currently being developed.

With the closure of Incarnation Priory in Berkeley and in conversation with Brother Tom
Schultz, Clergy Chaplain, I have begun conversation to expand the scope of clergy chaplaincy,
with the aim of having a college of chaplains, able to respond to the differing needs of women,
LGBT, and ethnic minorities within the clergy community.

I am exploring how we might establish a Wisdom Christianity center within the boundaries of
the Diocese that would provide a nexus of chaplaincy services for the clergy, spiritual direction
training and service for laity as well as clergy, and of ferment for contemplative-based action for
justice, peace, and the integrity of creation.

I will follow the natural consequences of the Governance Review and the emergent Visioning
process priority on strengthening the deaneries, including the revitalization of our clericus
structure.

I will continue to represent the Diocese in the ongoing Church and Communion-wide
conversations on the full inclusion of LGBT people, and in the global flourishing promoted by
the MDGs. In this connection, let me say that I welcome the resolution on marriage and blessing
being offered at this Convention. I think the resolution properly augments my pastoral goal of
caring alike for all of the people of the Diocese, not reinforcing damaging distinctions. I also
think, at the same time, that the resolution writers have honored the spirit of the Windsor Report
and subsequent requests from the Primates of the Communion to not develop "public rites."

Finally, I want to return to the shaping of the diocesan staff. It is my belief that the unity in
diversity of the Diocese, our manifestation of being the Beloved Community, would be furthered
by having an assistant bishop share ministry with me and the diocesan staff. This would be true
in terms of modeling shared episcope, and in terms of providing connections by episcopal
visitations more often than every two years.

Further, you and the whole Diocese are served by a relatively small, highly competent diocesan
staff, a staff that is working beyond what should be normal loads in effort and hours. The
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Diocese of California, served by this staff, while lively, committed, and spiritually mature is, in
terms of growth, reflective of the Episcopal Church as a whole — in serious decline.

I am committed to turning this decline around with you, as I know you are, not for the purpose of
institutional replacement, but because I am convinced that the Diocese of California is a gift to
the people of the Bay Area, a way of being Christian that deeply resonates with the area we
serve. Thus we have an evangelical possibility and responsibility. Ibelieve anassistant bishop
would help me and the diocesan staff help you in what I believe is a sacred goal —the extension
of the Gospel to those we are called to serve.

In addition to sharing in episcope, the assistant bishop would lead our multicultural and ethnic
ministries work. It is not certain that if Convention gives me approval to hire an assistant bishop
that an appropriate bishop could be found to lead this extremely important work in the Diocese
of California. We will be beginning a national search for a staff person to head up multicultural
and ethnic ministries work as a parallel track to the search for an assistant bishop. Approval by
Convention would give me the ability to search for an appropriate bishop to fill this position; but
the first priority for me is filling the multicultural and ethnic ministries position. Approval only
increases the flexibility I would have.

An assistant bishop is an already-elected and consecrated bishop who has either retired or is
ready for new ministry assisting a diocesan bishop. An assistant bishop is not tenured. I would
use a search committee composed of members of Diocesan Council and Standing Committee to
advise me in the selection of an assistant bishop. I would not begin a search for an assistant
bishop until after the Visioning process has concluded in May of 2008, near the end of this
second visitation rota. I would envision an assistant bishop beginning work no sooner than Fall,
2008.

The national canons indicate that the call for an assistant bishop is initiated by the diocesan
bishop, but that the election of a suffragan is discerned by the diocese. One member of Standing
Committee expressed the hope, while supporting the hiring of an assistant bishop, that in time
the diocese might call a suffragan. That is a desire I support; it points to our overall development
as a faith community. I firmly believe that within the foreseeable future we will have the
institutional and financial capacity to discern a call for a suffragan to share in episcope in the
Diocese of California.

It has been an exciting year for me and Sheila in the Diocese of California. Many people have
asked if we are happy here, if it feels like home here, for us Southerners. The truth is we have
felt the great peace with coming to a work to which we feel deeply called. It is also true that
while the Diocese of Alabama and the American South in general have many measurable and
striking differences from the Diocese of California and the West Coast, this move has taught me
that the Episcopal Church has an abiding unity in our way of being Christian, and that our true
home is in God, who creates and sustains the whole Body. As I remind myself in prayer and
study of the clear source of my life, I find the Psalm to be true,

T hey are like trees
planted by streams of water,
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which yield their fruit in its season,
and their leaves do not wither.

In all that they do, they prosper.

And, again,
"They that sing as well as they that dance shall say, All my fountains are in thee. "

In this truth I find both peace and energy for ministry and mission with you.

BUSINESS MEETING

After a brief recess following Morning Prayer, the business meeting of the Convention was
called to order by the President, Bishop Marc, in Gresham Hall, at 10:15 a.m. He then
recognized the Secretary of Convention, David Frangquist, who gave the report of the
Committee on Credentials.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON CREDENTIALS

Mr. Frangquist reported that a quorum was present. He stated that 77 churches were represented
by clergy, and 69 churches were represented by lay delegates. He then reported that four
congregations had failed to submit their certificates of election for lay delegates by the canonical
deadline but that three of those congregations had now submitted their certificates. The
Committee on Credentials, having reviewed the credentials and finding them to be in order,
moved to give seat, voice and vote to the lay delegations from the following three congregations:
Holy Child and St. Martin's, Good Shepherd, Berkeley, and St. Cyprian's, San Francisco. The
motion was carried on a voice vote.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Bishop Marc then asked if there were any changes to the printed agenda. Hearing none, he
declared the printed agenda to be the Orders of the Day.

SECRETARY'S APPOINTMENTS

Mr. Frangquist appointed the following Assistant Secretaries:
The Rev. Barbara Bender Breck, Chair of the Committee on Dispatch of Business;
Ms. Mary Louise Gotthold, Registrar of Convention;.
Ms. Roulhac Austin, Chair of the Committee on Elections;
Dr. Anna McHargue, Time Keeper

He also announced Melissa Ridlon had stepped down from the Committee on Elections and was
replaced by Greg Brown.
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COMMITTEE ON DISPATCH OF BUSINESS
The Rev. Barbara Bender Breck -

The Rev. Barbara Bender Breck drew the Convention's attention to page Gl 1 of the Guide to the
Convention.

Report #3 —Special Order: Committee on Canons

The Committee on Dispatch of Business moved that the consideration of the Report of the
Committee on Canons be governed by the following Special Order:
1. Five minute shall be provided for presentation of the Report, with an additional five minutes
for questions of clarification.
2. Five minutes shall be allotted for debate on any amendments to the Constitution and Canons.
3. Within the times allowed, two minutes shall be allotted to present an amendment, and five
minutes allotted for debate on each amendment, during which time no speaker shall be allowed
more than two minutes.
4. The House, by 2/3 majority, may vote to extend the time for debate. No motion to lay on the
table, to recommit, or otherwise to terminate debate shall be in order while anyone still wishes
to speak. At the conclusion of each established time period, votes shall be taken on all pending
motions.

Carried on a voice vote.

The Committee also reminded the Convention that all amendments or resolutions of any kind
must be submitted in writing to the Secretary of Convention before action can be taken on them
(Rule 4.1).

Report #4 —Special Order: Committee on Resolutions

The Committee on Dispatch of Business moved that the Reports) of the Committee on
Resolutions be governed by the following Special Order:
1. The Committee shall have five minutes to f le with the Convention those resolutions which
have been considered by the Deaneries (Rule 1.3), and received any amendments thereto.
2.Opportunity then shall be given for members of Convention to seek 2/3. consent of the House
for consideration` of other resolutions. ,
3. These resolutions, together with any amendments, shall be referred to the Committee on
Resolutions or other Special Committees for subsequent hearing and report to the House.
4. When the Committee reports, in accordance with Rule 7.4, three minutes shall be provided
for the presentation of each resolution and ten minutes for debate.
5. Debate on each resolution shall be limited to ten minutes, unless the House by 2/3 majority
resolves to extend the time.
Within the time allotted, no motion to limit debate shall be in order while anyone still wishes to
speak. At the conclusion of the time period, votes shall be taken on all pending motions.

Carried on a voice vote.
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Report #5 —Special Order: Program &Budget

The Committee on Dispatch of Business moved that consideration of the Program and Budget
report be governed by the. following Special Order:
1. Following the report of the Diocesan Council, five minutes shall be allowed for the
introduction of the Proposed 2008 Program and Budget and additional five minutes for the
introduction of amendments to the Program and Budget.
2. The Proposed 2008 Program and Budget, together with amendments introduced, shall be
referred to the Division of Program and Budget, for its consideration. The full report of the
Division shall be represented in the regular order of business..
3. Debate on the Program and Budget shall then proceed for a time not to exceed five minutes.
4. Debate on any amendments from the floor, during the consideration of the Program and
Budget shall be limited to five minutes each. No speaker shall be allowed more than two
minutes.
No motion to limit debate shall be in order during the allotted time period, while a person still
wishes to speak: At the end of each established time period, a vote will be taken on all pending
motions, pertaining to that period, unless the House by 2/3 majority, resolves to extend debate.

The Rev. Barbara Bender Breck noted that Report #5 is altered because the agenda calls for the
Program and Budget and Treasurer's report to come before the Report of Diocesan Council.

Carried on a voice vote.

Report #6 —Special Order: Committee Reports (Excluding Canons and Resolutions)

The Committee on Dispatch of Business moved that the Report on the Bishop's Address, and
any other regular or special committees of Convention, be governed by the following Special
Order:
1. Five minutes shall be provided for the presentation of each resolution from such a committee,
and five minutes for response to questions of clarification.
2. Debate on each resolution shall be limited to five minutes unless the- House by 2/3 majority
shall extend the time. At the conclusion of the allotted time votes shall be taken on all pending
motions.
Within the time for debate no speaker shall be allowed more than two minutes, and,no motion
to limit debate shall be in order while anyone still wishes to speak.

In response to question from the floor, the Rev. Barbara Bender Breck noted that this order
applies to reports in addition to those already included in the agenda.

Carried on a voice vote.
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ADOPTION OF RULES OF ORDER

The Rev. Barbara Bender Breck called attention to a change in the Rules of Order found on page
G7. On behalf of the Committee on Dispatch of Business she moved the adoption of the
proposed Rules of Order as printed.

Carried on a voice vote,

[Complete text of the Rules of Order is contained in Appendix A.]

AMENDMENTS TO NATIONAL CONSTITUTION

Bishop Marc called upon the Secretary to read the proposed amendments to the Constitution of
the National Episcopal Church, as required by canon.

There are two amendments that were proposed by the last General Convention.
The first amends Article 1 Section 2 of the Constitution as follows:

All bishops of this church except any excluded by canon or under the rules of the house
have seat and voice in the House of Bishops. Each bishop of this church having
jurisdiction, Bishop Coadjutor, Bishop Suffragan, Assistant Bishop and every Bishop
holding an office created by General Convention shall have a vote in the House of
Bishops. A majority of all bishops entitled to vote shall be necessary to constitute a
quorum for transaction of business.

The second amendment is to the last paragraph of Article 8 of the Constitution, and is amended
to read as follows:

A bishop may permit an ordained minister in good standing in a church with which this
church is in full communion as specified by the cannons who has made the foregoing
declaration or a minister ordained to the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America or its
predecessor bodies who has made the promise of conformity required by that Church in
place of the foregoing declaration to officiate on a temporary basis as an ordained
minister of this Church.

No other action was required regarding these proposed amendments,

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON NOMINATIONS

Bishop Marc called upon the Rev. Martha Kuhlman to give the report of the Committee on
Nominations.

The Committee nominated the following people:
Standing Committee:

Clergy:. Hailey McKeefry Delmas
Jude Hill
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Jill Honodel
Chip Barker Larrimore
Nina Pickerrell
Karen Swanson

Lay:. Ron Johnson
Jay Luther
Karekin Yarian

Ecclesiastical Court:
Clergy: Paul Burrows

Ellen Ekstrom
Nancy Eswein

Lay: Gerald Learn
Karen Clopton

Secretary of the Convention: David Frangquist

Treasurer of the Diocese: Betsy Munz

Board of Directors: Paul Fromberg
Peggy Greene
Gary Hunt

Provincial Synod:
Clergy: VincentJang

Leslie Nipps
Anna Lange-Soto
Sylvia Sweeney

Lay: Mary Kimball
Carole Jan Lee
Vik Slen
Dianne Audrick Smith

General Convention:
Clergy: Michael Barlowe

Barbara Bender Breck
Tommy Dillon
Jack Eastwood
Vanessa Glass
Richard Helmer
Chip Barker Larrimore
David Ota
Kate Salinaro
Sue Thompson
Sylvia Vasquez

Lay: Bob Birss
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Barbara Bisel
Kay Bishop
Rod Dugliss
Carolyn Gaines
Liz Graves
Walter Holden
Sarah Lawton
Holly McAlpen
Warren Wong.

Bishop Marc then call for nominations from the floor.

The Rev. Mary Moore Gaines was nominated from the floor for Board of Directors. The
nomination was seconded.

There being only one nominee for Secretary and one nominee for Treasurer, Bishop Marc
ordered the Secretary to cast a unanimous ballot for those offices.

INSTRUCTIONS ON THE FIRST BALLOT

Bishop Marc asked Ms. Roulhac Austin, Chair of the Committee on Elections to give the
instructions for the first ballot.

Ms. Austin reminded members not to write on the ballots other than to mark votes, and not to
fold ballots. She stated that the one nomination from the floor, Mary Moore Gaines, should be
entered at line number 54 on the ballot, on the reverse side. She noted that it's important to put.
her on Iine 54 and to mark bullet number 54 to vote for her. She also noted that in the General
Convention lay order number 87, Mr. Holden's name was misspelled, the letters "1" and "d"
being transposed. She asked that when finished marking ballots they be passed to the end of table
toward the middle isle to have tellers collect them.

The convention was given 5 minutes to make their decisions and mark the ballots.

2ND REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON RESOLUTIONS

Bishop Marc then called upon the Rev. John Kirkley to present the 2°d Report of the Committee
on Resolutions.

John Kirkley called attention to some changes to the resolutions that occurred since their
presentation at the deanery meetings.

Resolution #2, Sudan Divestment, has- been changed as compared to the version that was
presented earlier. This is at the request of the proposers of the resolution and it is in order.
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Resolution #3, Protection for Immigrants and Their Families, is a substitute resolution. It is
substantially different from the version that was considered at the deanery meetings. This is also
at~the behest of the proposers of the resolution.

Resolution #4, Compact Florescent Light Bulbs, has a small addition to the first resolve that
should have been printed for today's packet. That first resolve clause should read: "Resolved
that the 158 h̀ Convention of the Diocese of California encourages each congregation and
diocesan institution with a building or buildings to change at least one light bulb."

Resolution #5, The Strategic Plan for Ethnic and Multicultural Ministries. In the second to the
last resolve, there is one small change. It should read "Resolved, that the Diocese of California
strongly recommends that all clergy of the diocese, lay professionals, and lay leadership of all
committees throughout the diocese attend at least two successive sessions." The word
"successive" was added to indicate that we are not asking people to repeat the same training ad
infinitum, but to indeed build on the skills that they're developing in antiracism work.

Bishop Marc stated that the resolutions.filed by the Committee on Resolutions would be
considered in the afternoon at the time specified in the agenda. He then asked if there were any
other resolutions to come before this Convention.

The Rev. Ted Thompson, Christ Episcopal Church Alameda, on behalf of the Companion
Diocese Initiative Committee, asked that the resolution found on the lavender page following the
pink section in the booklet be considered. He stated that this is in keeping with the bishop's
charge to Convention last year and the Convention's resolution to begin a process of discernment
regarding companion dioceses. He asked that this convention permit consideration of the
resolution titled "Approval of a Companion Relationship between the Dioceses of California and
Curitiba, Brazil."

Bishop Marc noted that the Rules of Order require a 2/3 vote of this Convention to consider a
resolution not previously submitted to the Committee on Resolutions. The question on whether
to consider the resolution titled "Approval of a Companion Relationship between the Dioceses of
California and Curitiba, Brazil" carried on a voice vote.

Sarah Lawton, St. John the Evangelist Church San Francisco, asked that the Convention consider
a resolution in response to the House of Bishops' statement. The resolution had been distributed
and was titled "Response to the House of Bishops' Statement." She stated that the reason they
did not submit this Resolution in time was that the House of Bishops Meeting did not occur until
late September, after the deadline for the resolutions.

Bishop Marc again noted that the resolution required a 2/3 vote to come before the House. The
question on the consideration of the resolution titled "Response to the House of Bishops'
Statement" was carried on a voice vote.
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REPORT OF THE COMMISSION ON MARRIAGE AND BLESSING

Bishop Marc then called upon the Rev. Joseph Lane to present the report of the Commission on
Marriage and Blessing.

Joseph Lane: I was at one of the deanery meetings a couple of weeks ago and someone said, "I
downloaded your 48 page report Joseph.'' So I said, ̀ Well it's that long because it includes
liturgical material and you know we Episcopalians do tend toward a certain wordiness in our
prayers.' We're not going to regurgitate that report this morning but we do commend it to your
reading if you haven't already done so. Later today you will have an opportunity to debate and
vote on whether or not to commend a set of liturgical resources to the Bishop. We've already
discussed the Resolution and the Commission on Marriage and Blessing endorsed rites at all the
deanery meetings. I do however want to address one question relating to the Commission's work
and what we're hoping you will do today. It's one of those elephant on the table kinds of things.
Several people have called or emailed me to ask about any effect or impact the recent House of
Bishops' Meeting might have had on our work. Bishop Marc spoke to that question from his
perspective earlier this morning, so let me just add two comments, from the Commissions'
perspective. First speaking broadly, I can not imagine any action by either House or a
Convention or certainly, God love them, the Primates, keeping us, the constituent members of
the Diocese of California, from staying true to ourselves as we seek to fulfill the Gospel as we
understand it. That's exactly what we're doing and preparing and setting forth these liturgical
resources. We believe it's important to be proactive and to continue asking for what we need.
Lynn and I decided we wanted to make sure we came in under our 15 minutes but if we were
going to use the whole 15 minutes I wanted to bring a clip from Oklahoma — "Doing what comes
naturally".

Secondly, speaking more specifically, we understand our work as very much in keeping with
General Convention's affirmation in 2003 that local faith communities are operating within the
bounds of our common life as they explore and experience liturgies celebrating and blessing
same gender unions. We're asking this Diocesan Convention to urge the Bishop to approve the
trial use of these rites as liturgical resources in this diocese. We are not per say asking him to
establish and authorize liturgy.

Besides in offering up three very different rites we are taking a more creative approach than
drafting one, one size fits all rite would allow us. Liturgically speaking things emerge and evolve
that one, one size fits all rite would allow us as liturgically speaking things emerge and evolve in
the coming years. As we pray, the best if never quite final, forms will emerge. With that in mind
and offering these liturgical resources we do hope you'll keep us informed about how they are
helpful or not, what in them works or doesn't. In other words give us the feedback we'll need for
the next phase of this work.

There's also a sense of "Well, here we are again in this work." Since rites have been developed
and affirmed by earlier Diocesan Conventions, the current Commission on Marriage and
Blessing wants to commend our predecessors in this work. The task force on Marriage and
Blessing two years ago, a national consultation in 1995, the Bishop's Theology Group in this
diocese in 1987, the Commission on Liturgical Renewal in 1984 in the Diocese of California.
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The rosters of those groups include many of our friends and mentors and if you'll see me later I
will show you the list. Our current work simply builds on their good efforts and reframes the
work for our own day, which Bishop Marc, we see as a new day in the Diocese of California.
Now I'd like to introduce my co-chair on the Commission, Lynn Morlan, who will tell you a bit
about another facet of the Commission's work.

Lynn Morlan: The Commission focus for 2008 will be on resources for clergy and couples to
use in preparation for union or marriage blessing and resources to help congregations develop a
sense of their role in nurturing and supporting couples in the faith community.

Now some of the books and articles that we have found useful as starting points can be found in
the bibliography on our website and also in the back of our report.

We have begun work on a couples workshop and that means inclusive, which is very exciting to
all of us on the Committee and we hope it will be exciting to all of you. Completing the
workshop curriculum and flushing out the other ideas to create useful programs and information
will be our focus for the future. So that being said I would like to ask all of you to please take
some time to prayerfully consider if you are being called to assist in this work. We have a sign-
up sheet and our table is way in the back corner. But there is a sign-up sheet if you are interested
in helping us on this Commission. Please give us your name, email, way to contact you and if
you would like even more info please join us today at lunch as we talk about today's Resolution
and developing resources for clergy, couples and congregations. The work that we do will
benefit the whole church.

REPORT OF THE ETHNIC AND MULTICULTURAL TASK FORCE

Bishop Marc then called upon the Rev. Richard Helmer to present the Report of the Ethnic and
Multicultural Task Force.

Richard Helmer: I presently serve at Church of Our Saviour in Mill Valley. Two years ago, the
156t" Convention, passed a resolution calling for the formation of a working group to begin
building a strategic plan for ethnic and multicultural ministries for the diocese, and for the past
two years I've had the privilege of coordinating that working group. It's turned out to be a much
more challenging task than many of us anticipated. The Diocese had not embarked on a strategic
planning process within living memory and so we had no model to follow and it was at times
quite frankly a difficult and sometimes frustrating journey for many of us. But it was also not
without its encouraging and hopeful moments. And what has resulted is a rough-hewn plan, a
beginning point, we hope, for the Diocese in moving forward with further development of these
ministries.

At our last meeting a week and a half ago; the working group agreed that it was time to place
what we had fashioned before the Diocese. You have in resolution form in front of you,
particularly in the first resolution, the very basic outline of the plan and then further in the
explanation the framework, that derives from that and then we will be offering at the discussion
upstairs during the lunch hour the full details that we have so far put together. And included in
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those details are some suggested task lists and timelines that we hope will prove useful. We very
much expect the plan to continue evolving as it moves forward with the consent of this body,
into the hands of new and renewed leadership, and also into the Diocesan wide visioning process
for Building the Beloved Community. At this time I'd like to tum the microphone over to Vince
Jang who will take our presentation from here.

Vince Jang: In 2005, Diocesan Convention passed a resolution creating the Multi-Ethnic Task
Force to plan a five year strategy for creating a comprehensive, multi-ethnic ministry in the
Diocese of California. We had a visioning day in which information was disseminated.
Brainstorming began with a lot of ideas and volunteers signed up to help out. The work
commenced with a lot of difficulty and after about two years, including a change in bishops, a
plan was put forth, giving us a comprehensive first draft and resolutions to present for approval
by this Convention. All of us felt, and I feel the same way, that we started from being isolated in
our various ministries and yet we did find some common concerns, issues, procedures, we all
share which might enable us to work towards a team ministry together or even within our own
ethnic communities. Communications and sharing our concerns helped us to develop a closer
bond between the various ethnic communities. We did not go into finite details on what this new
Multi-Ethnic Commissioner would do as we believe this person may have ideas of their own to
incorporate. I expect this work will continue now that we have reached this point and have
discharged our duty. The Resolution is before you and additional information may be given at
our blog listed in the convention book. We hope that those who volunteered to help will have a
little more patience for us to contact them as this task is taking a lot longer than we thought.

John Rawlinson: The visioning day has been mentioned. Very few people in this room have
been involved in this plan so it's logical to think, oh those people met off in that room or
multiple rooms over time, all to themselves and yet the truth is there was a broad spectrum of
considerations and input. One day we met at Mercy Center in Burlingame with more than 70
people who brought a variety of perspectives from the congregational level, the diocesan staff
level, from various ethnicities and backgrounds and experiences and all shared common ideas,
hopes, dreams, frustrations and difficulties. One of the activities which we did which I would
commend to you for a variety of planning purposes, was that all around the walls we had large
sheets of newsprint with incomplete sentences — "my hope is", "my fear is", "what I think
congregations should do", etc. etc. And people mingled, they moved, they wrote their answers.
So it wasn't a matter for waiting for time on the floor or limited time, everybody mingling,
sharing, talking, looking. So there's a great deal of input in that day. There was also input from
the ethnic and multicultural congregations, but the input is yet to be completed. The plan comes
now to the Diocese with the hope that many congregations will engage the need so that we learn
how to reflect the diversity of the Bay Area. Very few of our congregations come close to
reflecting this diversity and that day of planning and visioning was a vision for a future in which
we would not be a monochromatic entity, but a truly diverse, complex, engaging entity which
reflects our diocesan area.

Barbara Bender Breck: I was asked to speak on that very subject on the hopes and visions of the
working group and many of us on the Committee have journeyed a long time working towards
inclusion. Those who served on Commission 2000 for three years heard over and over again,
"now is not the time". And then those of us who served on Vision 2000, two years later
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continued to hear the same mantra, "now is not the time". So when we gathered together to form
this working group many of us struggled with "now is not the time" once again because we were
fearful that all the work and all the time and all the energy would be for naught. Now is not the
time. Well my friends, now I believe is the time, your working group believes that as they say,
"times they are a changing". As our Diocese has been called into working with the Beloved
Community by our Bishop this morning and by the hard work of Michael Barlowe we are called
into the Beloved Community to find and be the Kingdom of God right now, the here and now.
As a working group we have developed the skeleton, not perfect however, but a five year
strategic plan to help us begin our work together. It is time for us to live into the reality of that_
Beloved Community. We hope that you the people of the Diocese will help us put flesh and bone
and sinew into the work that has to be done. It is our vision that the Diocese embrace the
.strategic plan and make it a living reality. It is our hope that those whose voices have been a
whisper will now be heard in all the leadership positions of this Diocese, not only from the
congregations but in Diocesan House. It is our hope that congregations will grow to be inclusive.
in multi-culture and multi-ethnic communities and is our dream that the pain of the past be put
aside and that we will be able to have reconciliation.

Within this strategic plan are tasks and accountability as well as transparency and many
challenges to the way we have done it in the past. You know what the seven last words of a
dying church are? "We have always done it that way." Well I've come to tell you we're not
going to do it that way anymore. Times they are changing. It is time for us to live into the
Beloved Community. It is time for us to be the people of God here in the Diocese of California
and we had a wonderful invitation into that this morning by our bishop. Well I invite you, each.
and every one of you, to join.us in our fight to make that change now.

REPORT ON THE GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Bishop Marc called upon the Rev. Chad Smith,. President of the Standing Committee, to report
on the results of the Governance Review that the Diocese has been conducting.

Chad Smith: I am proud to present to you the proposed new Governance structure for our
Diocese. The structure we are proposing today is the work of many volunteers over the course of

16 months. Our guiding objective has been to increase transparency, communication, and the
mission of our Diocese. Sean McConnell, Chip Larrimore and I prepared this video, with the
help of Anthony Turney and Bishop Marc, to help present this Governance project to you.

Narration from presented video:
"As you therefore have received Christ Jesus the Lord, continue to live your lives in Him and
establish in the faith, just as you were taught, abounding in Thanksgiving."

Building the Beloved Community.
Bringing the resources and ministry of the Diocese of California together to build up the

Kingdom of God.
In May of 2006, Bishop Marc Andrus called upon the Standing Committee of our Diocese to
review our Governance with the objective of clarifying roles, improving transparency of
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decision making and encouraging wider participation from all Episcopalians, in the process
of leading our Diocese and undertaking its mission.

What followed has been a year of research and discernment that has led to the proposal of a
governance structure for our Diocese that will focus leadership in two committees; the first
an Executive Council .that will conduct the business of the Diocese and articulate the mission
and vision of the Diocese, and second the Standing Committee that will manage people and
process. Modeled after the structures that govern the majority of the Episcopal. Diocese in the
United States, and especially the 201argest diocese, this new model offers clearer
communication, improved transparency and more support for mission for the Diocese of
California. Where before diocesan bodies were disconnected and operating independently,
now the governance structure of the Diocese will bring together resources and vision,
mission and finances, leadership and gifts. This simplified structure is more easily
understandable and transparent to the wider community. And most importantly the
organizational structure of our diocese will require greater participation and by its very
nature, raise up leaders for the mission and ministry of the church.

Bishop Marc's remarks from presented video:
I'm really please with the work of the Steering Committee and Working Group. The original
impetus in my call for a governance review included increased transparency and a request
that the working group analyze the structures of some other diocese. After thoroughly
reading through the constitutions and cannons of an astounding 20 dioceses, the resulting
recommendation by incorporating transparency goes much further, proposing a set of
exciting new structural changes. It seems to me that we have come a very long way into
becoming the new. It took courage and critical thinking to propose these changes. It is one
way in which we are becoming the Beloved Community. It is claiming our oneness in Christ.

Narration presented video:
During the time between this Convention and our May 10th Special Convention, deaneries
will have the opportunity to review this new structure and suggest amendments, honoring the
spirit of transparency and communication. It is clear that this is just one step in our move
forward. But it is an important step, a step that honors the spirit within this diocese and the
spirit of our visioning process. May God bless us with wisdom, boldness and courage to be
Christ's Church and please plan to join us on May 10th, 2008 as we continue to work toward
building the Beloved Community.

Chad Smith: As the video shared with us, this project began with a call by Bishop Marc, to
examine our structure in light of transparency and communication after the bishop's election
process in 2006. At that time the Standing Committee formed atwo-committee structure to draft
a proposal. The Working Group was chaired by Paul Evans and included Margalynne
Armstrong, Roulhac Austin, Chip Larrimore, David Lui and Salying Wong. This group
conducted research and, with feedback from the Steering Committee, made recommendations to
the Standing Committee. The Steering Committee was chaired by Kathy Henry and Vanessa
Glass and included representatives from all six deaneries, the Board of Directors, Diocesan
Council and Standing Committee. Those representatives were Ruth Baney, Jim DeMersman,
Tim Fox, Dave Frangquist, Carolyn Gaines, Margaret Gill, Jill Honodel, Vince Jang, Jay Luther,
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Bob McCaskill, Chad Smith, Dianne Smith, Lisa Thompson, Sue Thompson, Kathy Trapani and
Mary Jane Wood. These two committees worked very hard to draft this proposed structure for
our consideration. Please join me in acknowledging their work, courage and leadership in
drafting this proposal.

So. I would like to explain the decision that is required of us regarding this proposed structure
and what our next steps are. First our possible action. The Resolution calling for a special
convention on May 10, 2008, simply allows us to consider a Governance structure for adoption.
If passed today, the time between this convention and the special convention next May will be
used to consider amendments and allow the amendments to be reviewed by the Committee on
Canons. A special spring deanery meeting presentation will explain the amendments to the
proposed structure. This is our only decision we must make today. This resolution calls for the
Special Convention in order to take the next step in considering the proposed structure. I believe
the approval of this resolution is important for us moving forward but I want to emphasize that
the approval of this resolution will not mean a final decision on the structure itself. This only
gives us the approval to move forward.

What are our next steps? Our first step is the breakout session on governance over lunch today.
Paul Evans, Kathy Henry, Vanessa Glass, Dianne Smith, Bob McCaskill, Jay Luther and Tory
McAllister will be part of a panel for that session. On your table are yellow cards for you to write
your questions regarding the governance structure, and we ask that your questions be submitted
in writing so that we can address as many of them as time allows during the breakout session and
get back to those of you who submitted questions that were not answered

Many of our deaneries have already taken the second step. The formation of a deanery study
group. Each deanery study group is asked to give a report at their November/December deanery
meetings. And we ask that any amendments to that structure be channeled through those study
groups. Those amendments are due to-the Standing Committee by January 31. In the interim the
Standing Committee will coordinate the transition steps to insure a smooth implementation after
the May Special Convention. Many of you have questions regarding roles and responsibilities of
Council members and Board of Directors after May 10. These issue will be discussed and
transition steps will be presented at the pre-convention deanery meetings_ next spring. The
Standing Committee is grateful to Bishop Marc for his call to examine our governance structure
and issues of transparency and communication. Already his call has born fruit. For example, the
level of interest and conversation about the roles of Board of Directors, Diocesan Council and
Standing Committee has increased greatly in this process. Another example of the success of this
process is the Nominating Committee. Already we have seen the nomination of a large number
of candidates of our diocese for each of the elected positions at this convention. This year the
Nominating Committee has increased the visibility of various positions of service of our diocese.
The co-chairs Anna McHargue and Martha Kuhlman lead our effort to cast the net wide when .
electing General Convention delegates, Standing Committee representatives, etc. In review of the
highly qualified and diverse candidates for various positions is an indication of the effectiveness
of this conversation on governance and the early implementation of a new governance
philosophy. Thank you for your consideration of this proposal and your thoughtful questions
regarding our Governance. May our work with Governance move us one step closer to Bishop
Mares call for living into the Beloved Community.
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Mr. President, the Standing Committee has prepared one motion for consideration by this '
Convention. The one resolution is calling for a special convention for next May 10 h̀ to consider
and act on the proposed changes to the cannons arising out of the Governance Review.

Resolution 7. Building the Beloved Community in the Spirit of
Transparency, Communication, and Mission

Resolved, That the 158t" Convention of the Diocese of California calls upon the Bishop to
convene a Special Convention on May 10, 2008 to consider and give final approval to proposed
changes to the Canons of the Diocese of California;

Resolved, That consideration of all proposed changes to the Canons of the Diocese of California
submitted to the 158' Convention of the Diocese of California be postponed until said Special
Convention;

Resolved, That amendments to the proposed changes to the Canons shall be in order at the
Special Convention only if they have been submitted to the Standing Committee and the
Committee on Canons no later than January 31, 2008; and

Resolved, That the Standing Committee and the Committee on Canons shall ~'eport all proposed
amendments to the Special Convention, unless withdrawn, along with their recommendations
and such revisions and substitutions as they may deem appropriate:

Resolution carried on a voice vote.

RESOLUTION HONORING ARCHBISHOP NDUNGANE

The Secretary moved the following courtesy. resolution:

Whereas, Archbishop Njongonkulu Ndungane, in the spirit of Ubuntu and in Christian love and
fraternity, has traveled 10,200 miles to be with the Diocese of California during its convention
week; and

Whereas, He has set for us a Godly example in fighting for justice in the face of oppression,
building relationships in a world of divisions, and bringing reconciliation to a broken world; and

Whereas, He has given us liope and helped us to see "A World With a Human Face;" and

Whereas, He has demonstrated a true spirit of sacrifice by keeping his commitment with us, even
while South Africa is playing England in the final of the Rugby World Cup; therefore be it

Resolved, That this 158 h̀ Convention ofthe Episcopal Diocese of California recognizes
Archbishop Njongonkulu Ndungane as a true Anglican hero, and a living saint in our midst;
andbe it further
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Resolved, That this 158th Convention of the Episcopal Diocese of California declares Archbishop
Ndungane to be a true friend and companion and an.honorary member of the Diocese of
California.

Carried by acclamation.

The Secretary, noting that the convention was ahead of schedule, moved to change the Orders of
the Day so that the times listed on the agenda from the time to reconvene at 1:15 through the 3rd

Report of the Committee on Resolutions be moved forward in time by 15 minutes; to allow
consideration of the extra resolutions.

Carried on a voice vote.

Bishop then declared the convention in recess until one o'clock.

RESULTS OF THE FIRST BALLOT

Bishop Marc, called the convention back to order after 1:00 p.m. He then called upon the
Secretary to read the results of the first ballot.

On the first ballot there were 156 votes in the clergy order; 79 needed to elect. There were 240
votes.in the lay order; 121 needed to elect.
On the first ballot an election requires a majority in both orders.

For the clergy member of the Standing Committee, there was no election. The results were:
Hailey Delmas, 26 clergy, 321ay; Brother Jude Hill, 31 clergy, 47 lay; Jill Honodel, 13 clergy,
321ay; Chip Barker Larrimore, 24 clergy, 39 lay; Nina Pickerrell 30 clergy, 61 lay; Karen
Swanson, 31 clergy, 25 lay.
In the lay order for Standing Committee, Ronald Johnson is elected with 87 clergy votes and
1221ay votes.

For Ecclesiastical Court there was an election for both seats. In the clergy order; Paul Burrows
was elected with 98 clergy votes. and 154 lay votes; and Nancy Eswein was elected with 117
clergy votes and 142 lay votes. For Ecclesiastical Court in the lay order, Karen Clopton was
elected with 98 clergy votes and 143 lay votes.

For Board of Directors, there was an election for two of the three seats. Paul Fromberg was
elected with 106 clergy votes and 165_ lay votes. Peggy Greene was elected with 114 clergy
votes and 164 lay votes.

For Provincial Synod in the clergy order there was no election. The votes were: Vincent Jang 39
clergy, 56 lay; Leslie Nipps Z2 clergy, 46 lay; Anna Lange-Soto 57 clergy, 84 lay; Sylvia
Sweeney 36 clergy, 35 lay.
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In the lay order, there was no election. The results were: Mary Kimba1174 clergy, 781ay; Carole
Jan Lee 73 clergy, 125 lay; Vik Slen, 39 clergy, 61 lay; Dianne Audrick Smith, 62 clergy, 110
lay.

,_For General Convention in the clergy order, there was an election for one seat. Michael
Barlowe was elected with 101 clergy votes and 1341ay votes.
The other totals were: Barbara Bender Breck 47 clergy, 103 lay; Tommy Dillon 37 clergy, 40

-lay; John Eastwood 43 clergy, 841ay; Vanessa Glass 65 clergy, 87 lay; Richard Helmer 60
clergy, 541ay; Chip Barker Larrimore 37 clergy, 671ay; David Ota 71 clergy, 91 lay; Kate
Salinaro 55 clergy, 681ay; Sue Thompson 34 clergy, 841ay; Sylvia Vasquez 57 clergy, 69 lay.

In the lay order, there was an election for one deputy. Warren Wong-was elected with 81 clergy,
129 lay. The other vote totals were: Bob Birss 18 clergy, 73 lay; Barbara Bise127 clergy, 60 lay;
Kay Bishop 40 clergy, 661ay; Rod Dugliss 113 clergy, 1071ay; Carolyn Gaines 64 clergy, 90
lay; Liz Graves 62 clergy, 901ay; Walter Holden 17 clergy, 341ay; Sarah Lawton 83 clergy, 93
lay; Holly McAlpen 63 clergy, 99 lay.

The Secretary then gave instructions for the second ballot. For Standing Committee in the clergy
order, vote for one. There was no need to vote for Standing Committee in the lay order, for
Ecclesiastical Court in either order, for Secretary, nor for Treasurer. For Board of Directors, vote
for only one; the two people left running were Gary L. Hunt and Mary Moore Gaines. For
Provincial Synod, vote for one in the clergy order, vote for two in the lay order. For General
Convention since one deputy was elected in the clergy order, do not vote for more than three; do
not vote for Michael Barlowe since he is already elected. In the lay order, do not vote for more
than three; do not vote for Warren Wong since he is already elected.

The Secretary also noted that by custom in this Diocese, after electing the four deputies in each
order, the four alternates in each order will be determined by the order in which they receive
votes, so the convention is voting for alternates as well as deputies on the second ballot. On the
second ballot the election is determined by a plurality of the total clergy and lay votes added
together.

The Secretary reminded members to write in the name of Mary Moore Gaines on line 54. He
then gave the vote totals for Board of Directors on the first ballot: Gary L. Hunt 66 clergy, 143
lay; Mary Moore Gaines 112 clergy, 115 lay.

Ballots were then marked and passed to the center isle where the tellers collected them.

REPORT OF THE TREASURER

Bishop Marc then called upon Mr. Jim Wall to present the Report of the Treasurer.

Jim Wall: In matters financial, creating transparency sometimes means presenting more rather
than fewer numbers. We have done that this year by providing a summary of the financial
information for both the Diocese and the Corp Sole in your convention booklet. There are notes
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to those statements highlighting what we believe are the most important components. You will
find those notes in the supplementary information that was passed out on a green sheet. The full
audited financial statements are available at Diocesan House. And for the first time are also on
your web site for your leisurely perusal. If I understand it correctly, the financial statements are
under a tab of the 2007 Convention, so if you go to the 2007 Convention tab, that goes to the
financial statement.

[The Treasurer's Reports are contained in Appendix B & C.]

2008 SALARY RESOLUTION

The Treasurer presented the 2008 Salary Resolution, as put forth by Bruce O'Neil, Chair of the
Personnel Practices Committee..

[The text of the 2008 Salary Resolution is contained in Appendix D.]

Laura Toepfer, Christ Church Alameda, noted that under resolve #2, "any deviation below these
.minimums will be permitted by the Bishop for serious cause" and wondered what serious cause
might be and also what will be done. in the case where diocesan minimum is not being met.
Bishop Marc responded that the Diocese would be vigorously addressing any place where the
minimum was not being met, and trying to find out why. Jim Forsyth stated that Sarah Crawford,
who does the payroll, has provided information about some clergy that are not being paid the
minimum and that's one of the things to review as quickly as possible to see what those
circumstances are and why the canons are not being followed.

Ted Thompson, Christ Church Alameda, asked for clarification about clergy who are not
working full time. Bishop Marc responded we have work to do in terms ofunder-employment
for our clergy; that this is a diocese with tremendous riches of talent, as many clergy are
employed in other fields —psychotherapist, teachers —and give their time as Priest Associates to
parishes; but the positions of associate clergy (paid) and lay professionals rarely get addressed,
and that needs serious thought in terms of justice across the Church.

Monrelle Williams, St. Augustine's Oakland. Noted that the resolution states, "Further Resolved,
That Years of Experience be defined by Credited Service with the Church Pension Fund." He..
asked if that means that service that has not been in the Episcopal Church will not be counted.
Jim Forsyth, Diocesan Controller, responded that the Resolution assumes that ordained clergy
register with the Church Pension Fund when they become ordained and their credited service is
tracked based on the records of the Pension Fund; and the situation where service is outside of
the Pension Fund and outside of the United States is an exception we didn't anticipate that and it
will have to be dealt with as a special situation. David Ota, St. Ambrose, asked if there could
there be an amendment to change the Church Pension Fund to Credited Service within the
Anglican Communion. Jim Forsyth responded that he didn't think so, because Credited Service
is a formula by the. [Episcopal Church] Pension Fund: [No amendment not moved.] David
Frangquist, St. Aidan's San Francisco, stated that it would be incumbent upon a vestry or
bishop's committee dealing with this situation to look at the total service, in whichever part of
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this Communion, and to treat that as equivalent in the. spirit of this resolution; and Bishop Marc
agreed.-

2008 Salary Resolution carried on a voice vote.

REPORT OF PROGRAM AND BUDGET

The Treasurer then asked Sue Thompson, President of Diocesan Council, and Jim Forsyth,
Controller, to present the Report of the Program and Budget Committee.

Jim Forsyth noted that he and Sue had been to all the deaneries to present the budget and that the
budget approved by Council for presentation to Convention reflects the input received at the
deaneries.

Sue Thompson emphasized that this year for the first time, Council took all the comments from
the various deanery meetings and had a second meeting looking at all of the proposed
expenditures and how we might blend them and work them constructively in light of the income
that we expected to receive.

Sue Thompson moved the adoption of the 2008 budget.

[The budget is contained in Appendix E.]

Laura Toepfer, Christ Church, expressed surprise at the disparity in the salaries especially
between the youth minister, youth and young adult chair, and faith formation chair, and other
members of the program staff, and she found it disturbing to see the big gap given this Diocese's
strong emphasis on youth and young adult and faith formation.

Another speaker [unidentified] commented that if we can only come up with $3,000 for
Evangelism, we're going to have a lot less to give later on, and_ requested some thought to more
Evangelism funding. [No amendment was moved.]

2008 Budget carried on a voice vote.

2008 ASSESSMENT FORMULA

Sue Thompson moved the adoption of the 2008 Assessment Formula, as follows:

1. 5%assessment on the first $58,764 of a parish or mission's operating income for 2006 as
defined on Line A of the 2006 parochial report:'

2. 20% assessment on all such income above $58,764 provided that,
3. No parish or mission shall have an increase over 2007's initial assessment before appeals of

more than 50% or $15,000, whichever is less.
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Chris Rankin-Williams, St. John's Ross, suggested that Assessment Formula should match the
Salary Resolution, because:the assessment figure is based on a Class A Congregation, with a
priest of minimum salary with 0-4 years of experience. He suggested having an adjustable figure
for the 5%assessment based on classification of congregation and experience of the primary
priest in that congregation, saying it seems only fair that a Class E Congregation with a priest
with 10 years of experience should be doing 5% on 84,881, not 58,764. [No amendment was
moved.]

Carried on a voice vote. .

RESOLUTION HONORING JAMES WALL

Jim Forsyth then offered the following courtesy resolution:

Whereas, Mr. James Wall has served God and the Diocese of California with great distinction as
Diocesan Treasurer for the last seven years; and

Whereas, Mr. Wall brought considerable financial expertise to that work; and

Whereas, Mr. Wall has served as an insightful and invaluable financial adviser to two bishops;
- the Board of Directors, the Diocesan Council, and the Controller; and

Whereas, 1VIr. Wall and his wife Ann have_ moved from the Diocese of California and settled in
Arroyo Grande; therefore be it

Resolved; That this 158 h̀ Convention of the Episcopal Diocese of California commends Mr.
James Wall and expresses its profound gratitude for his distinguished service as Treasurer; and
be it further

Resolved, That this 158' Convention of the Episcopal Diocese of California invokes the blessing
of God on Mr. Wall and his wife Ann, and wishes them continued good health and prosperity in
their continuing work for the glory of God.

Carried by acclamation.

REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE

Bishop Marc then called upon the Rev. Chad Smith, President of the Standing Committee, to
report on the activities of the Standing Committee for the past year.

Chad Smith: Good afternoon Bishop Marc and fellow delegates. This has been a very good and
productive year for the Standing Committee. It has been an honor to work closely with Bishop
Marc as his council advise during his first year as our Bishop. We the Standing Committee
recognize the great shifts that are going on within our Diocese regarding communication, the
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ability to let our light shine as the Diocese of California, the priorities of peace, justice, young
adults, congregational redevelopment and the environment. Much has happened this year
through Bishop Marc's leadership. We've taken a strong step in our desire for a companion
diocese. We have been encouraged by his leadership to stand for peace. We've been inspired by
his articulation of the great mystery of God's spirit that causes us to move from abusiness-only
diocese to one that is willing to dance together. Bishop Marc has reminded us that we are a
Church that is global in our friendships, as well as in our mission. Indeed the bushel has been
raised and our light is shining as a diocese. Please join me in thanking Bishop Marc for his
ministry among us as our bishop and chief pastor in this his first year as the Bishop of California.

The Standing Committee has been a part of us moving forward as a Diocese. If you look at the
written report in your convention materials in the tan section you received today, it is a summary
of our actions and it really just shows you some of the breadth of our work this year. As I began
to think of summarizing our work as Standing Committee, three words came to mind:
governance, self-examination and shared ministry.

Governance. At last year's Convention the Working Group and Steering Committee had recently
begun their work of researching and designing a new Governance structure. Today we on their
behalf present to you a Governance structure that increases internal communication and
transparency, thus a structure that creates a more effective system for mission. In the coming
months the Standing Committee will be drafting a transition plan to help us envision what may
lie ahead after May 10. You'll be hearing about that transition plan as I mentioned earlier at the
spring deanery meetings. We're proud of the work of the new Nominating Committee lead by
Martha Kuhlman and Anna McHargue. The effect of the Nominating Committee is already been
seen in -the increase in candidates for elected positions. Yet the Nominating Committee could
also be helpful as a resource bank to Bishop Marc for his appointments, the selection of board
members for our diocesan institutions, and the empowerment of COMAB, the Commission of all
the Baptized. We're just beginning to realize the help that an effect Nominating Committee
could be to our diocese.

Self-Examination. In the spirit of examining our processes, we have been working with Chris
Butler and members of the Commission on Ministry to clarify the roles of the Commission on
Ministry and the Standing Committee and the ordination process. In addition, the Standing
Committee has examined our own practices and made improvements so that we can be a more
and more effect Standing Committee for the Diocese. The members of the Standing Committee
are committed to this process of continued improvement.

Shared Ministry. This year marks the first time in memory that the Bishop of the Diocese of
California and the Standing Committee examined their common work in the spirit of
accountability and integrity. During that mutual ministry review we identified areas of focus for
the coming year. Some of those were: communication, especially regarding vision, our updated
diocesan misconduct policy, clarifying the role of the Standing Committee in the event of hiring
an Assistant Bishop, the role of the Standing Committee as the Bishop's Council of Advice. In
addition to our work in these areas of governance, self-examination and shared ministry, we
continue our responsibility of interviewing candidates for ordained ministry, reviewing and
approving lease agreements for congregations, serving as trustees of the Eastman Fund, and
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consenting or withholding consent for Episcopal elections. A note about the latter. In light of the
recent House of Bishops Meeting the members of the current Standing Committee committed not
to withhold consent based on one's sexual orientation for any candidate in any order of ministry
in this Church.

We are excited about the new spirit sparked by Bishop Marc that is moving in our Diocese. To
be more open in our communication and more outspoken on issues of justice, peace and the
environment. It has been a privilege to serve this Diocese as your Standing Committee this year.
Part of the perspective that one gains as a member of the Standing Committee is that ministry
happens because of all of you. Congregations, commissions, institutions, and diocesan-staff,
together we are becoming the Beloved Community.

REPORT OF THE DIOCESAN COUNCIL

Bishop Marc then called upon the Rev. Sue Thompson, President of the Diocesan Council, to
make the Diocesan Council report:

Sue Thompson: I started my report to you last year by saying this, Diocesan Council did much
of its work and laid many of its plans, fully aware that we were in the midst of significant
change. We discussed priorities in developing the budget, reminding ourselves that the new
Bishop might have totally different priorities. We considered programming questions tentatively
reserving final decisions until the new bishop amved. Well it's a year later, he's here and he is
no longer our new Bishop, he is simply our Bishop, and we recognize that blessing. I have
submitted a one page report to you which should be in today's updated documents and I trust you
to read it without reading it to you, but I do want to pull a couple of points out for you.

One is that Diocesan Council has responsibility for Program and Budget. That means that it's our
job to manage the budget that's current and to begin to develop the budget for the coming year as
we also work to develop priorities for programming and to make sure those two things are
congruent with.one another.

I also want to pull up for you what Chad raised about the Commission on the Ministry of all the
Baptized. It's a little known commission, I think but it has a very large work, and that is to raise
up, empower and to provide the training and support for all baptized persons to discern and claim
their ministries inside and out in the world, inside the church and outside. And as a part of our
effort to work on becoming a Beloved Community and a few less silos we have charged the
Commission on the Ministry of all the Baptized to develop and offer a meeting of all
departments, commissions, committees and any other body in this diocese to come together to
learn what each other does so that we can take care of any overlapping areas, some of which
became clear when we were working on the budget this year. There are lots of committees and
commissions that have grown up over the years and we haven't always been thorough in making
sure there's no overlap of responsibility and there's plenty enough to do without having more
than one group working on the same thing. So that meeting probably happen in January. You'll
be getting mail about that. If you are part of a commission or if you lead or chair a commission
or department please take that mail very seriously, please take our invitation very seriously. The
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more folks we can get there, the better chance we have for working collaboratively and creating
new places for new works.

The last thing I want to say before I finish is, I want to thank Ted Thompson and the Committee
who developed the Companion Diocese Resolution for this year. Council in its effort to fulfill a
Resolution from last year charged that group with doing exactly the work it did. I can not tell you
how much work and how quickly they accomplished that work to decide what the criteria were
going to be, what the process was going to be, and then to come back with a very cogent
recommendation and one specific place to begin, and I am deeply grateful for their work on
behalf of Council.

So given that, this is my last term on Council, so somebody else will be up here next year and it's
been a great privilege. I'm a former special educator and so Program and Budget is much more
important to me than personnel, it's probably .why ~I wound up on Council. But I want to
commend Council to you as a possibility for ministry if you have an interest in how program is
developed and managed in this Diocese and how the budget can support and reflect our
priorities.

REPORT ON THE COMPANION DIOCESE INITIATIVE

Sue Thompson then introduced the Rev. Ted Thompson to give a report on the Companion
Diocese Initiative.

Ted Thompson: Today I welcome also to the podium, Martin Juarez who will help me present
and I'd also like to extend the very kind recognition that Sue offered to members of the
Companion Diocese Committee, the list is long, so I'd like those who are present here today to
stand please.

Before us today is the question of whether we as a diocese will enter into a companion diocese
relationship with the Diocese of Curitiba in Brazil. I'd like to trace for you with Martin, the
discernment which brings us to this point, share a bit about Curitiba with you, and then conclude
with a few relevant recommendations. Last year, as we heard earlier today, Bishop Marc called
us as a diocese to explore companion relations with a diocese in the global South and a diocese
in Asia, and we resolved at Convention last year to begin that process. So a committee was
formed with the membership approved by Diocesan Council last spring, and the membership of
our committee was made with an effort toward deanery representation as well as expertise both
in the Global Church and the specific areas under consideration. The committee decided to begin
on two fronts at the same time, one to develop guidelines for discernment and also to survey our
diocese for what I would call current working relationships in Asia, Latin America and Africa.
Now you may have noticed just now that I added Africa. Early in the process under Bishop
Mares guidance, two important elements were clarified: first that we seek in fact amulti-
partnered circle of relationships rather than several one to one bi-lateral relationships, and
secondly that Africa is added now as an area of interest. We believe with Bishop Marc, that both
of these elements work toward a fuller manifestation of who we are as the Anglican Communion.
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I'll speak about the guidelines in a moment. As for the survey, it seemed important to begin our
discernment together as a diocese by appreciating relationships that our parishes and missions
already sustain abroad before beginning something new. Some of you will recognize this as a
step in Appreciative Inquiry Model of discernment. And I can tell you, I have to tell you actually,
that the reports that came back to us were inspiring. I had no idea what this diocese supports. We
support a diversity and depth of relationship around the world of which we can be proud. In fact
I'd like to ask you, if you are part of a parish or mission that does support such a relationship,
would you please stand. Thank you, thank you. Our thanks as a Committee go to all of you who
did report to the Committee and also to our Diocesan Department of World Missions for
collating the results into the report which you should have received today. I commend it to your
attention, perhaps it will lift your heart as it did. mine. And you may even find a connection that
will help your parish or mission in its work.

Now as for the guidelines, the Committee came up with eight which were reviewed and
approved by Council in May. I' 11 say a word of explanation about the first four, if I could have
the first of the slides, and on to the next one. We are seeking to establish mutual and
complimentary relationships, in other words as Bishop Marc said to Convention last year, and I
quote, "we would not operate so much as a dispenser of charity but rather as Christian partners in
mutual ministry, believing that our diocesan partners in Latin America and' Asia have wisdom to
give us, as we to them." I can tell you that this has been echoed again and again in our
discernment process in deaneries and one on one conversations. I think this is very much the
heart of how we want to enter into this relationship. The second guideline describes relationships
which will become a vehicle for a range of ministries but particularly the MDG work and youth
ministry. And we understand support of the Millennium Development Goals and Youth Ministry
to be part of the continuing and growing vision for the work of the Diocese and that .companion
diocese relationships should be a vehicle for both. The third guideline describes relationships
where a connection will create positive change for all involved. If you are following along on the
lavender sheet, you don't have to but if you are, you'll see some subcategories; "a" and "b",
these became important in our discernment, we wanted any new connection to create as much
real good as possible. I see some of you looking for that, if you don't have it in front of you it's
at the back of the pink section, it's a one page lavender sheet. This meant that there needed to be
enough Anglicans with whom to connect but also that we wanted to stay away from dioceses
where we felt our presence wouldn't add much. And fourth, fourth guideline, describes a

partnership in which we are open to multi-lateral rather than merely bi-lateral relations. We've
heard about this already, as part of Bishop Marc's vision for this. By the way this has been done
in other dioceses and it shapes our recommendations today.

Now the Committee created several recommendations one of which I need to state now for the
rest of our report to make sense. We recommend that amulti-lateral relationship with three other
dioceses be built sequentially, rather than all at once. In other words our diocese should establish
a relationship first with one diocese then engage in discernment with that diocese to pick another
and then repeat the process for a potential fourth partner. We think that this will encourage real
partnership rather than us being somehow on top of the whole thing and deciding who's going to
be in the circle and it also was important by way of timing to get started sooner rather than later.
All of this argues for building a circle of relationships one by one. But then we have the question,
"which diocese?"
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After establishing the guidelines, we began by narrowing the field we consulted with the
Episcopal Church's Desk Officers for these areas: Asia, Africa and Latin America. Did you
know that our Church has Desk Officers for these areas? I didn't before I started this process.
And then with Bishop Marc's help we combed through the list of dioceses within the Anglican
Communion which were in fact searching for a companion relationship; also a significant point
because there are some that might immediately come to mind, and it turns out that they weren't
all looking to be in such relationship. It's good to have your dating partner want to date you. And
then with a list of real possibilities in hand we formed subcommittees to explore each area in
more depth and at this point I would like to turn it over to Martin.

Martin Juarez: Well first of all I was part of the Latin America subcommittee. As Ted was
explaining we narrowed all of the decision to Latin America and specific to Brazil. You have at
your tables a handout with a title "Frequently Asked Questions about the Proposed Companion
Dioceses Resolution". What I'm going to do is read number two; "Why choose Curitiba?" The
Committee prayerfully considered many, many countries and dioceses before reaching consensus
to recommend the Diocese of Curitiba in the state of Parana in southern Brazil. Curitiba currently
has no companion diocese relationship. Curitiba has been actively seeking relationship within the
Anglican Communion and has proactively been self-relationship with the Diocese of California.
Curitiba is open to a multicultural relationship and to our sequential approach of building it. The
Diocese is committed to the Millennium Development Goals and to the environmental
sustainability. The Episcopal Anglican Church in Curitiba is energetic and growing. The
Brazilian Church as a whole has been very supportive of the election of Bishop Katherine in this
country and a substantial number of women priests serve in that province. Bishop Marc met the
Brazilian Primate in South Africa, has spoken with Bishop Gomes of Curitiba and is enthusiastic
about the opportunity to enter into relationship with the Diocese of Curitiba.

[At this point a slide show was presented, which the Diocese of Curitiba sent for the discernment
process.]

Ted Thompson: I'd like to conclude with just a few relevant recommendations. As we've said
already, we do recommend that the first partner in the multi-lateral relationship be the Diocese of
Curitiba in Brazil. We did have some strong contenders to suggest in Asia and Africa, but that
now needs to be for us to discern with our partner; should we go forward with this. Secondly we
recommend that a new committee be established or an existing one empowered to implement the
companion relationship. The Committee may or may not include members of the current
Initiative Committee as Bishop and Council choose, but we really believe there is value in
starting from scratch. To give people the freedom, give our Diocese the freedom to figure out
who needs to help us live into this relationship. And with this report the Committee considers the
formal work of itself completed. Lastly, the Committee recommends that a diocesan archive of
all materials relevant to the relationship be stored at Diocesan House both for future reference for
the work and also historical interest.

Ted Thompson then moved the adoption of the Companion Diocese Resolution.
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Resolution 8. Approval of a Companion Relationship
Between the Dioceses of California and Curitiba, Brazil

Resolved, that the ISSC" Convention of the Diocese of California endorses the formation of a
Companion Relationship between this diocese and the Diocese of Curitiba, beginning upon
approval of this resolution and subsequent ratification by Executive Council of the Episcopal
Church, and continuing until the 2012 Convention of the Diocese of California or until
terminated by mutual consent; and

Resolved, that the Diocesan Council, with the advice and consent of the Bishop of the Diocese of
California, be empowered to set up a representative Companion Relationship Commission to

implement this relationship, including the recruitment of persons and congregations in the

diocese to participate in this relationship.

During discussion, a questions were raised about the fact that although there are many Spanish

speakers in the Diocese, the people of Curitiba speak Portuguese, and if there are plans for some

of us learn to speak Portuguese. Ted Thompson responded that it was a major consideration, but

English is well understood there, and we understand that our Spanish speakers will be able to

understand Portuguese fairly well. He also noted that Bishop Marc has talked about the need for

us as a Diocese to prepare ourselves with at least some basic language training to be in this

relationship. Other speakers noted their bishop was raised in Ecuador and speaks Spanish as well

as Portuguese, and that Portuguese speakers also tend to understand Spanish.

Lauren Pifke, St. Anne's Fremont, asked if it is just up to us or if they get to vote on whether or

not they want us. Bishop Marc responded that they do, and the Executive Council of the
Episcopal Church has to approve as well.

Leslie Nipps, St. James Oakland, noted that Curitiba is famous. in new urbanism circles for being

a leadership city in the world for urban sustainability. Curitiba may be the greenest city on the

face of the planet. It's a place that San Francisco can learn from as well as we Episcopalians.

Mike Kobel, St. Matthew's San Mateo, asked what will be the frequency of exchange between

our dioceses and how will we do it. Ted Thompson responded that Bishop Marc has received an

invitation to travel to Curitiba at his earliest convenience. But we can't really plan out exactly

what is going to happen until we're in conversation with Curitiba. We tried to imagine what a

Companion Relationship could be, and it's as wide. as our diocesan life is here: certainly travel

by various kinds of groups, specific projects in cooperation, and connections we can sustain

through telecommunications.

Bishop Marc added that at the diocesan level we are planning to offer an intensive mission
preparation week each year that would include basic language introduction, but also the history
and culture of Brazil and especially the Anglican Province of Brazil and Curitiba. The mission

teams that go need to be well committed to the Millennium Development Goals Vision and
present themselves in terms of the Millennium Development Goals. So the question would be,

how does your the community present yourselves to another parish in Curitiba in terms of some

of the Millennium Development Goals, like universal primary education, and then invite each
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other, parish to parish, congregation to congregation, college ministry to college ministry, to be
in one-to-one relationships.

Carried on a voice vote.

RESULTS OF THE SECOND BALLOT (PARTIAL)

Bishop Marc called.upon the Secretary for announcements.

The Secretary announced the election results for the Standing Committee in the clergy order:
Nina Pickerrell was elected with 107 votes out of 377 total votes cast.

Bishop Marc declared the convention in recess until 2:45.

REPORT AND ACTION ON RESOLUTIONS

Bishop Marc called the Convention back to order at 3:00. He then called on the Rev. John
Kirkley to give the report of the Committee on Resolutions.

John Kirkley presented resolution #2 first because the proposer of that Resolution had a wedding
to get to. He then moved an amendment to add the following clause at the end of the resolve:
"and also exhort CPF to employee the Episcopal Church's Sudan Investment Screen in all future
investments."

Ted Thompson, Christ Church Alameda, asked what happens if the situation in Sudan is
resolved, since there's no end clause to the Amendment. Warren Wong responded that he
proposed the amendment, that he serves on the SRI Committee for the National Church, and if
the Church has in place this social screening on investments in Sudan and there's a change on
that, the National Church will remove the screen.

Amendment carried on a voice vote

Resolution 2. Sudan Divestment
[as amended]

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California urges the Executive Council to
exhort the Church Pension Fund (CPF} to divest all holdings of companies that are doing
business in Sudan from any retirement plan, directly or indirectly controlled by CPF; and also
exhort CPF to employ the Episcopal Church's Sudan Investments Screen for all further
investments.

Richard Helmer, Church of Our Savior Mill Valley, asked what the Anglican presence is in the
Sudan, and if we have had any conversation with them about what would be most effective.
Bishop Marc stated that there is an Anglican Church in. Sudan and there are many parts of the..
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Episcopal Church that are in direct relationship with the Dioceses in Sudan. Warren Wong then
referred to a memo written'to the SRI Committee from the international policy analyst in
Episcopal Church's government relations office saying that lobbying effort by non-Sudanese
groups for economic pressures can carry consequences for allied groups in the Sudan, as the `
government is prone to blame the local churches for actions of their partners in other countries,
especially the Episcopal Church. He also stated that the report says that economic sanctions
don't really put meaningful pressure on the government of Sudan because other lines of cash
have the ability to come into the country, particularly money through China. John Rawlinson, St.
James Oakland, stated that the Episcopal Church is very strong in Sudan; it has been the target of
bombings; there are huge numbers of refugees who are Anglicans; whole parishes have been
organized in refugee camps; four or five years ago the Sudan was- one of the fastest growing
parts of the Anglican Communion, so we are very profoundly involved in the refugee and war
problem in Sudan.

Resolution 2 carried on a voice vote.

The next item of business was Resolution 1.

- Resolution 1. Appointment of an Assistant Bishop

Resolved, That the 158 h̀ Convention of the Diocese of California hereby approves the creation of
the position of.Assistant Bishop and authorizes the Bishop of California to appoint a Bishop for ,
that position, whose appointment is subject to the consent of the Standing Committee of the
Diocese of California.

Brian Marion, St. John's Oakland, moved to refer Resolution 1, the proposed Appointment of an
Assistant Bishop, to the Diocesan Council for their consultation with the various deaneries and
rectors and to report back to Convention not later than May 1, 2008 on the suitability of
appointing an Assistant Bishop rather than electing aSuffragan.. -

After several speakers spoke on both sides of the motion to refer, the time keeper indicated that
time had expired. David Frangquist moved to extend the limits of debate by five minutes. The
motion failed on a voice vote.

The result of a voice vote on the motion to refer was uncertain. Bishop Marc called for a vote by
holding up voting cards. The Committee on Elections tallied the vote, and the. Secretary
announced the result: ayes 125, nays 205. The motion to refer failed.

Resolution 1 carried on a voice vote.

RESULTS OF THE 2~D BALLOT

The Secretary. then announced the remainder of the results of the second ballot.
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On the second ballot, 377 total votes were cast.

For Board of Directors, Mary Moore Gaines is elected with 258 total votes.

For Provincial Synod in the clergy order, Anna Lange-Soto is elected with 152 votes. In the lay
order for Provincial Synod, Carole Jan Lee is elected with 205 votes and Dianne Audrick
Smith is elected with 159 votes.

For General Convention in the clergy order, elected as full deputies are David Ota with 173
votes, Vanessa Glass with 166, and Barbara Bender Breck with 130. Elected as alternates:
first alternate is Sylvia Vasquez with 104, second alternate is Richard Helmer with 100, third
alternate is Kate Salinaro with 97, and the fourth alternate is John Eastwood with 85 votes.

For General Convention in the lay order, elected as full deputies are Rod Dugliss with 221 votes,
Sarah Lawton with 177, and Holly McAlpen with 146. Elected as alternates: first alternate is
Carolyn Gaines with 136 votes, second alternate is Liz Graves 123, third alternate is Kay
Bishop with 75, and fourth alternate is Barbara Smith Bisel with 64.

ACTION ON RESOLUTIONS (CONTINUED)

The next item of business was Resolution 3.

Resolution 3: Protection for Immigrants and Their Families

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California condemns the U.S.
government's singular focus on immigration enforcement without any corresponding reform to
allow undocumented aliens a reasonable opportunity to pursue permanent residency, and further
to condemn the mounting efforts at every level of society to remove all undocumented
immigrants from this country and to deprive undocumented immigrants of their livelihood,
Constitutional rights and human rights;

Resolved, That the Convention lauds the efforts of jurisdictions and organizations which act in
the spirit of Resolution A017 (passed by the 75th General Convention in June, 2006) and the
Resolution on Migration and Immigration Issues (passed by the 157th Convention of the Diocese
of California in October, 2006) in order to mitigate the suffering which is caused by the lack of
comprehensive immigration reform, and offers these jurisdictions and organizations support in
their efforts to treat undocumented immigrants with the respect and dignity due to every human
being;

Resolved, That the _Convention encourages wide participation by Episcopalians in educational
events and forums, such as those developed by the Diocesan Migration and Immigration Task
Force, to learn about the plight of immigrants, to listen to people's experiences of enforcement
and its impact on their lives and their families, to [earn about the root causes of migration, and to
discuss long-term solutions to the immigration crisis; and
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Resolved, That the Convention calls upon Episcopalians, including congregations, deaneries,
diocesan groups and individuals, to assist undocumented immigrants who find it impossible to
make a living and support their families, or who seek protection from detention and deportation,
by the provision of support such as shelter, material support, legal assistance, pastoral support,
and participation in the New Sanctuary Movement, and by visible expressions of solidarity
through participation in actions. such as vigils, fasts, marches, and advocacy campaigns for long-
term solutions to the crisis brought about by the need for reform to immigration policy.

John Grout, St. Paul's Burlingame, moved to amend the resolution by striking the phrase "and
participation in the New Sanctuary Movement" from the last resolve on the grounds that he
didn't think the Convention should be recommending activity that is at least civil disobedience
and may involve breaking of laws.

In response to a question to the Chancellor about the ramifications of including the New
Sanctuary Movement, the Chancellor stated he was not prepared to discuss the. obvious legal
issues that are raised.

The Amendment failed on a voice vote.

Resolution 3 carried on a voice vote.

The next item of business was Resolution 4.

Resolution 4. Compact Fluorescent Light Bulbs

Resolved, That the 158 h̀ Convention of the Diocese of California encourages each congregation
and diocesan institution with a building or buildings to change at least one light bulb to a
compact fluorescent light bulb by December 31, 2007;

Resolved, That each congregation; and diocesan institution encourage all of its members to
change at least one light bulb to a compact fluorescent light bulb by December 31, 2007; and

Resolved, What the Pacific Church -News report on the impact it would have on the environment
if every congregation and every Episcopal household changed one light bulb.

During discussion, some speakers raised concerns about this type of light bulb containing
mercury, whether they are recyclable, and the environmental effects. Other speakers stated that
there are disposal programs, with phone numbers given on the packaging and on web sites. Sally
Bingham stated that emissions from a power plant to power an incandescent bulb include lOmg
of mercury whereas a compact florescent light bulb contains 6mg of mercury, last ten times
longer than an incandescent bulb, and use 75%less electricity.

Resolution 4 carried on a voice vote.
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The next item of business was Resolution 5.

Resolution 5. The Five-Year Strategic Plan for Ethnic and Multicultural Ministries
in the Episcopal Diocese of California, 2008-2012

Resolved, That the 158th Diocesan Convention adopts the Five-Year Ethnic and Multicultural
Strategic Plan, concluding with the 163 d̀ Convention, to grow vigorous ethnic-specific;
multicultural, and multi-ethnic ministries by re-building vitality in our already existing
ministries; planting at least two vital, new ministries; fostering reconciliation to help heal the.
history of marginalization of these ministries; nurturing leadership for these ministries at every
level of the Diocese; and building advocacy and support for immigrant and indigenous
communities and all in need in the Bay Area;

Resolved, That the Convention commends the diocese in the establishment of a position of
Ethnic and Multicultural Missioner and calls upon the office of the Bishop to appoint and install
an incumbent by June, 2008, and make this position permanent;

Resolved, That the Diocese of California further implement General Convention Resolution A-
047 adopted in 2000, by requiring that all those studying for Holy Orders, Clergy in Training,
and clergy in transition receive anti-racism training, and that those heading these programs be
charged with ensuring such training is incorporated into their curricula;

Resolved, That the Diocese of California strongly recommends that all clergy of the Diocese, lay
professionals, and lay leadership of all committees throughout the Diocese attend at least
two successive sessions of anti-racism training in the next 5 years and that the Diocese continue
to discern ways to encourage adherence to this resolution; and

Resolved, That the Diocese explore developing intensive weeks of cultural. and linguistic
immersion in the Bay Area for lay and ordained leadership.

Resolution 5 carried on a voice vote.

The next item of business was the Resolution titled "Response to the House of Bishops'
Statement" (Resolution 9).

Resolution 9. Response to the House of Bishops' Statement

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California considers the statement made
by the House of Bishops at their September 2007 New Orleans meeting to be non-binding on
The Episcopal Church unless adopted by General Convention;

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California affirms the unanimous decision
of the Standing Committee to refuse to discriminate against partnered gay and lesbian bishops-
elect in the consent process as called for in General Convention 2006 resolution B033;

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California deplores the lack of access to
adequate pastoral care and liturgical rites for the lives of gay, lesbian, bisexual, and transgender
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people in most dioceses of The Episcopal Church, and the refusal of the majority of our bishops
to make provision for it, and calls upon the House of Bishops to publish guidelines for such care;

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California commends the House of
Bishops for its call to increase implementation of the Communion-wide listening process as a
real process of engagement, and calls upon the Presiding Bishop and her staff to develop such a
process within the Episcopal Church, recognizing that gay, lesbian; bisexual, and transgender
people continue to be marginalized in many parts of our Church;

Resolved, That the 158th Convention of the Diocese of California commends the House of
Bishops for its -call for the full participation of the Bishop of New Hampshire in the 2008
Lambeth Conference, and acknowledges the basic contradiction between support for Bishop
Robinson and the implementation of B033; and

Resolved, That the 158 h̀ Convention of the Diocese of California commends the House of
Bishops for its support for the civil rights, safety, and dignity of gay and lesbian persons, and
calls upon the General Convention to work to resolve speedily and justly the basic contradiction
between such support in civil society and, the absence of such support within the Church's own
pastoral and sacramental life.

Resolution 9 carried on a voice vote.

Since Resolution 9 had been taken up out of order, the next item of business was Resolution 6.

Resolution 6. Liturgical Covenanting, Blessing, and Sending Forth of
Couples in Committed Same-Gender Relationships

Resolved, That the 158 h̀ Convention of the Episcopal Diocese of California commends to the
Bishop of California the lectionary, rubric entitled "Concerning the Service," and three rites
endorsed by the Commission on Marriage and Blessing, and urges the Bishop to approve the trial
use of these forms as resources in the Diocese of California for formalizing the blessing of same-.
gender unions.

This Resolution 6 carried on a voice vote.

ORGANIZATION OF STANDING COMMITTEE

The Secretary announced that the Standing Committee had met and elected the following
officers for the coming year:

Secretary: Paul Evans
Vice President: David Frangquist
President: Stacy Grossman.
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MARGARET WOSSER AWARD

Bishop Marc then recognized the Rev. Richard Schaper, Director of Planned Giving, to
announce the Margaret Wosser Award.

Richard Schaper: This year there were four congregations who were finalist for the Margaret
Wosser Award for progress in Planned Giving. Those four congregations were: St. Mary the
Virgin in San Francisco, Resurrection, Pleasant Hill, St. Stephen's, Belvedere and St. Stephen's,
Orinda. All of these congregations have established their own Parish Legacy Societies now and
are growing them. And the winner this year is the Episcopal Church of the Resurrection, Pleasant
Hill. In my experience the key difference is always that a lay person takes on getting this work
done in the parish. And at Resurrection it was Dick Woodman who has done this for several
years. It's with great pleasure that I present the 2007 Wosser Award to the Episcopal Church of
the Resurrection, Pleasant Hill.

REPORT FROM PROVINCE VIII

Bishop Marc then recognized the Rev. Jack Eastwood, President of Province VIII.

Jack Eastwood: I want to share with you the greetings of the Province to our Convention here
and our Diocese and I'd like to say a few words about the Province, because we have elected
three representatives to the Tri-annual Synod. The date is yet to be set but it will likely be before
General Convention in Anaheim. So I'd like to just say a few words about what the Province is
so that as you elect representatives every three years, you have a better idea of what the Province
is about.

As you may know there are nine Province in the Episcopal Church. But Province VIII is by far
the largest in geographical population with over 900 congregations and among 17 dioceses and
one area mission called Navajo Land. Province VIII includes the Episcopal Diocese in the states
of Washington, Oregon, Idaho, California, Nevada, Utah, Arizona, Hawaii, Taiwan and Navajo
Land Area Mission, which is parts of Utah, Arizona and Texas.

Our work as a Province is defined by our mission statement which is "The Episcopal Church in
Province VIII is called by God to serve the dioceses and' area mission by bringing together the
diverse peoples and cultures of the mountains, deserts, islands and coasts of Province VIII and
sharing the Pentecost vision of unity. We will do together in faith what we can not do alone."

Our tri-annual synod is required to elect provincial representatives to the PB's Council of
Advice, the National Executive Council, the CDSP Board of Trustees, the Episcopal Life Board,
and the Provincial Quarter Review. The Synod also oversees a variety of ministries in our
dioceses and those ministries are formed into Provincial networks. Between meetings of the
Synod, that work is supported and reviewed by the Provincial Executive Committee, consisting
of the officers of the Province and three program leaders called Cluster Chairs. The Province is a
creative partnership of resources for diocesan leaders in various areas of ministry from
stewardship, to education, to anti-racism, to faith in the environment, to women's ministries. 21

39
DioCal 004506



Provincial networks all together gathered into three clusters. We hold annual convocations and
workshops for diocesan leaders and some of our leaders here in California are active in
organizing these events. Through such conferences we are able to bring the best practices in all
the areas of the Church's ministry together to educate, train, refresh, support leaders in these
areas of ministry.

Some of our work has been in developing cultural sensitivity in the formation process towards
ordination in collaboration with CDSP. The Union of Black Episcopalians and leaders in
economic justice will have a conference in Oakland next February. Native American leadership
around the Province, including our area mission Navajo Land, gathers this year in meetings and
training and has a three year grant for developing a curriculum in Native American spirituality. A
women in ministry conference was recently held at the Mercy Center in Burlingame. So through
these events Province VIII continues with a New Testament purpose of keeping our churches in
touch with each other to work together to spread the Gospel.

CONFIRMATION OF BISHOP'S APPOINTMENTS

Bishop Marc announced his appointments to the Personnel Practices Committee:
Bruce O'Neill, Bruce Bearden, Christopher Butler, Joan Clerk, Sarah Crawford ,Jim
Forsyth, David Lawson, Thomas Matthews, Jeannie Thomas;

and to the Commission on Ministry for the Ordained:
class of 2008: Jane Brooks, Carl Zachrisson, Martin Juarez,
class of 2009: Georgene Keeler, Paul Burrows, David Lui,
class of 2010: Pamela Clare Magers, Kenneth Schmidt, and Clinton Williams,
class of 2011: Shelley Chesley, Sally Mancini, and Joanne Sanders.
Hailey McKeefry Delmas will replace Paul Burrows on December 31, 2007.

The Secretary moved that the Convention confirm the Bishop's Appointments.

Carried on a voice vote.

Bishop IV~arc also reappointed Bill Orrick as Chancellor.

A motion to adjourn was carried on a voice vote.

Bishop Marc declared the 158t" Convention of the Episcopal Diocese of California to be
adjourned.

Respectfully submitted;
David A. Frangquist
Secretary of the Convention
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APPENDIX A

RULES OF ORDER
FOR THE CONVENTION OF THE DIOCESE OF CALIFORNIA

Before Convention

Section 1 -Procedure for Resolutions

1.1 Any resolution to be considered by the Convention, other than those necessary matters of
procedure and business of the Convention, must be received by the Chair of the Resolutions
Committee at least ninety (90) days prior to the opening of Convention. Resolutions may be
submitted by any cleric or lay delegate eligible to vote at the Convention, or by any parish;
mission, or other officially recognized diocesan organization. Included on the copy of the
proposed resolution shall be the name and address of the proposer of the resolution.

In the case of resolutions submitted by an organization, the resolution shall state the name of the
Rector, Vicar, Chair, or other person duly authorized by that organization to respond to questions
and accept amendments to such resolutions.

It shall be open to other persons or organizations to be listed as supporters of a resolution.

1.2 The Committee on Resolutions shall meet not less than seventy-five (75) days prior to the
opening of Convention to consider resolutions submitted in timely fashion. The Committee may
make such editorial changes as may appear necessary for accuracy or clarification. Substantive
changes in resolutions shall not be made without the consent of the proposer. However, at its
option, the Committee may make suggestions. or recommendations concerning resolutions, which
may be incorporated in the pre-Convention materials furnished to the Deaneries.

Copies of all resolutions, in their original form, or as modified by the Resolutions Committee
shall be filed with the Secretary of Convention and .shall be included in the pre-convention
materials distributed to the six deaneries.

1.3 The several Deanery meetings at which such resolutions are considered shall be open to all
interested persons. Advance written notice of the time, date and place of the meeting of such
Deanery shall be given by the Deanery Secretary to the proponents of the'resolution and to other
interested persons who have in writing requested such notice. It shall be open to the presiding
officer at the Deanery meetings to call for a straw vote, if desired, on resolutions after
appropriate discussion, but such vote shall not be binding on persons present who shall be
entitled to vote at the Convention.

1.4 The Committee on Resolutions shall submit no more than five (5) resolutions to the
Convention for its consideration. This rule shall not apply to
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a) routine or incidental motions required by the Canons or Rules of Order, including action on
the budget and assessment formula;

b) resolutions proposed by the Committee on the Bishop's Address;

c) courtesy resolutions;

d) proposed changes to the Constitution and Canons; except that if the Committee on Dispatch
of Business determines that such proposed changes are sufficiently substantive as to require
significant debate, then the proposed changes shall count as one resolution and the
Committee on Resolutions shall submit no more than four (4) resolutions.

1.5 Any proposed resolution that does not meet the foregoing criteria may be considered by the
Convention only upon the affirmative vote oftwo-thirds (2/3rds) of those present and voting in
Convention. If the Convention agrees to consider a resolution, it shall be referred by the Chair to
the Committee on Resolutions or other appropriate Committee of Convention. -

1.6 Any proposed amendments to a resolution may be filed with the Secretary of the Convention
on or before the opening of Convention, and shall promptly be referred by the Chair to the
Committee on Resolutions or other appropriate committee.

1.7 Any resolutions submitted to the Committee on Resolutions and not submitted to the
Convention, unless withdrawn, shall be identified by the Committee in its report. The report shall
include the name or subject of each resolution, the names) of the proposer(s), and the reason it
was not submitted to the Convention.

During Convention

Section 2 -Order of Business

Both the Annual and Special Conventions shall open with divine worship, at which service the
Bishop may read an address. Following the service, the President shall take the chair, after which
the Order of Business shall be as follows:

2.1 A quorum being present, the President shall declare the Convention organized for business.

2.2 The Convention having been organized, the President may yield the chair to the Chairman of
Convention elected or appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Canons.

2.3 The appointment of Assistant Secretaries.

2.4 The report of the Chair of the Committee on Credentials on-the status of clerical and lay
delegates to the Convention. Any contested right or claim to a seat in the case of a cleric, and any
irregular or doubtful certificates in the case of delegates, shall be referred to the committee on
Credentials.
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2.5 Report of the Committee on Dispatch of Business. Subsequent reports of this committee may
be made at the discretion of the Chair.

2.6 The appointment by the President of any Committee of the Convention not previously
appointed under provisions of the Canons, the filling of any vacancies resulting from absence or
other causes, and the entry in the minutes of the names of those comprising the Committees
previously appointed.

2.7 Report of the Committee on Admissions.

2.8 Report of the Committee~on Nominations and further nominations from the floor for all
offices, committees and boards to be elected by the Convention.

2.10 Introduction of matter for the consideration of committees and reference to the same.

2.10 Report of the Committee on Canons.

2. i 1 Report of the Treasurer of the Diocese, including the report of the audit of the Treasurer's
Books.

2.12 Report of the Diocesan Council, including the presentation of the Program and Budget of
the Diocese for the coming year.

2.13 Reports of Special Committees appointed at previous conventions or by the President.

.2.14 Report of the Committee on Resolutions.

2.15 Report of the Standing Committee of the Diocese, and of all other officers, boards and
committees of Convention.

2.16 Appointment of Chancellors, legal counsel,. Registrar, members of the Commission on
Ministry, and other appointive positions.

2.17 Miscellaneous business.

Section 3 -The Business of Convention

3.1 All elections shall be conducted in accordance with Canon VII and these Rules.

3.2 All Special Committees shall be appointed by the President, unless otherwise ordered.

3.3 The reports of all Committees shall be in writing, and shall be received in course without
motion for acceptance. They shall be included in the Journal of Convention, unless otherwise
ordered. If recommending or requiring any action or expression of opinion by the Convention,
they shall be accompanied by a resolution, or resolutions, for the consideration of Convention.
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3.4 The prescribed Order of Business shall not be departed from, nor shall any Rule of Order be
suspended, unless by a vote of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the members present.

3.5 No Order of Business shall be changed or rescinded except by vote of Convention.

3.6 An Alternate Delegate may not vote or have voice in Convention, unless and until certified
by the Committee on Credentials as a substitute for a Delegate.

3.7 Following the close of Convention, the President of Convention, the Chair of Convention,
and the Secretary of Convention are authorized to certify the minutes of the Convention for
publication.

3.8 The courtesy of seat and voice shall be granted to Deanery Presidents, Chairs of Departments
and Commissions, and representatives of special projects for the purpose of explaining their
work and responding to questions.

Section 4 -Parliamentary Procedure

4.1 No principal motion, amendment thereto, or substitute therefor, shall be acted upon by the
Convention until duly seconded and submitted in writing. No amendment or substitute shall be
finally adopted until the same be read to the house.

4.2 When a question is before the Convention, no motion, except as hereinafter provided, shall ,
be received, but to lay on the table, to move the previous question, to limit debate, to postpone to
a certain time, to commit, to amend or to postpone indefinitely, which motions shall have
precedence in the order named.

4.3 All amendments shall be considered in the order in which they are received. When a
proposed amendment is under consideration, a motion to amend the same may be made; no
further amendment to such second amendment shall be in order.

4.4 A motion to lay on the table shall always be decided without debate.

4.5 A motion to adjourn shall always be in order, when no member is speaking.

4.6 The person who has made a motion or moved a resolution may withdraw the same, without
the consent of the seconder, at any time before the decision or amendment, in which case it shall
not be entered upon the minutes.

4.7 If a question under debate contains several distinct propositions, the same shall be divided, at
the request of any member, and a vote taken separately on each division thereof.

4.8 The votes shall be taken by ayes and nays. On any single question each member of
Convention shall have one vote. No vote shall be taken by Orders unless so prescribed by the_
Constitution and Canons.
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4.9 Any member whose character or motives may have been attacked or questioned in debate
shall have the right to speak to a question of personal privilege.

4.10 A question that has been decided shall not be reconsidered during the same session except
when significant circumstances can be adduced to support reconsideration. No question shall be
reconsidered more than once. In a motion to reconsider a resolution or motion previously
adopted, the reconsideration of said action shall be preceded by the reading by the Secretary of
the resolution as recorded in the minutes of the Convention.

4.11 All questions of order shall be determined in the first instance by the Chair, but any member
may appeal from any decision of the Chair; and on such appeal no member shall speak more than
once without leave of the Convention.

4.12 During all debates the Chair shall call alternately upon those wishing to speak for and
against the question, so long as there are those both pro and con who wish to speak.

4.13 After having spoken to it, the proponent of a motion may respond to questions of
clarification from the floor before debate begins.

4.14 Prior to any matter coming before the Convention, the Committee on Dispatch of Business
may introduce resolutions limiting the time allotted for its consideration and debate.

4.15 A motion to caucus will always be in order, even after debate on a question has terminated.
The motion is not debatable. Should it be carried by a majority, the Chair will set the time
allotted for the caucus.

4.16 In circumstances not covered by these Rules, the rules contained in the current edition of
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall apply.

Section 5 -Nominations

5:1 Under the proper order of business, the Committee on Nominations shall propose two or
more names, if possible, otherwise only the number required for a specific office. Nominations
may be made from the floor at that time. No seconds are required. In placing a name in
nomination, the following are required: 1) the name and position held by the person being
nominated; 2) prior consent given by the individual to be placed in nomination; and 3)
biographical material prepared and distributed.

5.2 Upon completion of nominations, the Committee on Elections shall print and furnish the
Convention with sufficient ballots containing the names of all persons nominated for each office
requiring an election. The clergy and lay ballots shall be distinguished by paper of different
colors, identified with the name of the office; except that if automated vote-counting equipment
is employed and the manufacturer does not supply ballots of different colors, then paper of the
same color may be used, provided that the name of the order is printed on each ballot using a
font of 24 points or greater.
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5.3 The Secretary shall provide the registrars or tellers with a voting list, in the Order for which
they are registrars or tellers, corrected to show those entitled to vote. The registrars or tellers
shall provide ballots to voters only after checking the names of the voters on the voting list.

5.4 If the number of names nominated does not exceed the number required for each office, the
ballot for that office may, by unanimous consent, be cast by the Secretary.

Section 6 -Conduct of Elections

6.1 The polls shall be opened in a convenient place, at an hour and for a period fixed by the
Convention. When the time for voting expires, the Chair of the Committee on Elections shall .
declare the polls closed and the tellers shall proceed to count the vote.

6.2 Each voter shall vote by making a check mark or a cross opposite the name of the nominee
for each position to be filled, on a single ballot for the appropriate office; except that if
automated vote-counting equipment is employed, the mark shall be as specified by the
manufacturer.

6.3 In tallying, the following ballots shall not be counted:

a) if two or more ballots are folded together, unless the extra ballot or ballots are entirely blank;

b) if more than the specified number of persons receive votes on any one ballot.

The reason for not tallying shall be endorsed on the reverse side of any such ballot by the teller.
Such uncounted ballots shall be included in the appropriate envelope for the vote and office
concerned.

6.4 Any doubtful ballot shall be referred to the Chair before tallying it, and the Chair's decision
shall be final.

6.5 The Secretary shall provide each set of tellers with a tally sheet or sheets, properly headed
and numbered. Each tally sheet shall have the name of each person for whom votes are to be
cast, and all votes shall be registered only on that tally sheet. The tellers shall be the only persons
to record the votes on the tally sheets. If done by any other person, the votes shall be void.

6.6 The Committee on Elections may, with the consent of the President and Secretary, employ
automated vote-counting equipment to canvass the ballots. No voting machine or electronic
voting system shall be employed which does not use individual physical ballots marked
personally by the members of Convention. The Secretary shall provide the tellers with vote result
forms in lieu of tally sheets, and the tellers shall transcribe the results displayed or printed by the
equipment to the vote result forms. At least three tellers shall observe and verify the transcription
of each result. If the equipment provides a printed result, it shall be attached to the vote result
form.
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6.7 Immediately after canvassing the ballots, the tellers shall place them in separate envelopes
for each office and shall endorse on the outside of each envelope the following: ,

a) the office for which they were cast;

b) whether they were ballots of the Clerical or Lay Order;

c) the number of counted ballots inside, and if the vote did not result in an election;

d) whether it is the first or other ballot for the office;

e) the number of any ballots not tallied.

6.8 Each envelope shall be signed by the several tellers and delivered to the Secretary. In
separate envelopes, the tellers shall place the voting lists of the two Orders, properly endorsed,
with the number of the ballot for which they were used. The envelopes shall remain unsealed
until the close of that day's .proceedings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to provide suitable
envelopes for these purposes and to see that they are returned with the ballots properly endorsed
and sealed, and to keep them unopened, except as provided in Rule 6.9.

6.9 If the accuracy of the canvass by the tellers in any election should be questioned, the same
may be recanvassed on written request of two clerics and two lay persons, addressed to the
Bishop. Upon such request the ballots shall be recanvassed in the presence of the Bishop, the
Standing, Committee and the Secretary of Convention, as soon as may be convenient, either
before or after adjournment of Convention. Their findings shall be final.
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Independent Auditors' Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THE EPISCOPAL CHURCH IN THE
DIOCESE OF CALIFORNIA

San Francisco, California

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of THE EPISCOPAL .
CHURCH IN THE DIOCESE OF CALIFORNIA (the Diocese) as of December 31, 2006,
and the related statements of activities and cash flaws for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Diocese's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements._ An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California as of
December 3 ], 2006, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited the. adjustments described in Note 15 that were applied to restate the
2005 financial statements to correct an error. In our opinion, such adjustments are
appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply
any procedures to the 2005 financial statements of the Diocese other than with respect to the
adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance
on the 2005 financial statements taken as a.whole.

August 29, 2007
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The Episcopal Church in the

Diocese of California

Statement of Financial Position

1 11_u 1~i

December 31, 2006

Asset:

Operating

Custodial and

Unexpended

Income

.Endowment

and Trust

Deferred

Gifts Total All Funds

Cash and cash equivalents $ 424,060 $ 243,465 $ 667,525

Receivables, net 1,314,897 $ 44,413 351,597 1,710,907

Investments in securities 18,473,]86 18,473,186

Other investment 100,000 100,000

Notes receivable held for

investment, net 58,000 198,167 256,167

Pledge receivable 306,640 306,640

Equity interests in real property 151,500 4,009,451 4,160,951

Property and equipment, net 754,092 754,092

Investments -charitable

remainderunitrusts $ 16,120,604 16,120,604

Due to/from other funds 317,754 906,473 (1,224,227) 0

Total assets $ 2,810,803 $ 1,160,386 $ 22,458,279 $ 16,120,604 $ 42,550,072

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and

accrued expenses $ 688,660 $ 4,000 $ 12,095 $ 704,755

Accounts payable, related parties 215,205 235,000 5,028,750 $ 245,230 5,724,185

Deferred revenue 135,107 135,107

Funds held in trusts for

beneficiaries 13,124,324 13,124,324

Total liabilities 1,038,972 239,000 5,040,845 13,369,554 19,688,371

Net Assets:

Unrestricted ] ,649, 156 1,;314,569 2,963,725

Unrestricted-board designated 122,675 122,675

Total unrestricted 1,771,831 1,314,569 3,086,400

Temporarily restricted 921,386 12,243,934 306,736 13,472,056

Permanently restricted - 3,858,931 2,444,314 6,303,245

Total net assets 1,771,831 921,386 17,417,434 2,751,050 22,861,701

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,810,803 $ 1,160,386 $ 22,458,279 $ 16,120,604 $ 42,550,072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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The Episcopal Church in the

Diocese of California

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Support and Revenue:

Parish and mission assessments

Gifts, grants and other

Investment income, net

Interfund transfer

Operating

$ 3,525,939

455,382

37,807

59,099

Custodial and

Unexpended

Income

'

Endowment

and Trust

$ 237,203

(59,099)

Deferred

Gifts Total All Funds

$ 3,525,939

455,382 .

275,010

-

Total support and revenue 4,078,227 178,104 4,256,331

Expenses:

Episcopate 417,742 417,742

Diocesan finance 376,913 376,913

Diocesan administration 828,022 828,022

Clerical 206,636 206,636

Support services-Diocese 173,393 173,393

Support services-outside Diocese 809,358 809,358

Planned giving office 183,262 183,262

Mission development 369,896 369,896

Ordained ministry dcvclopment 88,262 88,262

Congregation and lay ministries dcvclopment 388,574 388,574

Social ministries 74,254 74,254

Community Ministries 405,709 405,709

Jubilate Deo 265,298 265,298

Payments to beneficiaries and other custodial

fund disbursements 929.992 929,992

Total expenses 5,517,31 I 5,517,311

Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets (1,439,084) 178,104 (1,260,980)

Changes in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Gifts, grants and other $ 216,064 5,000 $ 64,81 I 285,875

Investment income, net 176,486 1,523,020 1,699,506

Intcrfund transfer 144,665 (144,665)

Change in temporarily restricted net assets 537,215 1,383,355 64,81 I 1,985,381

Change in Permanently Restricted Net Assets:

Gifts, grants, and other 245,000 247,089 492,089

Intcrfund transfer 256,660 (256,660)

Change in permanently restricted net assets 501,660 (9,571) 492,089

Net Assets Released from Restrictions 918,360 (447,590) (470,770)

Change in Net Assets (520,724) 89,625 1,92,349 55,240 1,216,490

Net Assets, beginning ofycar 2,292,555 831,761 15,825,085 3,45!,375 22,400,776

Priorperiodadjustmcnt (755,565) (755,565)

Vet Assets, beginning ofycar, as restated 2,292,555 831,761 15,825,085 2,695,810 21,645,211

Net Assets, end ofycar
$ 1,771,831 $ 921,386 $ 17,417,434 $ 2,751,050 $ 22,861,701

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 3
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The Episcopal Church in the

Diocese of California

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Change in net assets $ 1,216,490
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activites:

Depreciation 59,956
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (1,501,473)
Change in charitable remainder unitrusts (87,005)
Change in allowaxice for doubtful accounts (3,115)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables (255,305)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 221,218
Increase in accounts.payable, related party 744,746
Decrease in deferred revenue (66,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities 329,512

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments. (4,095,010)
Proceeds from sale of investments 5,548,783
Principal payments received on notes receivable held for investments 212,813
Purchases of property and equipment (126,233)
Issuance of new notes receivable held for investment (58,000)
Purchase of investment in equity interest in real property (3,286,688)

Net cash used by investing activities (1,804,335)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,474,823)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 2,142,348

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year
$ .667,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

a. Organization '

The Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California (the Diocese) is a nonprofit entity that
administratively supports Episcopal parishes and other ancillary institutions throughout
the San Francisco Bay Area in the State of California.

b. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities, including deferred revenue. The principles of "fund accounting" are utilized in
order to provide amore detailed accountability for the funds entrusted to the
Organization:

c. Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the
Organization is required. to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets:

Unrestricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets that is neither temporarily restricted nor
permanently restricted by donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily . Restricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets whose use by the
organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of~
time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the organization.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets whose use by the
organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of
time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the organization.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the .Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include tithe
deposits and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or
less.

5
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

e. Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts due to the Diocese from parishes that are within the
Diocese of California and represent assessments, reimbursable expenses, and other
receivables. The Diocese records bad debts using the allowance method. Subsequent to
year-end, the Department of Missions, a department within the Diocese, has granted
payroll relief of $19,000 to various parishes. Thus, an allowance has been created as of
December 31, 2006 for this amount.

f. Investments

g•

Investments are carried at fair value, with 'realized. and unrealized gains and losses
reflected in the statement of activities. The fair value of investments is based on quoted
market price and such investments are subject to market fluctuations.

Notes Receivable Held for Investment

Notes receivable held for investment consists of notes to several churches and an
individual. The notes bear interest at rates ranging from 0% - 8% and are due through
2016. The notes are secured by property or unsecured and are recorded net of an
allowance related to interest accruals.

h. Equity Interest in Real Property

Equity interest in real property consists of amounts funded by the Diocese for the
purchase of property by related parties. The Diocese has an equity interest in the
property for the amount of the purchase price funded by the Diocese. This interest is
recorded at cost.

i. Property and Equipment

J~

Purchased property and equipment is recorded at cost. Donated property is valued at fair
value at time of donation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives (five to thirty years) of the related assets. Maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred. Significant betterments and renewals are capitalized.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of assessments, payroll, and benefits received from parishes in
advance of the period to which they relate.

k. Recognition of Support and Revenue

Current year parish and mission assessments have been .prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

6
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The Episcopal Church in the-
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Gifts and grants are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give
to the Diocese. Donor-restricted gifts and grants are reported as increases in 'temporarily
or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets.

Investment income is recognized as revenue when earned. Investment income earned on
permanently restricted net assets is recorded as an increase or decrease in temporarily
restricted net assets unless specifically restricted as permanent by the donor.

1. Income Taxes

The Diocese is a tax exempt organization under the provision of the Internal Revenue
Code, Section 501(c)(3), and the related state provisions. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been reflected in these financial statements. 1

m. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenue and expenses .during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Description of Funds:

a. Operating Fund

This fund is used to account for all expenditures related to unrestricted support and
revenue. It also accounts for all assets and liabilities of the Diocese which have not been
restricted: However, the Board of Directors of the Diocese has set aside certain donor
unrestricted funds for certain designated uses. These funds are included in the operating
fund as board designated.

b. Custodial and Unexpended Income Fund

This fund is used to account for gifts and grants designated for specific projects or
programs by donors.

7
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

c. Endowment and Trust Fund

This fund is used to account for assets contributed by donors which are subject to various
restrictions. The Diocese is responsible to assure that distributions be made in accordance
with the provisions of each trust.

d. Deferred Gifts Fund

This fund is used to account for funds held in trust and administered by the Diocese, the
income of which is payable to individual beneficiaries. Income earned but not paid to
beneficiaries is treated as a liability, which is included with "Funds Held in Trust for
Beneficiaries". Upon the expiration of the income beneficiaries' interest, the principal.
will be distributed in accordance with the conditions prescribed by the Charitable
Remainder Unitrust agreements. Any principal that will ultimately be distributed to third
party beneficiaries has been recorded as a liability, "Funds Held in Trust for
Beneficiaries." The remainder is distributable to the Diocese and is stated at the estimated
present value, which is calculated based on the actuarial life expectancy of the donor or
designees. The discount rate used, ranging between 5% and 6.5%, approximates the ~30
year U.S. Treasury Bond rate in the year of origination.

Note 3 - Receivables:

Receivables consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Receivables $ 256,012
Assessments 19,000
Reimbursable expenses from related entities net of allowance 1,039,947
Endowment receivables 351,597
Other receivables . 63,351

$ 1,710,907

Note 4 - Pledge Receivable:

The pledge receivable is from one donor in the amount of $306,640 and was paid in full
subsequent to year-end.

8
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5 - Investments:

The fair value of investments at December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Government obligations
Corporate equity

Fair Value

$ 3,050,972
15,522,214 

$ 18,573,186

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2006 consists of the following:

Interest and dividends, net of management fees of $41,368
Realized gains and losses
Unrealized gains and losses

$ 680,520
1,159,102
134,894

$ 1,974,516

Investment income is included in:
Unrestricted net assets $ 275,010
Temporarily restricted net assets 1,699,506

$ 1,974,516

Note 6 - Charitable Remainder Unitrusts:

The Diocese is the trustee for various charitable remainder unitrusts, which have been
invested. .These investments represent gifts received subject to certain restrictions on the
distribution of income and the assets of the unitrust. The unitrust agreements specify the
beneficiaries of the income and the assets.

The charitable remainder unitrust agreements provide for annuity payments to donors of 5%
to 10%. The Diocese records this investment at fair market value. The estimated liability is
based upon the annuity payments and donor life expectancy using a discount rate of 5% to
6.5%and is classified as funds held intrust for beneficiary.
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

The investments in charitable remainder unitrusts consist of the following at December 31,
2006:

Fair Value

Funds, including notes receivable of $131,25.0 $ 16,120,604
Less funds held in trust for beneficiaries (13,124,324)
Less accounts payable to related party (245,230)

$ 2,751,050

Note 7 - Notes Receivable Held for Investment

Notes receivable held for investment consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Note receivable from Episcopal Church of the Redeemer and Redeemer
Pre-School; bearing interest at 6%; principal and interest due through
January 2014; secured. by Episcopal Bishop of California property. $ 179,581

Note receivable from St. Augustine Episcopal Church; bearing interest at _ _ _ 

__ 

__

6%; principal and interest due through July 2007; secured by a Deed of
Trust. 18,683

Note receivable from individual; bearing interest at 8%; principal and
interest due when certain secured property is sold. 51,408

Note receivable from St. James Episocpal Church, Oakland; bearing
interest at 0% and due in 2016. 58,000

Less valuation allowance relating to interest accruals (51,505)

$ 256,167 

10
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- The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8 - Equity Interests in Real Property:

Equity interests in real property, which are recorded at cost, consist of the following at
December 31, 2006:

45% equity interest in real property owned by the Executive Officer of
the Diocese

31 %equity interest in real property owned by the Culmers
22% equity interest in real property owned by the Mission Clergy
23%equity interest in real property owned by the Mission Clergy
50% equity interest in real property owned by the former Bishop
100% equity interest in real property for current Bishop

$ 249,661
160,000
i 00,000
51,500

927,500
2,672,290

$ 4,160,951

Note 9 - Property and Equipment:

At December 31, 2006, property and equipment consisted of the following:

Diocesan House
S. F. Campus Center partial interest
Computers/server
Other furniture and equipment
Toyota Prius 

Less accumulated depreciation

$ 998,194
30,000
14,969
46,209
27,108

1,116,480
(362,388)

$ 754,092

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $59,956.

Note 10 - Line of Credit:

The Diocese. has an unsecured line of credit agreement with a bank under which it may
borrow up to $500,000. The line of credit bears interest at the .prime rate and expires on
October 12, 2008. No outstanding borrowing existed at December 31, 2006.

11
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11- Net Assets: '

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for specific purposes as of December 31, 2006.

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incumng expenses satisfying the purpose
of the restriction for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Permanently restricted net assets are invested in perpetuity, with the income available to
support the programs of the Diocese as of December 31, 2006.

Note 12 - Related Parties:

The Diocese and The Episcopal Bishop of California (The Bishop), a Corporation Sole, are
related parties in that the Bishop administers and oversees the operations of the Diocese.

The Diocese is the guarantor of notes payable of one parish in the approximate amount of
$26,152.

Included in accounts payable, related party are the following funds due to the Bishop (a
Corporation Sole) at December 31, 2006:

Funds investment in the Diocese pooled endowment $ 4,942,520
Short-term loan 215,205
Charitable remainder trusts for the benefit of the Bishop 245,230

$ 5,402,955

Also included in accounts payable, related party is funds held for others. Several years ago,
the Church of Incarnation, a church within the Diocese, gave funds to the Diocese to invest
and hold for them. At December 31, 2006, the balance due to the Church of Incarnation was
$86,230.

12
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The, Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

The Diocese has made several promises to give to related parties. The amounts owed to each
of these related parties at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Church Divinity School of the Pacific $100,000 due over five years
Grace Cathedral $25,000 due over five years ~
Bay School $200,000 due over 10 years

$ 40,000
15,000

180,000

$ 235,000

These amounts are payable as follows:

Less than one year $ 45,000
One to five years 110,000
More. than five years 80,000

235,000

Note 13 - Retirement Plans:

The Diocese funds defined contribution pension plans covering lay employees. The Diocese
contributes between 5% and 9% of employee compensation depending upon the employee
contribution. The 2006 contribution by the Diocese to the defined contribution pension plans
approximated $67,000.

The Diocese also provides pension benefits for the clergy through a national plan. The plan is
a defined benefit pension plan funded by specific assessments charged to the Diocese based

on a specified percentage of compensation. In 2006, the Diocese contributed approximately
$96,000 (18% of compensation) to the clergy defined benefit pension plan.

Note 14 - Concentrations of Credit Risk:

The Diocese has identified its financial instruments which are potentially subject to credit
risk. These financial instruments consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, investments
in securities, and notes receivable held for. investment.

The Diocese invests its cash deposits with three financial institutions. Of these deposits,
$567,525 was not federally insured at December 31, 2006.

13
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The Episcopal Church in the
Diocese of California

Notes to Financial Statements

Investments in securities are diversified into various equity instruments and other investment
securities in order to limit the concentration of market risk.

The notes receivable held for investments, as described in Note 5, consist of notes secured by
property and unsecured notes.

The Diocese bills and collects assessment revenue from the various parishes. Assessment
revenues comprised 52% of total revenue the Diocese received in 2006.

Note 15 — Prior Period Adjustments:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, it was discovered that a charitable remainder trust
(the trust) had been improperly recorded. The trust had been recorded with the Diocese as the
remainder beneficiary, when the remainder actually belongs to a third party. An adjustment to
properly reflect the trust has been recorded. That adjustment decreased permanently restricted
net assets in the deferred gifts fund by $755,565 and increased funds held in trust for
beneficiaries by the same amount as of December 31, 2005. Of that amount, $24,446 was
included in net income for 2005 and the remainder was net income of prior periods.

Also during the year ended December 31, 2006, it was discovered that certain funds within
the endowment fund were improperly recorded with respect to net asset classification. An
adjustment to properly reflect net assets as of December 31, 2005 has been -recorded. That
adjustment increased permanently restricted net assets by $600,582 and decreased
unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets by $269,533 .and $331,049, respectively.
The adjustment had no impact on net income.

14
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Independent Auditors' Report

THE EPISCOPAL BISHOP OF CALIFORNIA,
A CORPORATION SOLE

San Francisco, Califomia

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of THE EPISCOPAL
BISHOP OF CALIFORNIA, A CORPORATION SOLE (the Corporation) as of
December 31, 2006 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement preseritation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

The Episcopal Bishop of California has elected not to include certain consolidated
information pertaining to missions, as disclosed in Note- 3. The Episcopal Bishop of
California has also elected not to depreciate real property as disclosed in .Note 5. In our
opinion, inclusion of this information is. essential to conform with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The effects on financial statements of the
preceding practices are not reasonably determinable.

In our opinion,. except for the matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Episcopal Bishop of California, A Corporation Sole as of December 31, 2006, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplemental information on pages 14 and 15 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic .financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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We have also audited the adjustment described in Note l0 that was applied to restate the 2005 financial
statements to correct an error. In our opinion, such adjustment is appropriate and has been properly
applied. We were not engaged to audit, review of apply any procedures to the- 2005 financial statements
of the Corporation other than with respect to the adjustment and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2005 financial statements taken as a whole.

August 29, 2007
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2006

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 32,701

Receivables, related party:
Unitrust funds 245,231

Investments in a pooled endowment fund 4,942,520

Diocese short term loan 215,205

Investment in Securities 335,545

Notes Receivable, net 3,083,136

Equity Interests in Real Property 109,429

Property 15,496,681 

Total assets $ 24,460,448

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 50,000

Line of credit and other notes payable 3,420,549
Notes payable-related party 18,683 

Total liabilities 3,489,232

Net Assets:
Unrestricted 16,403,768
Temporarily restricted 507,724

Permanently restricted 4,059,724 

Total net assets 20,971,216

Total liabilites and net assets $ 24,460,448

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement: 3
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Support and Revenue:
Investment income
Net unrealized gain on
investment in securities

Income from pooled endowment

Gifts, grants and other

Unrestricted

$ 34,232

10;810

339,823

Temporarily

Restricted

$ 49,596

Permanently

Restricted

$ 3,972

Total

$ 34,232

10,810

339,823
53,568

Total support and revenue 384,865 49,596 3,972 438,433

Expenses:
Interest 28,387 28,387
Other expenses 15,968 15,968

Total expenses 44,355 44,355

Change in Net Assets 340,510 49,596 3,972 394,078

Net Assets, beginning of year 16,171,845 268,660 4,136,633 20,577,138

Prior Period Adjustment (108,587) 189,468 (80,881)

Net Assets, beginning of year,

as restated 16,063,258 458,128 4,055,752 20,577,138

Net Assets, end of year
$ 16,403,768 $ 507,724 $ 4,059,724 $ 20,971,216

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 394,078
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Net unrealized gain on investment in securities (10,815)
Increase in value of pooled endowment fund assets (339,822)
Change in value of charitable remainder trusts (31,766)

Net cash provided by operating activities 11,675

Cash Flows.from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments 796

Loan to Episcopal Diocese (215,205)

Net cash used by investing activities (214,409)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (202,734)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 235,435 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 32 701

Supplemental Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 28,387

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Third party borrowings on LOC $ 1,097,400
Third party payment on LOC 1,300,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 5
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Nature of Operations:

The Episcopal Bishop of California, a Corporation Sole (the Corporation), is the legal owner
of encumbered and certain other properties used by' mission churches, any chartered
organizations and certain parishes of the Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California (the
Diocese) throughout the San Francisco Bay Area in the State of California. These properties
and the related debt and corresponding receivables are reflected as assets and liabilities of the
Corporation in the accompanying financial statements. The accompanying financial
statements do not include certain assets; liabilities and operating activities of these entities
(See Note 3). Although the obligations are those of the Corporation, the specific entities make
the principal and interest payments on the debt. The Corporation Sole income is derived
primarily from investment, endowment performance, and transfers from the Diocese. The
Corporation does not have any additional assets :other than land and buildings to satisfy the
.debt obligations. The debt obligations are unsecured.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

a. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been substantially prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, and accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and
other liabilities. +

b. Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 117, Financial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the
Corporation is required to report information regarding its financial .position and
activities according to three classes of net assets:

Unrestricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets that is neither temporarily restricted nor
permanently restricted by donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets whose use by the
organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of
time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the organization.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets. The portion of net assets whose use by the
organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of
time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the organization.
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Corporation considers all unrestricted
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

d. Receivables, Related Party

The Corporation engages in transactions with the Diocese, a related party. A portion of
the related party receivable at December 31, 2006 represents future distributions of trust
funds from the Diocese, which is recorded at the net present value of those distributions.
Another portion represents a short term loan made to the Diocese. The balance of the
receivable represents the amount of an endowment fund which is due from the Diocese as
described in Note 8.

e. Investment in Securities

g•

Securities are carried at fair value, with realized and unrealized gains and losses reflected
in the statement of activities. The fair value of investments is based on quoted market
price and subject to market fluctuations.

Notes Receivable

The Corporation has incurred debt on behalf of various parishes and missions. As such,
the Corporation records the outstanding amount of debt as a liability, as well as a
corresponding receivable. The total amount of debt incurred as the maximum potential
amount of future payments is $3,104,660.

As certain receivables are deemed uncollectible, management establishes an allowance
for those receivables. The .Corporation has an allowance for uncollectible notes
receivable totaling $100,000 at December 31, 2006.

Property

Property purchased or constructed is recorded at cost as a capital addition. Property
reverted to the Corporation is recorded at insured value. Properties acquired prior to 1960
are stated at fair market value as of December 31, 1959.

7

DioCal 004540



The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

h. Recognition of Support and Revenue 

Gifts and grants are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give
to the Corporation. Gifts and grants that are restricted by the donor are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
gifts and grants are recognized..All other donor-restricted gifts and grants are reported as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of
the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

j.

Investment income is recognized as revenue when earned. Investment income earned on
restricted net assets is recorded as an increase or decrease in unrestricted net assets unless
specifically restricted as temporary or permanent by the donor.

Income Taxes

The Corporation is a tax exempt organization under the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code, Section 501(c) (3), and the related state provisions. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has beeri reflected in these financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of .financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United. States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities -and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Note 3 - Unconsolidated Information (Unaudited):

The Bishop oversees the operations of mission churches. As stated in Note 1, the financial
statements do not include certain assets, liabilities and operating activities of mission
churches. The following is approximate summarized, unaudited financial data of the mission
churches for tlhe year ended December 31, 2006 that are not included in the accompanying
financial statements:

Total assets $ 1,318,172
Total revenue $ 1,936,170
Total expense $ 1,912,483
Net gain $ 23,687

All mission church properties and related debt are included in the accompanying financial
statements.
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 - Investment in Securities:

Investment in securities at December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Eaton Vance Income Fund of Boston:
Fair value -quoted market price
Cast

335,545
487,818

Cumulative fair value adjustment $ (152,273)

Investment activity included in the changes in unrestricted net assets for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Interest and dividends
Net unrealized gain on investment in securities

$ 34,232
10,810

$ 45,042

Note 5 - Property:

Property consists of the following at December 31, 2006:

_ Parishes and missions
Other properties

$ 10,530,716
4;965,965

$ 15,496,681

'Certain properties are collateral for notes payable, as described in Note 6.

SFAS No. 93, Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations, requires all
nonprofit organizations to depreciate long-lived tangible assets. The Corporation Sole has
elected not to depreciate their missions and parishes and has determined that effect on the
financial statements is not reasonably determinable.

-9
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6 - Line of Credit:

Line of credit and other notes payable consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Line of credit agreement with Union Bank of California under which
the Corporation may borrow up to $10,500,000; bearing interest at
the prime rate (8.25% at 12/31/06); interest payable monthly;
principal due on October 2, 2008; unsecured. $ 3,420,549

Total principal payments due to Union Bank on the line of credit are $3,420,549. with a
maturity date of October 2, 2008. Of this amount, $334,572 is debt incurred by the
Corporation for its benefit and $3;085,977 is debt incurred. by the Corporation on behalf of
various parishes and missions. The Line of Credit of up to $10,500,000 with Union Bank of,
California is renewed annually. on September 30th for a guaranteed one-year term beyond the
current term.

Note 7 - Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes as of December 31,
2006:

Bishop's bed fund $ 184,318
Bishop Block memorial fund 38,618
Selena Ellis fund 20,000
Welty fund 25,726
Charitable remainder trusts 217,262
Other 21,800

$ 507,724

There were no net assets released from restriction for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Permanently restricted net assets are as follows as of December 31, 2006:

Christy fund $ 3,917,684
Welty fund 31,579
Prophets fund 38,261
George Maxwell trust 28,534
Charitable remainder trusts 27,969
Other 15,697

$ 4,059,724

Note 8 - Related Party Transactions:

The Corporation and the Diocese are related parties in that the Bishop administers and.
oversees the operations of the Diocese and the parishes within the Diocese of California.

Receivable from Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California (Diocese)

The Diocese maintains $4,942,520 in its pooled endowment fund for the Corporation.
The Corporation shares on gains and losses in the endowment fund based on their
percentage of the total balance.

Another related party receivable at December 31, 2006 is an amount due to the
Corporation from the Diocese in the amount of $245,231 representing the assets that will
revert to the Corporation under those certain unitrust agreements of which the Diocese is
the, administrator (Note 2.).

Payable to Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California

The Corporation had outstanding borrowings from the Diocese in the amount of $18,683
at December 31, 2006. The debt is unsecured, matures in 2008 and bears interest at a rate
of 6%.

Total principal payments due are as follows:
2007
2008

$ 9,159
9,524

$ 18,683

11
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Dependence on Diocese

The Corporation is financially dependent on the Diocese due to the fact that they have no
significant assets other than investments, endowment, and buildings and land to satisfy
their debt obligations.

Note 9 - Concentrations of Credit Risk:

The Corporation has identified its financial instruments which are potentially subject to credit
risk. These financial instruments consist principally of cash, investment in securities and
notes receivable.

The Corporation invests its cash deposits with finance institutions in demand- deposit and
money market accounts. These deposits include approximately $32,701 over the federally
insured limits.

Investment in securities represents mutual fund investments diversified in various debt equity
instruments, which comprises 100% of the investment portfolio.

The notes receivable consist of notes most of which are secured by property.

Approximately 91 % of the receivable from the Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California
represents funds held in a pooled endowment fund. The pooled endowment fund invests in
various equities and securities.

Property represents parishes, missions, and land in the greater San Francisco Bay Area.

Note 10 - Prior Period Adjustment:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, it was determined that certain net assets related to
the Corporation's interest in charitable remainder trusts were not properly stated with respect
to net asset classifications.. An adjustments to properly reflect net assets as of December 31,
2005 has been recorded. That adjustment increased temporarily restricted net assets by
$189,468 and decreased unrestricted and permanently restricted net assets by 8108,587 and
$80,881, respectively. The adjustments had no impact on the total change in net assets for
2005.

12
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11 - Asset Retirement Obligation:

The Corporation owns significant amounts of property as detailed in Note 5. Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47 (FIN 47), Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations requires an entity to recognize a liability.for the fair value of
conditional asset retirement obligations if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated. Based on the information available for the Corporation's property, the Corporation
was unable to estimate the amount of its asset retirement obligation, if any.

13
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Property and Loans Payable with Corresponding Receivable

(see Independent Auditors' Report on Supplemental Information)

December 31, 2006

Missions:

Property
(at cost)

Line of Credit
and Other

Notes Payable
Corresponding
Receivable Source

Antioch, St. George $ 
146,565

Belmont, Good Shepherd 39,500
Bolinas, St. Aidan's 10,000

Brentwood, St. Alban's 16,000
Daly City, Holy Child and St. Martin 114,000

Half Moon Bay, Holy Family 578,479

Oakland, St. Cuthbert's 245,510
Pacifica, St. Edmund's 121,357.

Pinole, Christ the Lord
Pinole, Church of Christ the Lord 206,790
San Bruno, St. Andrew's 1,479,000

San Francisco, Christ Church 25,000

San Francisco, Holy Innocent 73,177

,San Francisco, St. Cyprians 1,087,917

San Lorenzo, St. Christopher's 108,500 $ 33,476 A

San Rafael, Redeemer 393,099
South San Francisco, St. Elizabeth's 82,640

Total missions 4,727,534 33,476

Parishes:
Belvedere, St. Stephen's $ 

268,827 268,827 A

Castro Valley, Holy Cross 2,017,558

Clayton Valley, St. John's 214,029

Crockett, St. Mark's 26,500

Danville, St. Timothy's 962,325

Foster City, St. Ambrose 927,367

Fremont, St: Anne's 135,686

Fremont, St. James 3,655 3,655 A

Lafayette, St. Anselm's 179,170 250,000 250,000 A

Livermore, St. Bartholomew's 263,901

Oakland, St. Augustine's 18,683 18,683 B

Orinda, St. Stephens 371,000 371,000 A

Palo Alto, St. Mark's 65,000 65,000 A

Pleasant Hill, Resurrection 403;380 415,000 415,000 A

Pleasanton, St. Clare's 124,858

Ross, St. John's 1,020,000 1,020,000 A

San Francisco, St. Aidan's 548,408 72,000 72,000 A

14
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The Episcopal Bishop of California,
A Corporation Sole

Property and Loans Payable with Corresponding Receivable
(see Independent Auditors' Report on Supplemental Information)

December 31, 2006

Property
(at cost)

Line of Credit
and Other

.Notes Payable
Corresponding
Receivable Source

San Francisco, St. Gregory's
San Francisco, St. Mary the Virgin .
San Rafael, Nativity 48,125 48,125 A
Berkely, All Souls 37,436 37,436 A
Belmont, Good Shepherd 81,430 81,430 . A
Concord, St. Michael and All Angels 39,963 39,963 A

Total parishes 5,803,182 2,691,119 2,691,119 A

Total parish and missions 10,530,716 2,691,119 2,724,595 A

Other Properties:
Berkeley Canterbury
Berkeley Emergency Food
and Housing 199,207 199,207 A

Bishop Ranch Furia Properties 501,758
Brentwood 1,214,278
Clausen House
Community of St. Francis 69,500
El Rancho del Obispo 2,394,632
Episcopal Charities 86,834 86,834 A
Episcopal. Community Services
Episcopal High School
Family Link 341,936
Ohloff House 127,500 127,500 A
Less allowance (1.00,000)
Society of St. Francis S 1,500
St. Dorothy's Rest 392,361
Friends of Creation Spirituality, Inc. 45,000 A
United Religions Initiative
The Episcopal Bishop of California 334,572 A

Total other properties 4,965,965 748,113 358,541 A

Total $ 15,496,681 $ 3,439,232 $ 3,083,136

Note -Source of Credit and Notes Payable:
A Union Bank ,
B Episcopal Church in the Diocese of California

IS
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APPENDIX D

2008 SALARY RESOLUTION

Resolved, That effective January 1, 2008, the minimum annual compensation for clergy
employed full time by the Diocese of California and by any parish or mission thereof shall be
increased by 3.4% as reflected in the 2008 Mandatory Minimum Salary Schedule.

Resolved, That Years of Experience be defined by Credited Service with The Church Pension
Fund.

2008 Mandatory Minimum Salaries Including Self Employment Tax

Congregation
,Classification

Experience
0-4 Years

Experience
5-9 Years

Experience
10+ Years

A 58,764. 62,029 65,293

B 60,723 64,314 67,905

C. 62,704 66,599 70,516

D 65,293 70,516 75,740

E 71,823 78,352 84,881

Resolved,
1. That the minimum transportation allowance be $0.485/mile for congregation-related travel;

to be adjusted in accordance with IRS published rates for 2008.
2. That any deviation below these minimums will be permitted by the Bishop for serious cause,

with the Bishop using the Personnel Practices Commission as a council of advice.
3. That employers of all clergy pay to each cleric 50% of the self-employment tax assessed on

the cleric's base compensation as a portion of total compensation (7.65% of base
compensation). This amount is included in the above schedule.

4. That all churches, wherever possible, increase the clergy and lay staff compensation 3.4% for
2008 to accommodate inflation.
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Congregational Grade Structure for 2008

1. Number of pledging units:
Number Points
000-100 3
101-200 6
201-300 9
301-400 12
401-above 20

2. Average weekly attendance at Sunday services:
Attendance Points
00-100 3
101-200 6
201-300 9
301-500 12
501-above 20

3. Total Annual Operating Income-Line A of Parochial Report:
Amount Points
$0 to $65,293 4
$65,294 to $130,586 8
$130,587 to $260,965 12.
$260,966 to $522,345 16
$522,346-above 20

The points from these three categories are then added together and the congregation
classification is determinedfrom the following table:

Total Points Salary Grade
0-10 A
11 — 20 B
21 — 30 C
31— 40 D
41++ E
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APPENDIX E-1

2008 Proposed Operating Budget

,GROUPS &ACCOUNTS 2007
Final

2008
Requested

2008
Proposed

REVENUE i
1. Assessments 3, 400, 000 3,500,000 3, 600, 000
2. Interest Income 2,000 2, 000 2,000
3. Endowment. Income-Operating 132,221 132,221 132,221
4. EndowmenC-Planned Giving 42, 994 42,994 42,994
5. Administrative Fees-Controller 140,000 140, 000 140,000
6. Administrative Fees-Planned Giving 70,000 70, 000 70, 000
7. Payroll Fees 52,000 52,000 52,000
8. Other Income-Pacific Church News 49, 000 7, 500 7, 500
9. Christy Endowment 160, 000 160, 000 160,000
10. Fundraising 0 45,000 45,000
11. Total Revenue 4,048,215 4,151,715 4,251,715

EXPENDITURES ti
episcopate 7~;

..

12. Bishop's Compensation 113, 080 116,472 116,925
13. Bishop's Deferred Compensation 30,000 3 0, 000 3 0, 000
14. Bishop's Assistant Compensation 52,903 54,490 54, 702
15. Episcopate Benefits 64, 602 71,062 78,950
16. Travel &Entertainment 3 5, 000 40,000 50,000
17. Sabbatical Fund 1, 000 1,000 1, 000
18. Bishop IX Election Fund 15,000 15,000 15, 000
19'. Bishop's Residence-Maintenance 24,000 24,000 30,000
20. Clergy Chaplain-The Rev. Tom Schultz, OHC 0 11,000 1 1, 000
21. Total Episcopate 335,585 363,025 387,576
Treasurer's Office ~- Jim Forsyth
22. Controller's Compensation 92,600 95,378 95,748
23. Payroll &Benefits Coordinator's Compensation 48,453 49,907 50,100
24. Accounting Manager 65,000 66,950 67,210
25. Receptionist's Compensation 40, 091 41,294 41,454
26. Treasurer's Office Benefits 73,340 80,674 80,674
27. Bank Fees 25,000 2 5, 000 25,000
28. Outside Services 3 0, 000 30,000 30,000
29. Computer Training 6, 000 6, 000 6,000
30. Computer Eciuipment 6, 000 6,000 6,000
31. Computer Repair &Maintenance 10, 000 10, 000 10,000
32. Travel &Entertainment 4,500 5,000 5,000
33. Miscellaneous 4, 500 4,500 4,500
34. Audit of Diocese 45,000 45,000 45,000
35. Real Estate Foundation 10,000 10, 000 10,000
36. Total 460,484 475,702 476,687
Congregational Ainstries'= Michael Barlowe -See Footnote 1
37. Minister's Comp. 86,000 88,580 88,924
38. 50% Self Employment Tax 6, 579 6, 776 6, 803
39. Benefits 21,481 23,629 23,629
40. Travel &Entertainment 7, 000 4,000 5,000
41. Ethnic &Multicultural Ministries Footnote 282,000 282,000
42. Congregational Renewal &Develop. Footnote 89,000 89,000
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APPENDIX E-2

43. Church Planting/New Christian Community Footnote 1 10,000 110,000

44. Evangelism Footnote 3,000 3,000

45. Leadership Development & Trainint; Footnote 24,000 24,000

46. Property Repair &Capital Improvements Footnote 12,000 12,000

47. Ministry Review Footnote 1,000 1,000

48. General Mission Expenses Footnote 14,000 14,000

49. Total 628,087 657,985 659,356

,~ ulticulturalIVt~nistray:. ::
50. Interim Minister's Compensation 81,160 83,595 84,000

51. Benefits 17,852 19;637 20,000

52. Travel &Entertainment 6,000 6,000 5,000

53. Program Expenses ~ 10,000 10,000 10,000

54.- Total 115,012 119,232 119,000

.a th>rm Rio .° ~ u`Iia~'McCray-Goldsmith

55. Minister's Comp 59,517 61,303 61,541

56. Benefits 25,581 28,139 28,139

57. Program Expenses 25,700 27,000 27,000

58. Travel &Entertainment 4,000 5,000 5,000

59. Ministries Conference 12,500 12,500 12,500

60. Latino Theological School 15,000 15,000 15,000

61. Total 142,298 148,942 149,180

Yo`fii ht~&~oung,'~ldult" bSusan ̀Peek

62. Youth Minister's Compensation 55,512 57,177 57,399

63. Youth &Young Adults Benefits 17,854 19,639 19,639

64. Program Expenses 33,000 33,000 33,000

65. Travel &Entertainment 4,000 5,000 5,000

66. Total 110,366 114,817 115,039

Or~ai e'~dg'IVlinistry~be'.~efopment -.Chris Butler

67. Ministry Coordinator's Compensation 19,861 20,457 20,536

68. Ministry Coordinator's Benefits 6,400 10,695 10,695

69. Travel &Entertainment 1,500 1,500 1,500

70. Clergy in Training 12,000 12,000 12,000

71. Commission on Ministry 21,450 18,750 18,750

72. Clergy Wellness 2,000 2,000 2,000

73. School for Deacons 30,000 35,000 35,000

74. Deacon's Council 2,500 2,600 2,600

75. Archdeacon Expense 0 15,000 10,000

76. Total ~ 95,711 118,002 113,081

Gifttla nng~- Richaril~Sclaper

77. Gift Planning Coordinator Compensation 68,580 70,637 70,912

78. 50% Self Employment Tax 5,246 5,403 5,424

79. Gift Planning Benefits 38,122 41,934 41,934

80. Travel &Entertainment 4,200 4,200 4,200

8T . Program Expenses 30,000 30,000 30,000

82. Tota( 146,148 152,175 152,470

~,te. ardship~av d'~Aberrethy-Deppe

83. Stewardship Coordinator Compensation 18,504 35,000 351000

84. Stewardship Benefits 1,916 2,678 2,678

85. Travel &Entertainment 31500 3,500 3,500

86. Program Expenses 4,500 4,000 4,000

87. Consulting 11, 000 8, 000 8,000

88. Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 3,000

89. Total 42,420 56,178 56,178
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~mmunicatwns.-:Sean McConnef! '
90. Department Head's Compensation 75,000 77,250 77,550
91. Benefits 13 577 14,935 14,935
92. Web Associate's Compensation 49,280 50,758 50,956
93. Web Associate's Benefits 26,028 28,631 28,631
94. Communications Expense 7,000 8,000 20,000
95. Program &Pacific Church News 65,000 70,850 70,850
96, Total 235,885 250,424 262,922
5uppor, _Stair( :r ~ -'.~~ ~ `..:
97. Jonathan Abernethy-Deppe 50,376 51,887 52,089
98. Benefits 27,112 29,823 29, 823
99. Adair Heard 40,039 41,240 41, 400
100. Benefits 19,372 21,309 21,309
101. Monica Burden 20,000 41,200 41,360
102. Benefits 3, 000 25,119 25,119
103. Faith Formation (TBD) 20,000 20, 600 20, 680
104. Benefits 3,000 3,300 3,300
105. Total 182,899 234,479 235,080
a minis r",ation ~ imtForsyth
106. Chancellor's Fees 85,000 90,000 90,000
107. Building Maintenance 35,000 .32,000 32,000
108. Equipment Repair/Maintenance 7,000 7,000 7,000
109. Telephone ~ 34,000 35,000 35,000
110. Utilities 8,000 8,000 8,000
111. Supplies Office 33,000 33,000 33,000
112. Postage 33,000 33,000 33,000
113. Convention & Journal 7,000 7,000 7,000
114. Insurance 60,000 55,000 55,000
115. Write Off Bad Debts 5,000 5,000 5,000
116. Total 307,000 305 000 305 000
r®~ utside %,iU.cese~Suppor`.'t . ' ,
117. Executive Council Apportionment 701,560 715;000 715,000
118. Provincial Assessment 21,000 21,000 21,000
119. Millennium Project 27,070 29,062 29,062
120. Total 749,630 765,062 765,062

_ ppor~t Acti~,ities
121. Companion Diocese Initiative Expense 0 10, 000 10, 000
122. Travel-General Convention 13, 000 13, 000 13, 000
123. Travel-Lambeth 1,200 1,200 1,200
124. Travel-Province 3,500 3 500 3,500
125. Standing Committee 3,200 3,200 3,200
126. Diocesan Council 3,250 3,250 3,250
127. Ecclesiastical Court 1,000 1,000 1, 000
128. Medical Premiums Retired Clergy 65,000 65,000 65,000
129. Total 90,150 100,150 100,150
~~ampn,.;.i~r~islrtes ~ ~=^.~!.-... ~.
130. Camp Ministries 40,600 48,000 48,000
131. California Pacific Camp 3,000 3,000 3,000
132. Total 43,600 51,000 51,000
o ~•iafMiinistries ......:: ; ~ ;..
133. Elders (See Footnote 2) 13,000 21,350 0
134. Episcopal Chaplaincy-Stanford Hosp. 3,000 3,000 3,000
135. HIV Disease Commission 2,000 0 0.
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136. Interfaith Jail Ministry, SF 5,000 5,000 5,000

137. Long Term Care Facilities Ministry 8,000 0 0

138. Mental Illness Commission 3,100 3,100 400

139. Ministry to Convalescent Hosp. 0 2,000 2,000

140. Oasis 5,000 5,000 5,000

141. Peace, Justice and Hunger 4,000 4,175 4,000

142. Police Chaplaincy-Mann 2,500 2,500 2,500

143. Recovery Ministries 2,400 2,400 1,000

144. Total 48,000 48,525 22,900

Comrnisslons~ & Mmst'ries= - .~a W~.. ~ .
145. Accessibility Awareness 500 250 250

146. Afro Anglo Commission 1,000 9,350 9,350

147. Anti Racism Commission 2,000 10,500 10,000

148. Asian Commission 9,500 20,400 20,400

149. Campus Ministries 78,990 78,990 78,990

150. China Friendship 4,000 4,000 4,000

151. Com On Ministry of Baptized 6,000 6,800 6,800

152. Comm. on Marriage &Blessing 0 750 750

153. Commission for the Environment 1,900 2,750 2,750

154. Deanery Program 15,000 15,000 15,000

155. Ecumenical & Interreligioius Affairs 4,000 4,000 4,000

156. Justice, Peace, &Integrity of Creation 0 2,500 2,500

157. Latino Commission ~ 7,700 7,700 7,700

158. Liturgy &Music Commission 5,900 2,500 2,500

159. Millennium Development Goals 0 5.,000 5,000

160. World Mission 2,300 2,300. 2,300

161. Women's Clericus 0 4,500 2,500

162. Total 138,790 177,290 174,790

Othe`r'Comniimenl ~~~~~ ~~
163. Archivist 60,700 62,521 35,000

164. Disabled Clergy 1 15,489 .17,038 17,038

165. Disabled Clergy 2 15,489 0 0

166. Dorothy Jones-Medicare Supp. 2,297 2,297 .2,297

167. Misc. Dental (Wentworth) 722 722 722

168. Bay School Pledge 20,000 20,000 20,000

169. Cathedral Pledge 5,000 5,000 5, 000

170. CDSP Pledge 20,000 20,000 20,000

171. Total 139,697 127,578 100, 05 7

172. Total Ex ~ enditures 4 011 762 4 265 5b5 4 245 527

173. Surplus/(Deficit} 36,453 (113,850) 6,188

Footnote 1: This replaces the Department of Missions, therefore a new format was reduired.

Footnote 2: This program has been fully assumed Icy -Grace Cathedral.
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Governing Bodies

Standing Committee

Candidates for ordination to the Diaconate
and Priesthood

Approved...

the reception of the Rev. David Abernathy Deppe as
a priest;

the candidacy to the priesthood: Albert Pearson;

the candidacy to the diaconate: Michael Schreiber
and Mary Hinse;

for ordination to the permanent diaconate: Davidson
Bidwell-Waite, Kenneth Powell, and Frank Sterling;

for ordination to the transitional diaconate: Linda
Huggard;

for ordination to the priesthood: the Rev. Sean Burke,
the Rev. Will Hacker, the Rev. Jude Hill, the Rev. Pe-
ter Schell, the Rev. Jeffrey Donnelly, the Rev. Ste-
ven Hassett, the Rev. Karen Johanns, the Rev. Austin
Leininger, the Rev. Kathryn Galicia, the Rev. Lauren
Pifke, the Rev. Cris Craun, the Rev. Jay Watan, and
the Rev. Connie Lam.

Worked with the Commission on Ministry to review
the ordination process.

Approved Bp Marc's appointments of the Rev. An-
thony Turney and the Rev. Kathleen Van Sickle as
Archdeacons of the diocese.

Congregations

Worked with St. Peter's to creatively resolve the de-
molition of its church after the 1989 earthquake and
to plan for the construction of housing for disabled
adults.

Approved lease agreements for: a T Mobile tower
at ,Holy Trinity/La Santisima Trinidad, Richmond; a
T Mobile tower for St. Cyprian's, San Francisco; St.
Mark's, Berkeley, lease agreement for use of build-
ings for a school, and the lease agreement between
St. Bede's Episcopal Church and Trinity School.

Approved Bayview Mission in the Bayview/Hunters
Point neighborhood as a specialized mission of the
diocese.

Began the process with Bp. Marc Andrus of working
with Good Shepherd, Belmont, to embrace mission
status.

Episcopal consents .

The Standing committee consented to the election
of: the Rev. Mark Beckwith as Bishop of Newark, the
Rev. Larry Benfield as Bishop of Arkansas, the Rev.
Tom Breidenthal as Bishop of Southern Ohio, the
Rev. Robert Fitzpatrick as Bishop of Hawaii, the Rev.
Dabney Smith as Bishop of Southwest Florida, the
Rev. Laura Ahrens as Suffragan Bishop of Connecti-
cut, the Rev. Sean Walter Rowe as Bishop of North-
west Pennsylania, the Rev. Gregory Rickel as Bishop
of Olympia, the Rev. Edward Koniesczy as Bishop of
Oklahoma, the Rev. Mary Grave Reeves as Bishop of
EI Camino Real, and to the election of a coadjutor in
the Diocese of Maine.

The Standing Committee withheld consent for the
election of the Rev. Mark Lawrence as Bishop of
South Carolina (twice).,

Clergy Housing

Approved the continuation of the original equity
share in the residence of the Rev. Channing Smith
and Mary Richards should they sell their current resi-
dence.to purchase a new home.

Board members of Diocesan Episcopal
Institutions

Approved the following as Board members of Bish-
op's Ranch: Sam Parke, Lyn Whitaker Klein, and Da-
vid Lawson.

Approved as Board members for Ohlhoff Recovery
Programs: Luke Argilla, Michael Helms, John Kirk-
wood, James Loyce, Jr., the Rev. )anon. Parking and
Paul L. Wattis, III.

Approved as Board members for Episcopal Homes
Foundation: William Mason

Approved as Board members for Episcopal Charities:
Peter Vestal, Thomas Worth, Kathy Henry, Chris Ball,
Deborah Stebbens.
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Governance and Policy work

Oversaw the work of the Steering Committee and the
Working Group for the Diocesan Governance Re-
view. Coordinated the deanery and convention pre-
sentations of proposed governance structure. Many
thanks to the Working Group: Paul Evans (chair), Mar-
galynneArmstrong, Roulhac Austin, Chip Larrimore,
David Lui, and Salying Wong; and the Steering Com-
mittee: Kathy Henry (co-chair), Vanessa Glass (co-
chair), Ruth Baney, Jim DeMersman, Tim Fox, Dave
Frangquist, Carolyn Gaines, Margaret Gill, Jill Hon-
odel, Vince Jang, Jay Luther, Bob McCaskill, Chad
Smith, Dianne Smith, Lisa Thompson, Sue Thomp-
son, Kathy Trapani, and Mary Jane Wood.

Gave input into the new Sexual Misconduct Policy
being developed by the Rev. Stacey Grossman and
Diocesan Staff.

Began a Nominating Committee

Nominating Committee, chaired by Anna McHar-
gue, Vice-president of the Standing Committee, and
Martha Kuhlman, presented the nominees to the
158th Diocesan Convention for positions of Treasur-
er, Standing Committee, Ecclesiastical Court, Board
of Directors, Provincial Synod, and Delegates to
General Convention.

Created the first ever Mutual Ministry Review
with our Bishop

Spent a half day reviewing the mutual work of Bp
Marc and the Standing Committee to identify focus
items for the coming year's work.

As Trustees of the Eastman Fund

Approved $37,636 for scholarships for seminarians
and $51,777 for the relief of clergy student loan
debt. Transferred the Monteagle Fund from Episco-
pal Charities to the Diocese.

Convention

Drafted both the Assistant Bishop and the Special
Convention resolutions for the 158th convention of
the Diocese of California.

Diocesan. Council

Last year, my report on the work of Diocesan Council
began in this way: "Diocesan Council ...did much
of its work and laid many of its plans fully aware that
we were in the midst of significant change. We dis-
cussed priorities in developing the budget, remind-
ingourselves that "the new bishop" might have total-
ly different priorities. We considered programming
questions tentatively, reserving final decisions for the
arrival of 'the new bishop."'

A year later, things have changed. Bishop Marc is no
longer "the new bishop." He is our bishop and we
know ourselves blessed by that reality.

.Diocesan Council has responsibility for program and
budget. As we reviewed the status of 2007 diocesan
operating budget monthly and made adjustments as
needed, Council's Program and Budget Committee
developed the budget proposed for 2008. The com-
mittee met with a variety of groups about their bud-
get requests, and ,reviewed every line of the budget
before finishing the draft that was presented to the
deaneries in June. Feedback from the deanery meet-
ings was considered and incorporated into the bud-
getwhen the committee held a second meeting mid-
summer to finalize the proposed 2008 budget that
will be voted on at convention. As we considered
various budget requests, it became clear that there
are duplications of effort and gaps in coordination
among various committees and departments in the
diocese. Council has asked the Commission on the
Ministry of All the Baptized to develop and offer a
meeting of all departments, commissions, commit-
tees, and other bodies of the diocese as a beginning
step to enhance coordination of program develop-
ment and funding. This meeting is currently antici-
pated in early January 2008 and may become the
basis for developing the 2008 budget.

Diocesan Council has responsibility for implement-
ing and/or overseeing the implementation of reso-
lutions passed at last year's convention. Council
continues to work with groups in the diocese to im-
plement the anti-racism resolution passed fast year
as well as the resolution to explore a Companion
Diocese relationship with two other dioceses out-
side the United States. During convention, you will
hear directly from the Committee appointed to begin
that exploration about their exciting proposal. Coun-
cil enthusiastically endorses their proposed resolu-
tion, and is deeply grateful to the Rev. Ted Thompson
and the members of the committee that he chaired
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for their extensive and thorough work in developing
this proposal.

Diocesan Council has also spent time this year exam-
ining its own infrastructure and schedule in an effort
to efficiently and effectively meet its various respon-
sibilities. We have ̀added meetings to our schedule
and working groups to our structure. At the request
of the Assessment Appeals Committee, Diocesan
Council reviewed the guidelines and procedures in-
volved in the assessment appeals process, maintain-
ing the current guidelines, and implementing slight-
ly revised procedures, all in the hope of providing
appropriate support to those congregations who feel
the need-to appeal their assessment.

Diocesan Council is aware, of course, that substan-
tive change looms on the horizon again this year.
Pending a decision on the proposed changes to dioc-
esan canon and governance, Diocesan Council will
continue to administer the program and budget of
the Diocese of California as it begins planning for
the possibility of a substantial increase in its areas of
responsibility and in membership.

Respectfully submitted,
The Rev Sue Thompson, president

Diocesan Staff
Working Groups

Communications

At the time of the institution of Bishop Marc Andrus,
there was no formal communications department or
plan for the Diocese of California. The only commu-
nications media formally in place were the "Pacific
Church News" and the diocesan website. A month-
ly hard copy mailer called the "Bishop's Newslet-
ter" which included the bishop's calendar and an-
nouncements of interest had recently been phased
out in favor of a weekly email called DioBytes. There
was no strategy in place for targeted communica-
tions, and there was no media relations plan.

At the beginning of the search process, Sean McCo-
nnell was named to the joint communications task
force of the Search and Transition committees. Mc-
Connell worked with the task force to set up a com-
munications strategy, and began media training for
several spokespeople from the diocese. At the same
time, McConnell became the primary contact for
media. Upon the announcement of the slate, it be-
came apparent that the diocese would be under the
scrutiny of the international media, and an opportu-
nity arose to develop relationships with journalists
and editors. McConnell worked with the committee
to put a strategic communications plan in place, and
that remained in place until the election of Andrus
as bishop.

The day after the_ election Andrus told. McConnell
that all internal communications should promote
"the communion and cohesion of the diocese." From
May 7, 2006, until the present, that has been the pri-
mary directive for internal communications.

At the diocesan convention of 2006, Andrus stated
the primary message for external communications:
That the Episcopal Church in the San Francisco Bay
Area is a place where all are invited to enter a com-
munity that practices "Wisdom Christianity." When .
McConnell asked Andrus for further clarification,
Andrus said "Wisdom Christianity is the marriage of
contemplation and work for social justice." Commu-
nity, justice, and contemplation are the current re-
curring phrases in all external messaging. After the
development of a strategic communications plan
(that was completed in January) it was decided that
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the message of Wisdom Christianity is one that pro-
motes the communion and cohesion of the diocese,
so, both internal and external communications are
seen as a single intertwined message (which McCon-
nelland others have visualized as a Mobius strip).

Because of the diocese's inability to deliver targeted
communications, adata management audit was be-
gun in January 2007. At first, McConnell spoke with
two different consultants who thought that the com-
munications team could develop a data manage-
ment solution for the entire diocese, and McConnell
started going in that direction. By spring, McConnell
realized that this was a task that his team could not
complete in an efficient or timely manner. At that
time, the communications working group began to
survey off-the-shelf data management products. Cur-
rently the diocese is entering a beta test period with
four congregations with Parishsoft, a product that
was developed for Roman Catholic dioceses and
that the company is committed to adapting for the
Episcopal context.

Along with the roll out of Parishsoft comes other soft-
ware packages to be served from the new diocesan
Citrix servers to the congregations of the diocese.
This service will provide much needed software re-
sources for our congregations, and will better con-
nect the congregations to the diocese.

When McConnell was editor of Pacific Church
News, he worked with Web Associate Greg Bilke
to develop a website for diocesan news. Before the
roll out of that website, the diocesan website, diocal.
org, was hacked and severely damaged. McConnell
and Bilke decided to bring critical content over to
the news website as a stop-gap measure. Episcopal-
BayArea.org became the primary diocesan website
in early 2006. It was always intended to be a news
site, and never was sufficient for a diocesan intra-
net. Because of that, McConnell sought out a CMS
developer who had the most robust backend for an
organization the size of the Diocese of California
and that would provide secondary templates for di-
ocesan ministries and congregations. Elexio, a CMS
developer who develops websites for churches and
religious organizations, was contracted to help de-
velop adiocesan Intranet website and templates for
congregations. The diocesan website will be rolled
out at Diocesan Convention 2007, and four congre-
gations are currently rolling out Elexio sites as well.

Currently, there is no consistent brand identity for
the diocese, and some diocesan working groups
and ministries choose to use the diocesan seal while

others avoid it as an outdated vestige that doesn't
work in the cultural environment of the Bay Area. A
new brand identity for the diocese will be revealed
at Diocesan Convention 2007, and then we will be-
gin working with diocesan working groups and min-
istries to incorporate that identity with their own
branding.

Last Spring a Communications Associate was hired.
Monica Burden has proven to be an asset for bet-
ter project management and data development. She
also is taking on many events responsibilities for the
diocese.

Overall, McConnel I is satisfied with the development
of communications strategies, but he recognizes that
there are a great number of challenges still to over-
come. The culture of the diocese is one that does not
recognize the diocese as a cohesive whole, but rath-
er as independent outposts throughout the region.
He feels strongly that once a data management solu-
tion is in place that aids targeted communications,
this culture will be challenged and a foundation for
community will be built. A new communications
strategic plan will be developed as soon as the fol-
lowing elements are in place: new diocesan brand
identity, new diocesan website, a centralized dioc-
esan/congregational data management solution. All
of these are expected to be in place and working by
late winter 2008.

Sean McConnell, communications officer
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Congregational Ministries

One of the realities and joys of ministry (and espe-
cially congregational ministry) is that everything is
related: church growth and redevelopment is related
to Christian formation is related to leadership train-
ing is related to clergy wellness ... and on and on.

This simple reality underlies a new team approach
among the diocesan staff that has brought together
ministers working in congregational mission, min-
istry development, clergy and lay formation; youth
and young adult ministries, campus ministries, and
clergy deployment. The purpose: to improve our ser-
vice to the entire diocese by working creatively, col-
laboratively, and integratively among. ourselves and
with other leaders in our diocese.

In doing so, we also hope for synergy —where the
whole is greater than the sum of its parts! Such a
team approach is consonant with Bishop Marc's vi-
sion for the Diocese of California: the Beloved Com-
munity praying, preparing, and ministering together
in service to God's world.

In doing so, we have been greatly blessed: In a coun-
try and at a time when the fastest-growing segment
of the population are those that declare they have no
religious faith, and when even growing churches are
not growing in relationship to population growth,
our unchurched neighbors generally think well of
The Episcopal Church, giving us an entree to evan-
gelism and mission that other churches do not have.

That opportunity for evangelism and mission lies at
the heart of our new strategy for congregational min-
istries. I'd like to outline briefly some of what is going
on and what to expect in the coming year.

We have reorganized the Department of Missions to
reclaim its historic role as a generator of new Chris-
tian communities and churches, and revitalized its
mission to include congregational growth and rede-
velopment of all our congregations, whether desig-
nated aparish or a mission.

This means that for the first time in 50 years, the. dio-
cesewill be intentional in starting new churches and
Christian communities.

It -also means that we will become more account-
able to one another, taking a candid look at our mis-
sion effectiveness and analyzing the huge and grow-
ing problem of deferred maintenance of our church
properties.

It means that we will renew our commitment to mul-
ticultural ministries, taking stock of what we're doing
now and how we can do better; planning new work
and ministries; calling a new diocesan staff person
for Multicultural Ministries; and dismantling the rac-
ism and cultural myopia that keeps us from effective
evangelism in the Bay Area, where there are no ma-
jority populations.

I've told our mission clergy that the good news is that
the distinctions between mission churches and par-
ish churches will flatten, but the better news is that
the gold standard for us all, whether parish or mis-
sion, will not be autonomous, isolated ministry, but
collaborative, strategic, regional, and total ministry.

We will also, next year, relaunch the Creative Min-
istry Fund, with version 2.0 targeted toward projects
and mission that encourage growth and church de-
velopment, especially among younger populations
and under-represented groups in our Church.

To assist with this, we've made some other changes:

On the diocesan staff, all of us whose ministries lie
primarily in our congregations are working as a team,
developing a coordinated, more holistic approach to
our work and thinking proactively and strategically.

The time-between when one priest leaves and anoth-
er priest arrives to serve the community is being rei-
magined —away from a holding pattern where the
main purpose is to call a new rector and toward a
dynamic congregational revitalization that will find
a new rector joining a community ready to move for-
ward in shared ministry.

That means that clergy deployment is changing,
making the word "discernment" more than code
for "finding a job" and advancing diocesan goals —
which include identifying clergy with energy, cre-
ativity, talents and experience to help us build the
Beloved Community, while dismantling any struc-
ture that disadvantages qualified women, people of
color, gay and lesbian clergy, and any others.

I could go on, but suffice it to say that there is new
energy and direction toward making our congrega-
tions stronger, larger, and more creative communities
for mission and ministry, and for planting churches
and creating new Christian communities. All this en-
ergy and direction is toward amore comprehensive,
more collaborative, and more strategic path than has
characterized our recent past. We are called to work
together •as one Beloved Community,. sharing the
Good News with all.
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Campus Ministries

To say that this has been a year of change for campus
ministries in the Diocese of California would be an
enormous understatement! The Episcopal chaplains
at both Stanford and UC Berkeley left for new min-
istries, while the ministry of "The Edge" at San Fran-
cisco State has been infused with new energy from
the chaplain and board members.

Building on these changes, this coming year we will
be involved in a diocesan study of campus minis-
tries: what we're doing well, what needs work, and
how we can expand our ministry at existing cam-
puses and at other colleges and universities in the
diocese.

A Word of Thanks

Congregational ministries by their very nature rely on
the talents and commitment of many, many people.
I am grateful for the great work of the Department of
Missions, the Vicars and Bishop's Committees of our
mission congregations, the campus ministers, and
the voluntary boards of our campus minstries, and
the talented staff at diohouse. Thank you!

The Rev. Canon Michael Barlowe, Department of
Congregational Ministries

Department of Missions'

The Rev. Laina Wood Casillas , St Michael &All An-
gels, Concord

The Rev. Tommy Dillon, St Aidan's, San Francisco

Liz Graves, St Mark's, Palo Alto

The Rev. Bob Honeychurch, (2001), Chair, St James',
Fremont

The Rev. Martin Juarez, St Andrew's, San Bruno

The Rev. Connie Lam, True Sunshine, San Francisco

The Rev. Chip Larrimore, St Peter's, Redwood City

The Rev. David Ota (2005), St Ambrose, Foster City

The Rev. Phil Rountree, St Francis Assisi, Novato

The Rev. John Sutton (1998), St Anselm's, Lafayette

The Rev. Kathy Trapani, St Timothy's, Danville

Mrs. Ede Zollman (1999}

1 As of October 11, 2007; additional appoin-
ments to follow.

Chaplains

Mr. Tom Poyner, Interim Chaplain, Canterbury
House, Berkeley

The Rev. Coryl Lassen, Chaplain, Stanford Canter-
bury, Stanford

The Rev. Carolyn Talmadge, Chaplain, The Edge, San
Francisco State

Ms. Nancy Pennecamp-Cumming, Assistant Chap-
lain, The Edge, San Franscisco State

Faith Formation

The Department of Faith Formation will support the
congregations and learning communities of the Di-
ocese of California in fostering a vibrant culture of
Christian formation so we can —with confidence
and joy —invite people into God's ongoing story of
abundance and transformation.

2007 Activities

Ministry Development

• Sponsored three (to date) Regional Faith For-
mation Events featuring the following regular
trainingopportunities: Godly Play, Safeguard-
ing God's Children, Eucharistic Minister and
Visitor Training, seasonal and topical curric-
ulum review, and other training and equip-
ping in response to needs identified by the
hosting parish and deaneries.

• Sponsored the May 5 "Building the Beloved
Community" Visioning and developed post-
conference teaching and training via print
and web-based media in service to the dioc-
esan strategic planning process.

• Sponsorship and diocesan support and train-
.- ing for benchmark adult-formation programs

such as "Via Media," EfM ,and"Circles of
Trust," and acquire and disseminate new
curriculum and teaching resources for adult
catechesis and discipleship including "The
Thoughtful Christian" and "Via Media Val-
ues."

Resourcing Educators

• Continued collaboration with the Episco-
pal Resource Center in Sunnyvale; including
support for acquisitions and marketing and
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hosting three public Open Houses featuring
_ seasonal ly-appropriate teaching resources.

• Co-sponsorship of the Ecumenical Western
Christian Educators Conference and provi-
Sion of targeted funding for continuing edu-
cation, conference fees and scholarships for
professional Christian educators.

Communications

• Continue. to conduct timely on-line evalua-
tion of all events and training, in order to get
immediate feedback on the content and qual-
ity of educational services to the diocese.

2008 Goals and Activities

Ministry Development

• Launch the "Verna Dozier Society" to rec-
ognize the ministry of professional Christian
educators and provide continuing education
and mentoring opportunities.

• Develop programmatic responses to 2007
Diocesan Convention actions on "Building
the Beloved Community."

• Offer a continuing education track for clergy
at all Regional Faith Formation events

• Diversify educational leadership in the dio-
cese and make all new programs and publi-
cations available in multiple languages.

Communications

• Build out the Faith Formation pages on the
diocesan website.

• Expand online delivery of ministry develop-
ment resources, including offering Education
for Ministry in an online format.

• Offer all educational resources in multiple
languages and make interpretation available
at all training events.

Respectfully Submitted,
Sally Mancini, Interim Chair
Julia McCray-Goldsmith, Diocesan Staff

Youth and Young Adult

You might have guessed that
the world of diocesan youth
istries! Among them comes
change.

Ministries

big changes abound in
and young adult min-
a name and structure

The DYYA Commission

We have laid the name "YAYA" to rest and are start-
ingoff this new era of youth and young adult ministry
with the name "DYYA" for the Department of Youth
and Young Adult Ministries. We have also changed
the department structure from that of a Steering Com-
mittee to a Commission. The Rev. Jennifer Hornbeck
from St. Mary the Virgin, San Francisco, is serving as
the chair. This new Commission will be the eyes and
ears of the department —focusing on what is going
on in our congregations and reflecting to the Com-
mission their joys and challenges so that we might
respond with celebration or support.

Mission Imperative Groups

The Commission members will also be facilitating
our new Mission Imperative Groups. These groups.
were formed after a consultation with The Rev. Bri-
an Prior, Province 8's Youth Ministries Coordinator.
During our discernment process four areas emerged
as the places that we are called to focus our dioce-
san ministries. The Mission Imperatives include:

• Diversity

• Training

• Faith Formation

• Outreach and Service

A working group forms around each of the different
Imperatives. The groups will evaluate our existing
programs and create new programs using their indi-
vidual mission statements as goals to be reflected in
our ministry. In the planning of all of our programs,
events, and trainings we work intentionally to ensure
that all the Mission Imperatives are represented.

The DYYA Commission is the hub of the wheel with
at least two Commission members in each Mission
Imperative Group acting as facilitators and liaisons.
The DYYA Coordinator works with all four of the
Mission Imperative Groups providing logistics coor-
dination, support, and resources. Other members of
the groups are an equal representation of youth (ages
12-17), young adults (ages 18-30), and other adults.
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Programs

Happening: In the past year we had a very suc-
cessful Happening #24, a spiritual retreat designed
and led by teenagers and hosted by Trinity, Menlo
Park. Kelsey Macllvaine from St. John's, Oakland, as
"Rector" and Alisa Rasera and Wally Holden from
Christ Church, Alameda, as "Guardian Angels" did
an incredible job of reinvigorating this program af-
ter ayear's hiatus. Our staff was joined by a group
of youth and adults who came up from the Diocese
of Los Angeles to experience Happening so that they
might bring it back to their own diocese. Some of
our young people will go down to L.A. this spring to
help them host their own Happening #1.

AWWWY The Diocese of California was loud and
proud this summer when ten youth ministers from
our diocese attended the Adults Who Work With
Youth conference at Kanuga in North Carolina. They
added much to the whole of the conference with
their enthusiasm, openness, and stories. We plan to
build on that experience by sharing the resources
gathered and collaborating on future events here at
home.

Taize Pilgrimage: At the end of June, 19 young peo-
pleembarked on a two week pilgrimage. They spent
two days in New Orleans at St. Luke's Homecoming
Center and the Freedom School, spending time with
those affected by Katrina. The next step of the Pil-
grimage took them to theTaize Community in France
where they spent a week praying, talking, and play-
ing with young people from all over the world. At
the end of the week they traveled to Chartres where
they debriefed about their experiences at Taize and
explored the town and cathedral of Chartres. It was a
powerful experience with many ripple effects.

PYE: Moose poop and pineapple? This July over 100
teenagers from all over the Province 8 gathered for
the Provincial Youth Event in Salt Lake City, Utah.
We are blessed to be a part of one of the most di-
verse provinces in the national church and it was
clearly evident at this event! The cultural carnival of-
fered salsa dancing lessons from the Diocese of LA,
pineapple and leis from the Diocese of Hawaii, surf-
ing lessons from the Diocese of San Diego, moose
poop critter sculptures from the Diocese of Alaska,
and much more. Our worship was rich with a Bless-
ing Way in Navajo, hulas, drumming, and the Lord's
Prayer spoken in a variety of languages. PYE is held
every three years and serves as a precursor to the
National Youth Events and the Youth Presence at the
General Convention.

Upcoming

Youth Ministers Network: We are intentionally build-
ing connections between youth and young adult
ministers throughout the diocese to create a support
structure. Offerings for the Youth Ministers Network
will include a quarterly speaker series and deanery
gatherings. We will also offer a myriad of opportuni-
ties for continuing education through the Center for
Anglican Learning and Leadership (CALL) at CDSP,
workshops and trainings at the Regional Faith For-
mation Events, and scholarships to the Adults Who
Work With Youth Conference at Kanuga.

Resources: To support congregational youth and
young adult ministries, we are building a resource
library both online and at the Diocesan Resource
Center at St. Thomas in Sunnyvale. In the spring we
will publish a Youth Minister Manual specific to the
Diocese of California that will guide parishes in the
hiring process of a youth minister.

Podcast: We are currently working on producing
a daily podcast that would offer prayers, scripture,
and a scriptural reflection by youth and young adults
throughout the diocese.

Peer Ministry Trainings: Kids tend to go to kids first
when they have a problem. With that in mind, we
are offering a series of Peer Ministry Trainings. Lead-
ership training includes Samaritans On the Journey,
an abuse prevention training specifically designed
for teenagers who are peer ministers, camp counsel-
ors, or who work with children in congregations.

Events: The Outreach and Service Mission Impera-
tiveGroup is planning a series of "Take Action Days,"
when young people from all over the diocese are in-
vited to gather for a day of service and worship. The
Faith Formation Mission Imperative Group is plan-
ning Happening #25 for January 11-13 as well as
another Pilgrimage to the Taize Community for the
last week in July and the first week in August. The
Diversity Mission Imperative Group is busy planning
for November's Music Ministry Summit, February's
youth presence at the National Urban Caucus, and
the National Youth Event in July.

For more information about Youth and Young Adult
Ministries please visit the. diocesan website at epis-
copalbayarea.org or contact Diocesan Coordinator
Susan Peek at 415.869.7817.

Susan Peek, Coordinator
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Gift Planning

Empowering Generosity

Gifts Received

$1,173,315 was received in the .most recent year
from planned gifts that matured. Most of these gifts
will go to parishes and endowments.

Gifts Planned

Irrevocable planned gifts of known value totaled
$744,009 in the most recent year. Most planned gifts
are revocable. Many new. revocable gifts were in-
cluded among the 730 members of Tiie Bishop's So-
ciety.

Parish Legacy Societies Begun

Thirteen parishes have now intitiated their own lega-
cy societies to honor those who remember.the parish
in their will or estate plan. Also, Episcopal Charities,
Episcopal Community Services, and Clausen House
have all begun legacy societies. Initiating a local leg-
acy society has proven to be the most effective strat-
egy for obtaining new bequests. The average chari-
table bequest is $50,000.

Gift Annuities Paying Income

Since the diocese obtained a license to issue gift an-
nuities in November, 2006, an average of one annu-
ity per month has been. purchased by donors who
will receive fixed lifetime income from their gift.
Gifts now total over $100,000.

"The Duty of Every Person to Have a Will"
(BCP, p. 445)

Volunteer attorneys at five parish-hosted wills writ-
ings year to date have written 30 wills, a majority of
which included a gift to the host congregation.

A House for the Church

Several, donors have arranged for their homes to be
given to the church upon their deaths, most to be
used to meet the critical need for clergy housing. In
some cases, the donors made. the gifts irrevocable
and so obtained charitable income tax deductions in
excess of $1 million.

Professional Advisors Networks

The Guild of St. Ives continued to meet bi-monthly
for stimulating programs, dinner, and mutual sup-
port. The names and contact information of those
participating in the Episcopal .Realtors Association
and who contribute from their fees and commissions
to local parishes were added to the website.

Gratefully submitted,
Richard Schaper, Gift Planning Officer

Stewardship

Summary of Department Activities

• In conjunction with the Regional Faith For-
- mation Events, the department offered the

following Stewardship Workshops: in 2006,
the 11th Annual. "From Anxiety to Inspira-
tion: Leading a Generous Stewardship Sea-
son"; "Ready...Set...Go...Year Round Stew-
ardship"; "Stewardship: The After Christmas
Sale"; and two more held during 2007, The
12th Annual "From Anxiety to Inspiration:
Best Practices for Pledge Drives, Transfor-
mational Stewardship Programs, A Practice
of Gratitude for Children"; and "Faithful Ad-
vent/Christmas Practices for Children and
Families."

• The department offered two clergy steward-
ship training workshops, "Planned- Giving"
(Richard Schaper) and "Theology of Steward-
ship" (Michael Barlowe).

• Eleven parishes ofthe.diocese received some
44 consultation hours, including vestry/ lead-
ershiptraining and retreats, developing year-
round programs, choosing pledge drives best
suited for the congregation, .recruiting and
training the stewardship team, children's
stewardship, and preaching.

• Individual consultations were held with cler-
gy and clergy teams.

• The department continued new working re-
lationships with the Episcopal Church Cen-
ter (Stewardship), The Episcopal Network for
Stewardship (TENS), ProvinceVlll, other Epis-
copal Dioceses, Ministry of Money, and oth-
er denominational stewardship departments
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(including the Roman Catholic Diocese of St.
Louis and the Evangelical Lutheran Church
in America).

• The department discontinued publishing the
"Historic StewardshipTrends: The Diocese of
California" since the information is available
online at no cost (www.episcopalchurch.
orgy.

• In September David Abernethy-Deppe, for
reasons family and personal health, submit-
ted his resignation as the department officer,
effective December 31, 2007. The depart-
ment and the diocese are engaged in an ac-
tive search process for ahalf-time person to
fill this position.

Department Goals for 2008

• Double the size of the department; recruit
and train new members/consultants

• Elect new chairperson and co-chairperson

• Provide stewardship consultations for 20
congregations of the diocese (each congre-
gation gets 20 free consultation hours per
year)

• Develop a department of stewardsh ip preach-
ing rota to reach an additional 20 congrega-
tions of the diocese each year.

• Continue to emphasize the importance of
year-round stewardship

• Have an operational diocesan stewardship
website by 2008
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Commissions, Departments, and Other Groups

Commission on Accessibility Awareness

The Diocese of California's Commission on Disabil-
ity organized in the Fall of 1986 as a response to the
mandate of the 1982 General. Convention urging all
dioceses to implement the national church's guide-
lines for accessibility with seven years. The unstated
goal was to make congregations more inclusive of
those with disabilities. The Rev. Patricia Cummings
was appointed by the bishop as organizing chairper-
son of the Commission. Of the seven original mem-
bers, four had physical disabilities and three had
"hidden disabilities." The goal of forming such a di-
verse body was to model for the church the inclusiv-
ity being advocated.

Some of the members felt that accommodating them-
selves to the "slower pace" of the physically disabled
was "disempowering." This realization led to a rec-
ognition of the need for "education on disability
awareness" among the commission members and
ultimately the wider community. Consequently the
commission renamed itself the Commission on Dis
.ability Awareness. A library of materials was collect-
ed to serve as a resource for the diocese. Workshops
were offered and a Disability Awareness Day devel-
oped and presented at Grace Cathedral; presenta-
tions were given at the School for Deacons; and the
commission visited a number of parishes to assess
church building accessibility. Trivia Rosso (now a
deacon) succeeded Rev. Cummings as chair in the
Fall of 1988. Soon thereafter Jan Robitscher joined
the commission. In the early 1990s we gave an
award to the parish that had done the most to make
itself physically accessible: Also during this time, Jan
suggested, and the commission voted, to rename it-
self the Commission on Accessibility Awareness..lf
nothing else, this put us first on all the lists! Serious-
ly, this broadened our purpose and made our name
more positive. Jan became chair of the commission
in the late 1990s, following the Rev. Elsa Pressentin,
who worked with the Holy Spirit Parish serving the
deaf community and which now worships regularly
with St. Paul's, Walnut Creek.

Now most of our parishes. are physically accessible,
and in recent years the commission has consisted of
the Rev. Trivia Rosso and Jan Robitscher, each con-
sulting with parishes in their respective home areas.
Some of our future goals include helping parishes

work with persons with disabilities so that they may
take leadership positions in their parishes and in the
diocese, helping parents of children with disabilities
to find parishes where there children can be incor-
porated into the Sunday school and parish life, and
having another appointed clergy person (in addition
to Trivia) that is both interested and energetic to pro-
vide afurther link with the parishes of the diocese.
We would like to be consciously included in more
diocesan activities.

We believe the time has come to revive the Com-
mission on Accessibility Awareness, and hope that
people from each deanery will want to join us —
clergy and lay, of whatever varying abilities —who
are committed to helping parishes become not only
physically accessible but also open to and welcom-
ing of persons with disabilities. If you are interest-
ed or have questions, please contact )an Robitscher,
jbrobit@aol.com, 410.548.1575.

Jan Robitscher, Chair

Afro-Anglican Commission

Mission Statement

The Afro-Anglican Commission shall provide Epis-
copal mission programs of evangelism, advocacy, re-
source, and service for Anglicans of African descent
resident in the Diocese of California.

Purpose

To help empower, support, strengthen, and deepen
ministries to Anglicans of African descent

To identify and provide strategies for the develop-
ment and advancement of new ministries serving
Anglicans of African descent

To help fully integrate music, dance, and other cul-
turally inclusive forms of worship into the liturgy of
the Episcopal Church

To insure that Afro-Anglicans have a viable presence
at all levels in the diocese, including staffing at Dioc-
esan House, a presence on the Standing Committee,
and in leadership positions on commissions, staff,
boards, and committees
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To encourage and support the faith formation of all
the baptized

To provide a climate for attracting new members into
the Church

To provide better and more effective communica-
tions between Anglicans of African descent and the
Episcopal Diocese of California

To provide a comforting space of support and en-
couragement for ordained clergy

To work collaboratively with all other ethnic com-
missions

To play a role in the formation of alternate ordina-
tion processes that recognize the unique contribu-
tions of all

To improve the understanding between the Episco-
pal Church and people of the African Diaspora wor-
shipping in the Anglican tradition

To be involved in economic justice issues in the dio-
cese

2007 Goals and Activities

TheAfro-Anglican Commission has developed along
very formal lines so that it can identify when it has
met its goals. This year our program of work includ-
ed:

• Conducting the Second Annual Diocesan
Absalom )ones/Richard Allen Eucharist.

• Continuing to work on developing better
communications throughout the diocese.

• The formal commissioning of the AAC on
February 24th at the Absalom )ones service.

• Continuing to work on studying the role of
the church in slavery.

• Participating in the work of the Governance
Committee.

• Supporting the 5-year Strategic Plan for Eth-
nic and Multicultural Ministries.

• Taking the lead in forming a diocesan team
to attend the Transformation and Renewal
Conference, a program of congregational de-
velopment in predominantly Black parishes,
Kanuga Conference Center, Hendersonville,
NC, November 11-16, 2007.

• Assisting in the planning of Grace Cathe-
dral's tribute to the life and ministry of Rev.

Dr. Martin Luther King, to be held on the
40th anniversary of his death next April.

• Supporting the ongoing Anti-Racism training
in the diocese.

• Moving our meetings around the diocese
so that we can gain greater visibility. This
year we will have met in the Alameda, So.
Alameda, Peninsula, Mari n, and San Francis-
co Deaneries.

• Continuing to coordinate with the Union of
Black Episcopalians, strengthening both or-
ganizations.

We are beginning the process of building ties to the
other ethnic ministries and appreciate the support of
all in the diocese to build the Beloved Community.

Yours in Christ,
Dianne Audrick Smith, Chair

Asian Commission

Chair: The Rev. T. Vincent Jang

Time and Place of Meetings: Bi-monthly at various
member churches.

I. Statement of Purpose

The purpose of the Asian Commission of the Diocese
of California is to provide mutual support for lead-
ers involved in Asian Ministry, the development of
new leaders for this ministry, and the exchange of in-
formation among Asian and Asian-American clergy,
congregations, and communities. The Asian Com-
mission also seeks to be instrumental in strengthen-
ing the ministries of the Asian congregations as well
as in educating and enriching the diocesan family
about both the various Asian cultures and the minis-
tries of the Asian congregations.

Here is a summary of our works in 2006 and 2007
along with what we propose to do in 2008. .Further
information may be obtained from Deacon Jang at
vj ang@earth l i n k. net.

II. Assessment of 2006 Achievements:

The Asian Commission provides strong support to
the ongoing ministries of the member congregations
in their involvement in diocesan, provincial, and
national programs for ethnic ministries. The active
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member congregations are Christ Church-Sei Ko Kai,
San Francisco, Japanese; Our Savior, Oakland, Chi-
nese; True Sunshine, San Francisco, Chinese; Incar-
nation, San Francisco, Chinese; Holy Child and St.
Martin, Daly City, Filipino; St. Cuthbert's, Oakland,
Cambodian; St. Patrick's, Oakland, Korean; and the
Fijian ministry at St. Peter's, Redwood City. This year,
we welcomed St. )amen, San Francisco, and their de-
veloping Chinese ministry.

A.The primary ministry of the Asian Commission is to
be a council of support to those engaged in ministry
with Asian people. During the five diocesan meetings
a year, the members share about their ministries and
are offered support and counsel. From these conver-
sations, those serving gain strength and insight, and
sometimes new projects emerge. Ministries such as
True Sunshine's partnership in developing a Chinese
ministry at Incarnation and the Retreat for Asians in
the Vocational process were conceived during these
meetings. Our welcoming of the St. James commu-
nity in San Francisco this year was the result of ad-
vocacy and conversation by the Asian Commission
with the St. James leadership and the emerging lead-
ership of acandidate for Holy Orders from True Sun-
shine, Connie Lam.

B. The Rev. T. Vincent Jang of True Sunshine has post-
ed aweb site for the Asian Commission on the True
Sunshine website: http://www.truesunshine.org/
ACDC. htm I

C. The Vocational Discernment Conference was held
at the Mercy Center in November 2006. Those in the
ordination process who attended were Connie Lam,
True Sunshine, San Francisco; some from the Latino
community; and one from the Afro-Anglican com-
munity. The conference retreat program consisted of
story-telling of the journey of those in the ordination
process and those who have completed this process.
It allowed for support on both sides of the process in
a culturally ethnic mode not normally available else-
where. There were also quiet times so we could just
reflect on our journey. In addition, we welcomed
Mr. Chris Butler, clergy vocations officer, to give the
guidelines for seeking for Holy Orders. He listened
to the issues, difficulties, and problems of those eth-
nic applicants who are in the ordination process.
He also undertook to find resolutions to those prob-
lems.

D. The anti-racism gathering was held on December
16, bringing together all the ethnic and multicultur-
al ministries.of the diocese. The Asian Commission
provided seed money and leadership for developing
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this event, which welcomed the bishop and mem-
bers of the diocese into a celebration of our diverse
ministries and conversation about our hopes for the
future.

E. The resolution for building a working group for a
diocesan strategic plan for ethnic and multicultural
ministries passed Diocesan Convention with wide
acclamation. The Asian Commission was instrumen-
tal in developing and leading advocacy~for this reso-
lution. The working group is a work in progress and
includes Asian Commission leadership.

F. The Episcopal Asiamerica Consultation in Hono-
lulu, Hawaii, was held over the summer, with sev-
eral Asian Commission leaders and members of our
congregations attending. The Consultation focused
on working toward being competent leaders in a di-
verse, changing world. We were enriched by visiting
growing and dynamic Asian American ministries, in-
cludingyoung adult programs, in the Diocese of Ha-
waii. Members of the Asian Commission continue to
serve as leaders for the EAM Council in planning the
2007 Consultation.

III. 2007 Goals and Activities

A. Multi-Cultural Diversity Issues. While we had
shared success with the other Commissions in pre-
senting "Weaving God's Beautiful Pattern," and with
the multi-cultural liturgical and social celebration at
St Paul's, Oakland; in December, we have turned our
attention to the formation of curricula that will help
the diocese as a whole deal with mufti-cultural min-
istries and activities. The Asian Commission has pro-
vided some seed money for this project and plans to
continue to promote both curricula and celebrations
in the diocese.

B. Vocational Discernment. The Asian Commission
would like to hold atwo-day retreat again for the
purpose of recruiting and training Asians into lay and
ordained ministry and to support those already in the
ordination process. The Asian Commission believes
that recruitment is needed as well as training. and
support for those willing to serve. Also, in 2007 we
intend to meet jointly more frequently with the other
ethnic commissions.

C. Young Adult and Youth Leadership Training. Rec-
ognizingour ongoing struggle with raising up young-
er leadership and increasing the number of young
adults and youth in our community, the Asian Com-
mission elected this year to re-allocate resources for
supporting young adult leadership development. At
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present, we have one trans-congregational young
adult/youth group, YEAST, meeting regularly in the
Filipino ministries. True Sunshine is also develop-
ing ayoung adult group, and Holy Child/St. Mar-
tin's is launching a new youth ministry. With these
combined efforts, we hope to use Asian Commission
resources to support these ministries in 2007 and, if
necessary, use some of this funding to help support
young adult leadership to attend the EAM Consulta-
tion in Los Angeles in July.

D. EAM Consultation Scholarships in 2007. The Epis-
copal Asiamerica Ministry Consultation is a gather-
ing of leaders from the Asian ministries of the Episco-
pal Church. The gathering was held in Honolulu in
2006. Each congregation is encouraged to send one
clergy and two lay representatives. The EAM Con-
sultation serves to promote networking among Asian
ministries, sharing of strategies, and support for cler-
gy and lay leaders who are often on the fringe of the
church due to minority status or language barriers.
Participants work on projects for the greater good of
the whole Episcopal Church's efforts in reaching out
to new populations of Asian people and Asian an-
cestry. In 2007 the Consultation will be held in Los
Angeles, California. Facilitated byThe~Rev. Eric H. F.
Law, the Consultation will continue focus on leader-
ship formation and development, including young
adults. A number of our members are helping plan
this event, including the Rev. Dr. Fran Toy, the Rev.
Bayani Rico, the Rev. Richard E. Helmer, the Rev.
Vince Jang, and the Rev. Dr. Franco Kwan.

IV. 2008 Goals and Activities

A. Vocational Discernment. The Asian Commission
would like to continue having a two day retreat for
the purpose of recruiting and training Asians into lay
and ordained ministry and to support those already
in the ordination process. The Asian Commission be-
lieves that recruitment is needed as well as training
and support for those willing to serve. We will con-
tinue to work with the other ethnic commissions for a
joint conference as some of our issues are often their
issues as well. We anticipate growing attendance at
this annual event as the number of emerging leaders
in our communities and those of other ethnic com-
missions increases.

B. Asian Ministry/Multicultural Diversity focusing
on Persons of Color in 2008. In previous years we
have sponsored a Multicultural Ministry Day with
the Clergy of Color, and we have sponsored the
development of curricula focusing specifically on

multicultural awareness and how to shift paradigms
in that arena. With the passing of the resolution on
creating aEthnic/Mufti-cultural Ministries Task Force
at the 2005 Diocesan Convention intending to foster
more than a token awareness of ethnic ministries, we
are working on this and other related issues with the
other ethnic commissions of the diocese. We hope
to continue providing seed money for this work as
it expands and leadership in it multiplies with the
blessing of God's Spirit.

C. Young Adult and Youth Leadership Training. Rec-
ognizingour ongoing struggle with raising up young-
er leadership and increasing the number of young
adults and youth in our community, the Asian Com-
mission elected this year to re-allocate resources for
supporting Young Adult leadership development. At
present, we have one trans-congregational young
adult/youth group, YEAST, meeting regularly in the
Filipino ministries. True Sunshine is also develop-
ing ayoung adult group, and Holy Child/St. Mar-
tin's is launching a new youth ministry. With these
combined efforts, we hope to use Asian Commission
resources to support these ministries in 2007 and, if
necessary, use some of this funding to help support
young adult and youth leadership to attend the EAM
Consultation in Los Angeles in July, since we regard
this meeting as crucial. By 2008, we hope to have
even more young adult leadership in our midst. Rec-
ognizing the increasing needs for training and sup-
port for these ministries, we anticipate an increased
need in funding so the Asian Commission can facili-
tate this important work for the future of our minis-
tries in the Gospel to emerging generations.

D. EAM Consultation Scholarships. The Episcopal
Asian American Ministry Consultation is a gathering
of leaders from the Asian ministries of the Episco-
pal Church. The EAM Consultation serves to promote
networking among Asian ministries, sharing of strat-
egies, and support for clergy and lay leaders who
are often on the fringe of the church due to minor-
ity status or language barriers. Participants work on
projects for the greater good of the whole Episcopal
Church's efforts in reaching out to new populations
of Asian people and Asian ancestry. The conference
will be held in Los Angeles in 2007.

In 2008, the Diocese of Taiwan will host this annual
event. There will be about twenty delegates, clergy,
laity, and youth from the eight active member con-
gregations of this committee that we would like to
attend the EAM Consultation in Taiwan. The requi-
sition of funds to subsidize the delegates will need
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to be increased since the cost of a round-trip airfare
will be over a thousand dollars in the summertime.

While we realize that this is a significant increase
over our usual asking, this would be a one-year in-
crease only, after which we would drop this figure
back to its previous amount. We believe the benefits
to the diocese by our attendance at the EAM Consul-
tationjustifies the increase.

E. A One Time Grant for Aspire After School Program.
To serve the large arid diverse community of Rich-
mond District, the Aspire After School Program at St.
James, San Francisco, will create two performance
groups: the "CLC Aspire Children's Choir" and the
"CLC Aspire Children's Dance Group." These two
groups will teach children to work together, to ex-
press themselves artistically, to respect one another,
and to increase their sense of cultural pride, self re-
spect, and belonging in the community. The perfor-
mances will allow them to build an appreciation and
acceptance for the multicultural community in Bay
Area.

Department of Camp Ministries

Purpose

The mission of the Department of Camp Ministries
is to promote models of Christian camp for children,
youth, adults, and families and to provide the neces-
sary support and guidance to that ministry. Our pur-
pose is to provide a Christian community that is fun,
inclusive, and affordable that provides teachings,
opportunities and experiences to gain tools for a life
in Christ.

Current Status

Currently the Diocese of California supports two
summer programs at diocesan facilities, St. Doro-
thy's Rest and The Bishop's Ranch, and two at out-
side facilities, Camp St. Francis and Camp St. An-
drew's. Between these programs, twelve week-long
camp sessions and two 3-day sessions provide wil-
derness experience to people of all ages.

2007 Achievements

• Over 750 people participated in the programs
supported by the department.

• Financial support was provided to over 200 chil-
dren, youth, and families participating in pro-
grams

• In conjunction with the Department of Youth and
Young Adult Ministries, a child abuse prevention
training that is tailored to camp ministries was
developed.

Ongoing Goals

It is important that we increase the cultural diversity
of camps offered by the department, especially the
middle and high school level. This may be achieved
through additional programs.

We must ensure that we are following best practices
in all our programs regarding the safety of campers.
The department will continue to meet and develop
policies to ensure all our programs meet those stan-
dards.

Clergy Wellness Commission

The Clergy Wellness Commission (CWC) was es-
tablished in 1992 by the Convention of this diocese
to address the well being of parish clergy and their
families/partners and to support the health and mu-
tual ministry of congregations in the Diocese of Cal-
ifornia. The commission meets five times per year,
every fourth Thursday, bi-monthly, 12 p.m. to 1:30
p.m. at St. Paul's, 114 Montecito Ave., Oakland,
510.834.4314.

In 2007, as Bishop Marc has set about to re-vision
our diocesan mission and structure, the Clergy Well-
ness Commission has spent time reflecting on its
mission as it relates to these changes in the diocese.

1. Fr. Thomas Schultz OHC, Chaplain to the
Clergy since the fall of 2001, has been a tre-
mendous asset to our diocese. From January
2007 to September 2007, Fr. Tom has done
outstanding pastoral work with the clergy
and families here. He has had 80 contact
hours with diocesan clergy in spiritual di-
rection, heard 13 Sacraments of Reconcili-
ation, and has made 20 one-hour pastoral
phone calls. Please feel free to contact him
at 510.548.3406.

2. The CWC met twice to take an informal pulse
of the diocese and to brainstorm some of the
following questions:
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a. What are the strengths of the Diocese
of California?

b. What are its wounds?

c, Where is the resistance to change?

3. Pamela Cranston met with Bishop Marc in
early January to share with him our thoughts
and to see what some of his hopes are re-
garding clergy wellness. After talks with Fr.
Tom Shultz, he has begun to rethink how the
job of clergy chaplain is structured. The Bish-
op is also concerned about the physical fit-
ness of clergy. To that end he is wondering
how the diocese might build in health incen-
tives for clergy. The CWC will continue to ex-
plore these issues with him in future.

4. Pamela Cranston was contacted by Jere-
my McKeen, Director of Planning for Dr.
Chauncey Crandall MD, FACC of the Palm
Beach Cardiovascular Clinic in Florida,
about his research about clergy health for a
health book they are doing. She sent them
the following article and ELCS research info:
a) "For Priests, A Weighty Matter" by Allison
Buckholtz, March 28, 2006, The Washing-
ton Post, and b) ELCA Clergy Health Report
2002, both of which are online.

5. Michael Bar[owe met with the CWC in Au-
gust to discuss how DioHouse is being re-
structured into working cluster groups: Jim
Forsyth —Finance; Sean McConnell — Com-
munications; Bishop Marc —Justice/Peace;
Michael Barlowe —Formation, which in-
cludes Congregational ministries, Missions,
Deployment, Commission on Ministry, Cler-
gy Wellness, multi-cultural work, Education,
Youth/Young Adults, Deacons, Orders, etc.
He said that the diocese is trying to break
down the compartmentalization that former-
ly occurred in the diocese, so that, for in-
stance, the COM, CWC, and Personnel Prac-
tices Commission might work more closely
together and in an integrated way. We will
continue to explore new ways clergy well-
ness might be applied to all points in the
continuum of clerical life.

6. In 2007, Geoff Clevenger from Elyseum con-
tinues to update and maintain the Clergy
Wellness Commission website. Currently it is
off-line and is being switched to a new server
with direct links to the diocal.org website.

7. Current members of the CWC include both
clergy and laity: the Revs. Anne Cox Bailey,
Canon Michael Barlow, Terry Burley, Paul
Burrows, Pamela Cranston, John Gallagher,
Dr. David Gortner (new member), )an He-
glund, Fr. Tom Schultz OHC, plus Dr. Bob
Birss, Dr. Rod Dugliss, Mr. Bill Lorton, Mr.
Dave Roberts, and the Rt. Rev. Marc Andrus.
Many thanks to al I for your hard work on be-
half of the CWC!!!

All clergy and Laity interested in this ministry are en-
couraged to join this commission. The CWC mem-
bersare always available to meet with clergy, vestries,
congregations, deaneries, and others to educate and
dialogue about clergy wellness, mutual ministry, cre-
ating healthy congregations, and work agreements.
For more information, please contact the Rev. Pame-
IaCranston, peranstn@pacbell.net, 510.655.7243. It
is our honor to serve you.

Yours in Christ,
The Rev. Pamela Lee Cranston, Chair

Commission on Ecumenical Affairs

The National Workshop on Christian Unity (NWCU),
January 29 to February 1, 2007, in Washington DC,
together with the annual meeting of Ecumenical Of-
ficers from most Episcopal Dioceses, inspired and
updated us. NWCU 2008 will be held April 14-17
in Chicago. Churches throughout the world are pre-
paring for next year's "Week of Prayer for Christian
Unity," January 18-25, which will mark the 100th
Anniversary of the event. The Week of Prayer was
originated by Father Paul Wattson, an Episcopal
priest. Bishop C. Christopher Epting, the presiding
bishop's deputy for ecumenical and interfaith rela-
tions, has asked that we publicize and re-commit to
its observance. DioBytes has been asked to publi-
cize the Week of Prayer.

On February 26, this year's Paul Wattson lectures
"Divine Love and Divine Law, Human Dignity in Is-
lam" at the University of San Francisco were attend-
ed by our members. Each year, these free lectures
are sponsored by the Franciscan Friars of the Atone-
ment.

Religious Leaders in Conversation

Ecumenical officers and a number of other groups
met throughout the year to support and sponsor an
interfaith committee hosted by President William
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McKinney of Berkeley's-Pacific School of Religion to
plan two important meetings. Our purpose is to in-
form all religious leaders of the Bay Area (not only
Christians) about the changing face of religion in
Northern California and to encourage them to be-
comefriends. Asociologist at the Jesuit School of Re-
ligion in Berkeley was the keynote speaker on Sep-
tember 6 at St. Mary's Cathedral. "Religious Leaders
in Conversation" was well-attended and included
day-long discussions. A larger public gathering of
from 500-1,000 people is being planned to further
the work that has been done. Tentatively it will take
place on November 8, 2008.

I serve as moderator of bi-monthly meetings of the
Ecumenical Officers Committee, a group of clergy
who represent judicatory heads of a dozen or more
Northern California denominations and church-
es, including the ELCA, Missouri Synod Lutheran,
Episcopal, Nazarene, Greek Orthodox, three Ro-
man Catholic dioceses, United Methodist and the
San Francisco Association of Evangelicals. Our an-
nual retreat will be held on October 8-9, 2007, at
The Bishop's Ranch, Healdsburg. My .purpose is to
represent the bishop and diocese at liturgical and
educational meetings, to inform the bishop of the
plans and needs of our sister churches as we move
toward Christian unity, and to support the bishop's
work as chief ecumenical officer of the diocese. The
Rev. JoAnne Bennett of the Diocesan Council and St.
Christopher's, San Lorenzo, frequently attends our
meetings.

The Rev. Sumner Wa/ters, 'PhD, Chair

Commission for the Environment
The Commission for the Environment (COE) has re-
structured after atwo-year. rest period. We have spent
the last year making a strategic plan. There are now
co-chairs and an intern, all helping to strengthen the
opportunity for parishes in the diocese to embrace
their responsibility to be stewards of Creation and to
serve as examples to the community. Resources are
now available to all - parishes and missions on our
website. This includes sample sermons and liturgy
plus a wide array of ideas for conservation, efficien-
cy, and economic savings, all benefiting Creation.

In April 2006, Bishop Marc and the COE co-hosted
a Religious Leaders Summit on Climate Change with
The Regeneration Project and the 11th Hour Proj-
ect. The Presiding Bishop attended along with lead-
ers from the Muslim and Evangelical Communities.

She subsequently testified on Green House Gas re-
duction to the US Senate.

The COE supported Rev. Bingham's recent trip to
Australia where an Interfaith Power and Light pro-
gram was launched. It is modeled by Episcopal Pow-
er and Light, which began here in 1997.

The new COE has created a calendar of events and
we have several new members to the commission,
but wil I never forget or lose site of the powerful force
that some of our foundi ng members had on our work.
Specifically, we want to honor Margie and Tom Bow-
man whose faithful attendance at meetings, hours of
thoughtful dialogue with the commission, hosting
of events, arid devotion to each and every member
was truly a gift. We will miss their participation and
blessed company as we move forward. The late Dr.
William Atchley will also be missed.

We move into a new era of the commission with
three quarters of the parishes having identified a per-
son to be a liaison to the commission. That person's
role is to receive COE news and bulletins and then
report to the parish or mission what has transpired.
The better part of 2007 was spent organizing and
planning for the liaisons and the fall events. Our cal-
endar includes several events, one in each region/
deanery. The liaisons will gather, meet each other,
and meet the commission members. The intention is
that information will flow back and forth and ideas
will be exchanged. Questions will be answered and
problems solved. Our commission is now set up to
serve the diocese. All the parts are in place, and as
we begin a new year we are poised to be an active
and vibrant commission with the ability and desire
to be servant leaders for the diocese.

We choose a diverse group of people to be on the
commission itself and act as advisors to the liaisons
and parishes. .Several of them have unique exper-
tise, such as healthy relationships with Pacific Gas
and Electric, NorCal waste management, profession-
al scientific information, and years of experience
in environmental advocacy. This commissiori and
the leaders are ready to make 2008 a banner year
in environmental stewardship with the theme state-
ment that "God so loved the world, he gave his only
son."

The Rev. Sally G. Bingham

The commission members and advisors

The Rev. Sally Bingham co-chair National Interfaith
Power and Light Campaign
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Barbara Bisel co-chair, St. Stephen's, Orinda. Bache-
lors in Human Biology, focusing on interdisciplinary
solutions to human health issues

Brad Drda, City of San Francisco Nor-Cal, waste
management, St. James, San Francisco

Robert Howard, Pacific Gas and Electric, Chair Grace
Cathedral Stewardship of Creation Committee

The Rev. Frances Hall Kieschnick, the Beatitude So-
ciety, Holy Trinity, Menlo Park

Sheila Andrus, PhD, entomologist, Diocese of Cali-
fornia

Advisors

The Rt. Rev. Marc Handley Andrus

The Rev. Kate Alexander .

Dr. Marion S. Grau

Michael Lerner, PhD

The Rev. David Forbes

Commission Members

The Rev. Sally G. Bingham, Co-Chair

Barbara Bisel, Co-Chair

Sheila Andrus

Robert Davidson

Sandra Davidson

Brad Drda

Robert Howard

The Rev. Frances Hall Kieschnick

The Rev. Zoila Schoenbrun

The Rev. Will Scott

Jenepher Stowell

Robin Sperry

Episcopal Charities

Episcopalians in the Bay Area have been serving the
needy, the lost, and the lonely for more than a cen-
tury. Episcopal Charities is our Episcopal diocese's
faith-centered philanthropic organization that con-
nects the generosity of our community with those
neighbors in need. Through individual, endowment,
and planned giving gifts to Episcopal Charities, Epis-
copalians support new and existing nonprofit agen-
cies to make a critical difference in the lives of the
poor, oppressed, and the endangered in the Bay Area
regardless of their religious affiliation. We focus on
programs that empower individuals and families to
break the cycle of hopelessness.

Your gifts to EC have helped keep a mother and her
child safe and off the streets at night, helped a man
battling with drug addiction receive the services he
needs to achieve greater self-sufficiency, provided
temporary shelter to a homeless family while they
looked for decent housing, or provided a clean room
and emotional support for needy family members
while they attended to their loved one who was hos-
pitalized.

In 2007, Episcopal Charities is proud to award
$319,700 in grants to local partner agencies, com-
munity-based ministries and new initiatives that
serve over 39,000 individuals and families living in
the Bay Area. We also granted $435,000 to St. Luke's
Hospital through the Brotherton Fund and $70,000
to programs serving seniors through the Darby Bet-
ts Fund. We also maintain a discretionary fund of
$13,000 for grants to social ministry work at the par-
ish level. We are always interested in providing par-
ishes with financial and technical assistance as they
develop social ministry programs so please visit our
web site www.episcopalcharities.org if you are inter-
ested in a parish social ministry grant.

Our educational series in 2007 is focused on bring-
ing Episcopalians together with Bay Area Catholics
and other religious groups at the Point 7 Now! Con-
ference to be held in San Francisco at St. Mary's Ca-
thedral on October 27 with the Archdiocese of San
Francisco. Along with Episcopal Charities' Partner
Agencies, we are working to understand through a
series of meetings and a retreat how we can jointly
use the MDGs to understand our local and global
mission to reduce poverty. Our second symposium
is with diocesan Episcopal fundraisers on "How to
Reach the Next Generation of Donors" with Terry
Parsons of the National Church in November.
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October 2007 marks the 30th anniversary of the cre-
ation of Episcopal Charities and our first grants that
were made in February of 1978. We are using this
30th anniversary year to highlight our grant mak-
ing and have initiated the 2008 Building Hope cam-
paign to raise an additional $50,000 for granting in
2008. We continue our annual Appreciation Tea and
Walk-a-thon events which celebrate outstanding par-
ish volunteers and introduce and explain our partner
agencies, their missions, and their service to needy
individuals, both physical and emotional. Our Night
of Light event in January raised a record setting net
$286,000 as we honored Connie Mardikian for her
heartfelt and dedicated work to St. Luke's Hospital.

We are also taking this opportunity to review where
we have come in 30 years and are engaged in a stra-
tegic planning process to determine how best to ful-
fill our mission in the coming years. The planning
will be complete in November of this year and im-
plementation of a new strategic direction will begin
in January 2008. We are pleased that on a regional
level, Episcopal Charities has been able to introduce
more donors each year to the poverty and needs of
the impoverished in our communities and to build a
community of givers that is inspired to love and take
care of their neighbor. Our anniversary reminds us
that we are proud to have been a part of this com-
mitted Episcopal community for so many years. Join
us as we continue to build a community of givers,
called by faith to help those whose lives are in cri-
sis.

Please contact Episcopal Charities Executive Direc-
tor Sally Coates, scoates@episcopalcharities.org, if
you have questions or to share your ideas, inspira-
tion or other resources.

Grace Cathedral
The year was eventful with three deeply significant
events. The diocese installed our new bishop and
Bishop Marc is now well into his second year as di-
ocesan. The cathedral is privileged to be a focus of
the Bishop's ministry and a resource and gathering
place for the whole diocese.

Frances Tornquist (Fran) the Canon Pastor and Vice-
dean retired and, after an extensive search, Mary
Haddad was made Canon Pastor. Fran Tornquist was
an extraordinary Canon Pastor. When I came to the
cathedral over twenty-two years ago, the cathe-
dral was at a very low point in its history. The Bish-
op and Trustees risked a great deal in appointing an

inexperienced academic as dean. The congregation
was small and in disarray. There were no children
(apart from the choir boys) and little program. Fran
took on the task of forming the congregation after
the ground had been prepared by my old friend Lau-
ren Artress. Fran built the congregation by encourag-
ingmature lay leadership and putting in place strong
educational programs. We have much to be grate-
ful for. We novv welcome Mary Haddad as Canon
Pastor. Mary comes to us from St. Bartholomew's in
New York City. She brings to the task not only a deep
faith based on a broad experience of the spiritual
journey but also practical experience in community
development. She also has remarkable entrepreneur-
ial skills. With a new bishop and new canon pastor
we are well into a new era. The Episcopal Church,
too, in the context of the life of the Anglican Com-
munion, is in a new place and it was a privilege and
joy to welcome the new Presiding Bishop for Mi-
chaelmas.

There are signs of significant renewal. In this regard it
was good to welcome Will Scott to the clergy team.
Will's commitment to both social justice issues and
to a deeply grounded spiritual life bodes well for our
future together. Vanessa Glass joined the staff as half-
time associate and we welcomed her return to the
cathedral. Mark Ruyak left us after several years of
ministry in the arts and to young adults.

The leadership of the cathedral is in good hands.
My chapter colleagues are all dedicated profession-
als who love the cathedral. The lay leadership (both
in the Trustees and Congregational Council) is out-
standing. lowe aspecial debt of gratitude to Valerie
Crane Dorfman, Greg Scott and Walter Keenan for
their friendship, counsel and support. And a couple
of areas of the cathedral's life deserve special men-
tion. One is the remarkable corps of deacons. Nina
Pickerrell's outstanding work in the Bayview has not
only involved many cathedral volunteers but places,
front and center, the deep challenges of the city in
which we live. Margaret Deeth's commitment to the
Seniors' Program is palpable and deeply appreciated
while Anthony Turney's return to us as a volunteer
has already made its mark for good in several areas
— particularly his spear-heading the coming of the
Keiskamma Altarpiece this Easter.

1 continue to be impressed by our Family Ministries
and the addition of a children's choir (which made
its debut at the Christmas pageant) is a move in the
right direction. The Choir of Men and Boys is the best
its ever been and we celebrated the publication of
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their new CD this past June (the same time as their
trip to England and France).

We continue to face financial challenges. To that
end a great deal of work has been done to build our
endowment. Indeed, we enjoy a financial stability
as never before in our history, but are still stretched
with regard to our operating budget. For the first
time, the Cathedral`s entire endowment principal is
larger than a single year's budget, but we still have
a long way to go in securing an appropriate and ad-
equate endowment. The good news is that interest
from the enlarged endowment has allowed us to do
the necessary work of replacing the choir house roof
and begin the systematic restoration of the stained
glass in the Chapel of Grace. We always have more
to do when it comes to the responsible maintenance
and repair of our buildings. Two significant building
projects have been completed recently: the new per-
manent labyrinth (thanks to a generous donor) and
the handicap access ramp leading from the Spanish
Crucifix into the upper Quire area.

This year, the cathedral celebrated its centennial -
one hundred years ago, in the aftermath of the 1906
San Francisco earthquake and fire, Grace Cathedral
was born. To commemorate this significant anniver-
sary, Grace Cathedral hosted a wide array of liturgi-
cal services, unique art exhibitions, live performanc-
es and community service opportunities.

The cathedral. hosted the monumental Keiskamma
Altarpiece, an artwork created by South African
women to tell the story of their fight against the rav-
ages of AIDS. Together with numerous and varied
community and media partners, and with the sup-
port of many generous donors, the cathedral wel-
comed over 30,000 visitors to witness this amazing
piece of art and its story.

Music continued to occupy a special place in the fife
of the cathedral: performing with world-renowned
mezzo-soprano Susan Graham and baritone Bo Sk-
ovhus, and violist Elizabeth Runnicles, San Francisco
Opera music director and principal conductor, Don-
ald Runnicles, mesmerized a capacity audience with
an evening of Berlioz, Schubert and Mahler. Jazz
legend Pharaoh Sanders filled the cathedral with his
trademark "impossibly sweet" saxophone for what
was rated as one of the year's best concerts in the
Bay Area. Choreographer Joe Goode appeared at
the Forum and performed his piece Grace @Grace,
which was designed specifically for the cathedral.
Chanticleer, the world-renowned choir, made the
West Coast premiere of its latest work, "And on Earth,

Peace: A Chanticleer Mass," at Grace Cathedral. The
Forum, our weekly series of conversation on issues
that matter, also welcomed many prominent guests
this year, including: best-selling authors Anne Rice
and Anne Lamott, Bishop N.T. Wright, and author
and therapist Madeline Levine.

The Cathedral School for Boys continues to be in
good hands under the leadership of Michael Ferre-
boeuf.

At the end of September I wrote a letter to our vari-
ous constituencies to announce my retirement early
in 2009 — a copy of which is attached to this report. It
has been a wonderful twenty-two years. Thank you.

Alan Jones, dean

September 25, 2007

Dear Friends,

It's hard to believe I was officially installed as dean of
this magnificent cathedral exactly twenty-two years
ago. It has been a wonderful experience for me in a
city I have come to love. I have worked with some
gifted and dedicated colleagues and with a group of
remarkable lay leaders in serving this extraordinary
community. You have been very supportive and I
thank you! These last twenty-two years at Grace Ca-
thedral have been a great gift, but the time has come
forme to think about retirement —although the word
retirement doesn't begin to express what I want to do
with the next phase of my life!

This is to let you know that I plan to retire sometime
in early 2009. The exact date isn't fixed simply to
allow flexibility.in finding a successor. The search
for a new dean will be in the hands of a distinctly
Anglican hybrid —the Bishop-and-Trustees; you will
be hearing more about the process as it moves for-
ward.

I simply wanted you to know my intentions and to
thank you for your kindness and support over the
years. Announcements about the transition will be
forthcoming, including at the Annual Meeting in
February of next year.. Meanwhile, the life of the ca-
thedral is as active and vibrant as ever and I plan'to
be fully involved during the entire transition.

Please keep me in your prayers as you are in mine.

With love and prayers.
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Commission on Liturgy and Music

1. Statement of Purpose:

Members of the Commission on Liturgy -and Music
(CLM) are leaders in music and worship for our dio-
cese.They serve as educators at I iturgical workshops,
and as resources for worship at clergy conferences
and diocesan services and leadership conventions;
and they collaborate with other diocesan commis-
sions in diocesan -and inter-parish programs. The
CLM functions as a communications link with many
national and international church organizations: the
Standing Commission on Liturgy and Music (SCLM),
the Association of Anglican Musicians (AAM), Asso-
ciated Parishes for Liturgy and Mission (APLM), the
International Anglican Liturgical Consultation (TALC),
the North American Academy of Liturgy (NAAL), and
Societas Liturgica. These relationships serve to keep
our diocese abreast of liturgical and musical issues
facing the larger church, to contribute our diocese's
experience to worldwide liturgical renewal, and to
provide resources for congregational consultation.

ll. Goals and Activities Achieved 2006/7

(1) Offered workshops in Music, Liturgical Dance,
Liturgy in. Latino. context, and Prayers. of the People
at the Diocesan Leadership Convention.

(2) Translated information_ from national and interna-
tional church bodies to the diocese. (See paragraph
I, above.)

(3) Provided worship leadership for Diocesan Con-
vention, Leadership Convention, and clergy confer-
ences.

(4) Continued to strengthen relationships among di-
ocesan musicians, in a network now growing to em-
brace every church in the diocese.

(5) Consulted with clergy, musicians, and worship
committee leadership around the diocese on musi-
cal and liturgical issues.

(6) Continued to encourage participation in the Di-
ocesan Ordination Choir.

(7) Collaborated with the Standing Commission on
Liturgy and Music, following steps toward Prayer
Book revision endorsed at General Convention
2006.

(8) Invitational classes taught and lectures delivered
at Virginia Theological Seminary, the University of

-the South (Sewanee), College of the' Resurrection
(Mirfield, Yorkshire), and General Theological Semi-
nary.

(9) Liturgical Dance workshops acid performances.

(10) Represented the diocese at the North American
Academy of Liturgy meetings in San -Diego and To-
ronto.

(11) Recruited and trained new leadership for the
Leadership Program for Musicians, focused on small
parishes, which now includes the Evangelical Lu-
theran Church in America, the Presbyterian Church
and the United Church of Christ.

Co-chairs: Richard Fabian, Jane McDougle. Treasur-
er: Paul Fromberg

Commission on Mental Illness

Time &Place of Meetings: Meetings called as nec-
essary.

Statement of Purpose

To educate the clergy and laity of the diocese that
mental illness is a disease just like any other disease
that can be treated. Recovery is a real possibility with
today's medications and faith plays a huge role in the
.recovery-process. Acceptance in the faith.. commu-
nity plays a crucial role in recovery.

Assessment of 2006 Achievements

• Raised over $30,000 corporate funds. for
NAMIWALK.

• Located a mental health facility for a School
for Deacons student for. her CPE internship
and am supervising her.

• Supervised new NAMI "In Our Own Voice"
presenter training class of ten consumers in
Concord and another class of 18 consum-
ers in Morin County, sponsored by NAMI SF,
NAMI, Marin, and MARIN Sonoma

• Interviewed by EMIN NEWS and featured on
NAMI'S FaithNet National Newsletter.

2007 Goals and Activities

1. NAMIWALK fund raising Goal — $30,000.

2. Sponsoring a NAMIWALK team, '.'The Walk-
ing Padre's Team" on May 12, 2007 in Gold-

. en Gate Park.
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3. Raised over $31,000.00.

2008 Goals and Activities

1. Recruit new members for the Commission.

2. Encourage people that live in SF to join NAMI
San Francisco. NAMIWALK has given NAMI
SF New Life.

3. Participate in the NAMIWALK SF BAY AREA
IN SPRING 2008.

The Rev. Chet Watson, Chair

Commission on the Ministry of All the
Baptized

Purpose

All baptized persons are called to minister in Christ's
name, to identify their gifts with the help of the
Church and to serve Christ's mission at all times and
in all places. Title lll, Canon 1, section 1 (a)

The Commission on the Ministry of All the Baptized
(COMAB) is charged with raising up all baptized
people for active, trained, empowered lay ministry.
It works with congregations in the Diocese to intro-
duce and support programs that will enable individ-
ualsand groups to discern, train for and celebrate lay
ministry in the church and the world.

Membership

Melissa Ridlon (Chair), Sandy Burnett, David
Frangquist, the Rev. Mark Henderson, The Rev. )an
Holland, Ron Johnson, Julia McCray-Goldsmith
(Staff), Mary Roberts, The Rev. Sue Thompson.

2007 Accomplishments

COMAB has continued its collaboration with the
Center for Courage &Renewal to expand "Circle of
Trust" programming for lay and ordained leadership
in the Diocese of California.

In December 2006, we hosted an introductory "Cir-
cle of Trust" Retreat for lay people and clergy in the
Diocese. During 2007, two individuals, one clergy
and one lay, from the Diocese completed the full cy-
cle of "Circle of Trust" retreats. We will be hosting a
second "Circle ofTrust" retreat in December 2007 or
January 2008.

In 2007, we identified and began working with "re-
source congregations" throughout .the Diocese to
build and refine models for communal discernment
that can be adapted for use throughout the diocese
and introduced at Regional Events. Each regional
event during, the year has included modules related
to discernment.

2008 Goals

In 2008 the COMAB looks forward to enhancing its
existing ministries of training and equipping congre-
gations for discernment ministries by engaging a vi-
sion for integrated practices of contemplation and
action, rooted in an understanding of shared minis-
try (or "total ministry") which is appropriate to our
diocesan culture. Specifically, the COMAB plans to:

Host a diocesan program on discernment practic-
es.

Plant "Circles of Trust" in at least four diocesan con-
gregations or communities

Expand work with Resource Congregations to devel-
opand disseminate communal discernment models,
and to share successful programs at Regional Faith
Formation Events.

Develop and distribute liturgies for use in celebrat-
ing and raising up lay ministries.

Introduce "total ministry" concepts and practices in
ways that are appropriate to the Diocese of Califor-
nia.

Work with other diocesan commissions and dioce-
san organizations to identify ways to raise up and
support existing and potential lay ministries in a
collaborative manner.
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Peace, Justice, and Hunger Commission

The Peace, Justice, and Hunger Commission is ded-
icated to promoting social justice. Our members
work in diverse areas as restorative justice, peace
movements, moratorium on the death penalty, and
racial justice. We have generated resolutions at our
Diocesan Convention, added our support on these
issues, endorsing resolutions at the Diocesan Con-
vention such as Protection for Immigrants and their
Families, and Divestment in Darfur. We have par-
ticipated in Ecumenical Vigils, and marches far an
end to the War in Iraq, marched, and demonstrated
in solidarity with our Latino neighbors on work; and
immigration issues. We welcome new participants
to join us as we grapple with these issues. We meet
on the first Tuesday of most months either at Grace
Cathedral or St. Paul's in Oakland.

This past year we have financially supported nu-
merous social justice ministries in our diocese, and
around the world including: Episcopal Network of
Economic Justice; Legal Services for Prisoners with
Children in San Francisco; Bread for the World;
Friends of Sabeel Conference on Peace in the Holy
Land held in Berkeley; Episcopal Urban Caucus As-
sembly held in North Carolina; Day Worker Program
for Latinos at Good Shepherd, Berkeley.

Some of the members of the Peace, Justice, and Hun-
ger Commission are currently engaged in planning
the Episcopal Urban Caucus Assembly. The Assem-
bly will be February 13-16 at the Airport Hilton Ho-
tel in Oakland. The theme of the Assembly is "The
Road to Peace." The learning tracks are environmen-
tal justice, social justice, and economic justice. We
invite all of you to attend. We especially encourage
young adults to participate. For additional informa-
tion on the Episcopal Urban Caucus please check
the website, www.episcopalurbancaucus.org

Respectfully submitted by
The Rev. Katherine Salinaro and Sheila Sims, Co-
Chairs

Personnel Practices Committee

For years, the major issue facing the Personnel Prac-.
tices Committee has been the increase in the cost
of benefits, and we are aware of the burden that we
all share. As healthcare costs increase, we investi-
gate ways to ease the financial burden on congrega-
tions and institutions, while continuing to provide
employees and their families the best coverage avail-
able. For 2008, we are looking at premium increas-
es of 12.6% for Blue Shield Medical and 6.1 %for
Kaiser Medical. For CIGNA Dental, the increase is
3.8%, and for our CONCERN Employee Assistance
Program the increase is a modest 3%. In 2008, we
are shifting providers of our life insurance coverage
from AIG to the Church Life Insurance Corporation
of Newyork. This change ought to provide better ser-
vice at the same cost.

In conjunction with the Diocesan Governance Re-
view, the Personnel- Practices Committee will con-
sider recommendations for canonical revisions with
respect to benefits. A recent Mercer national Survey
of Employer-Sponsored Health Plans found that no
other segment provides coverage for either employ-
ees ortheir families without some required contribu-
tion for both medical and dental coverage. Canon-
ical revisions may provide flexibility for diocesan
institutions, and possibly have our canons match ac-
tua) personnel practices.

Congregations and institutions of the diocese are re-
minded that most of the information needed for per-
sonnel and administrative issues can be found in the
"Diocesan Administrators' Manual." The "Sample
Personnel Policy" provides a great example for per-
sonnel guidelines, and should be adopted by every
congregation and institution if they do not have a
current policy. Both documents and other pertinent
information can be found on the diocesan website.

We continue to give thanks for the dedicated minis-
try of Controller Jim Forsyth and his staff who duti-
fully [ook after the benefits, compensation, and per-
sonnel issues of our varied diocese. Joan Jacobson
of Mercer Health and Benefits continues to guide
our committee through the complexity of issues. Fi-
nally, thanks to the committee (Christopher Butler,
Joan Clerk, Sarah Crawford, Jim Forsyth, David Law-
son, Thomas Matthews, Holly. McAlpen, and Jean-
nieThomas) who graciously volunteer their time and
truly understand their work as ministry.

Faithfully submitted,
(The Reverend) Bruce D. O'Neill, Chair
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The School for Deacons

The School for Deacons is a distinctive institution of
theological education and formation for servant min-
istry and leadership for deacons. The form and con-
tent of the program, its clarity about diakonia in and
for the 21 st church and world and its standards of ex-
cellence mean that dioceses in the United States and
Canada continue to look to the school as normative
formation. Even if they do not have the resources to
emulate the entire institution, they still are inspired
by the balance of the curriculum and that everything
is distinctively diaconal.

In addition to our regular program, the school con-
tinues to work closely with the Center for Anglican.
Leadership and Life (CALL) at CDSP and the North
American Association for the Diaconate (NAAD) to
take the lead in creating and offering online cours-
es and other experiences specifically targeted to the
ongoing learning (aka continuing education). needs
of deacons.

In May of this year we graduated six students. One
has been ordained to serve in the Diocese of EI Cami-
no Real. Two will serve in the Diocese of Northern
California. One is ordained and the other will be
soon. The remaining three will serve the Diocese of
California. Two will be ordained in December. One
will soon be a Candidate.

This fall we welcomed a diverse class of seven stu-
dents with one additional student, educated else-
where, enrolled for a special year of formation. Four
students, including the special one-year student,
come from the Diocese of California. One is from
the Diocese of EI Camino Real. The most interesting
addition to our community is that, for the first time,
we have two students from the Diocese of Nevada.
They, with the second-year student from San Diego,
show that The School for Deacons can be a resource
for other ProvinceVlll dioceses. In addition, three di-
oceses across the church have enrolled their incom-
ing classes in the dean's online course, "The Diacon-
ate." The board of trustees of the school welcomed
its new Chair, Bishop Marc, to his first annual meet-
ing last fall.

Given the needs of the world and the number of re-
questsfrom congregations to have a deacon assigned,
we can say we have a deacon shortage in this dio-
cese. With every incoming class, the attrition occa-
sioned by life circumstance and the demands of the
school experience, continues to make recruitment a
concern and a focus for the school. We would hope

to see. incoming classes twice the size we have seen
in the past decade. We do want the diocese to know
that we have plenty of room for all those, as yet to be
discerned, deacons lurking in your congregations.
They just need your help in claiming their call—and
we stand ready to give it shape and substance.

As with every congregation and diocesan institution,
funding is an ongoing challenge. We seek to keep
tuition as low as possible so as to exclude no one
from becoming the deacon they are called to be. In
addition to the critical support provided by the dio-
cese, we are blessed by the support we receive from
congregations and the stalwart band of 'friends` of
the school.

If any one reading this report has any questions,
concerns, or curiosities—about the school, the dia-
conate, some subtle sense of calling of their own—
please contact us. We'd love to talk with you.

Respectfully submitted,
Roderick B. Dugliss, PhD, Dean

Department of World Mission

Global Mission work continues to expand in the Di-
ocese of California. We are connected with multiple
countries and a great variety of projects. We provide
a presence and support for "so many in need" and in
"so many different ways."

Presently, we continue our ongoing Mission work in
Nicaragua, Honduras, Uganda and Liberia. We pro-
vide support for international students who attend
the Church Divinity School of the Pacific. Mr. Mi-
chael Tedrick spent a year as a volunteer for Mission
in the Diocese of Jerusalem. The Rev. Tracy Longacre
is presently working in Cameroon for several orga-
nizations.

The Diocese of California through the Department
of World Mission is a member of the Global Epis-
copal Mission Network (GEM). We support GEM
through annual dues. Several members of the De-
partment attend the GEM Annual Meeting and Insti-
tute every year. Each year there are excellent speak-
ers and workshops. GEM offers a certificate program
for World Mission Agents. Three members of the De-
partment have completed this course.

In August we co-sponsored a very successful Sabeel
(People of the Way) conference in Berkeley. Many
members of the diocese attended. Sabeel is an in-
ternational peace movement initiated by Palestinian
Christians in the Holy Land.
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This year we collaborated with the Companion Dio-
cese Initiative Committee by editing and producing
the surveys of Global Mission Connections with in
the Diocese of California. The report is a celebra-
tion of these connections and will be available to
Convention delegates. Reports will also be found on
the Department of World Mission display table along
with a special multi-colored MDG Cross and World
poster that highlights the links in global outreach in
the diocese.

Members of the Department meet five times yearly
to hear speakers and receive updates on Global Mis-
sion activity. We are responsible for appropriate des-
ignation of funds from the operating budget of the di-
ocese and from the Birthday Offering donations from
diocese congregations.

Members of The Department of World Mission
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APPENDIX G

The Episcopal Diocese of California

Institutions

Bay Area Seafarers' Service

The Bishop's Ranch

Canterbury Foundations

Clausen House

Episcopal Charities

Episcopal Community Services of San Francisco

Episcopal Homes Foundation

Good Samaritan Family Resource Center

Ohlhoff Recovery Programs

Saint Dorothy's Rest

The Episcopal School for Deacons

Chartered Organizations

An Episcopal Ministry to Convalescent Hospitals

OASIS/California

SOJOURN —San Francisco General Hospital Chaplaincy
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Clergy of the Church Canonically Resident
in the Diocese Of California
as of December 31, 2007

APPENDIX H-1

Abernethy-Deppe David June 2 2007 California
Abidari Mehrdad December 15 2005 Texas
Adams Robert O. January 13 1971 San Joaquin
Adolphson Donald June 25 1983 California
Andersen Francis Ian September 3 1990 Brisbane, Australia
Andrus Marc Handley July 22 2006 Alabama
Archer John R. Apri125 1989 Washington
Artress Lauren September 3 1986 New York
Atwood Mary Hill June 28 1980 California
Bachmann Douglas P. March 11 2002 Minnesota
Backlund Michael Anders March 24 1988 El Camino Real
Bailey Anne Cox June 2 2001 California
Bailey Brian R. June 26 1971 California
Baird Lynn Mroczkowski November 20 1999 California
Baker, Jr. John T. June 13 1968 Northern California
Barlowe Michael L. January 1 2002 Iowa
Barnes Brian December 2 2006 California
Barnett Becca F. December 5 1991 Rochester
Bayne Bruce G. C. April 1 1993 Massachusetts
Bender-Breck Barbara McGill June 5 1993 California
Benesh Jimi W. Brown December 7 2002 California
Bennett JoAnne December 1 2001 California
Berey Edward J. September 24 1962 Olympia
Bergmans Susan E. June 28 1975 California
Bernal Jose Juan June 5 2004 California
Bess, Jr: Walter B. June 19 1982 California
Bettinger Robert L. October t 2 1977 Rhode Island
Bidwell-Waite Davidson December 1 2007 California
Billington James H. April 7 2000 New York
.Bingham Patricia M. July 10 1990 Minnesota
Bingham Sally Grover. June 7 1997 California
Blair Alexander February 28 1986 Rio Grande
Blasdell Machrina L. July 1 1988 Virginia
Bliss John D. C. March 18 1992 San Joaquin
Blodgett Jeremy September 1 2002 Northern California
Bolton Carolyn'M. December 3 2005 California
Bonting Sjoerd L. June 7 1990 El Camino Real
Bowdish Lynn E. June 24 1978 California
Bowen Carol Staley December 5 1998 California
Bradford Kathleen Diane Ross June 5 1999 California
Bright John Adams October 11 1983 Hawaii
Brindley Thomas April 1 1994 Texas
Britton Joseph Harp January 10 1994 Colorado
Brochard Philip T. June 7 2003 California
Brogan. Margaret June 4 1994 California
Brown David F. June 6 1979 PB's List
Brown Donald G. December 1 2007 Northern California
Brown James T. November 7 . 1972 California
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Brown John P. September 6 1966 New Hampshire
Bryan Nancy H. December 3 2005 California
Burke Sean Dennis June 3 2006 California
Burrows Paul A. February 19 2001 Washington
Bushee Grant. S. June 1 2002 California
Butcher John B. November 1 1968 Arizona
Campbell Linda August 25 2004 Northern California
Cantor Este Gardner June 4 2005 California
Carey , Amos C. February 1 1967 Texas
Carter Bente Alyss December 5 1992 California
Carter C. Elton September 26 1983 Michigan
Casillas Laida Wood December 7 1996 California
Caughey Robert G. November 28 1973 California
Cazden Jan Steward December 7 1991 California
Champion Peter O. September 5 2007 Hawaii
Champion Susan February 5 2007 Hawai i
Chichester Helon L. June 24 1972- California
Ching Winston W. July 1 1970 Hawaii
Christoffersen Timothy R. June 2 2001 California
Clark C. Robbins Apri120 1993 Rio Grande
Cleland Carol E. N. December 7 1991 California
Coats John R. August 4 1978 Texas
Cogswell Colby A. June 23 1963 California
Colbourne Albert December 10 1969 Northern California
Conger John P. May 11 1994 California
Cook Carol Lee December 8 1990 California
Cosby Arlinda W. June 20 1979 California
Costas Catherine S. December 4 2004 California
Countryman L. William March 18 1.988 Southern Ohio
Coxhead Stuart P. September 1 1980 Southern Ohio
Cram, Jr. Norman L. June 26 2003 Northern California
Cranston Pamela Lee June 3 1989 California
.Crary Kathleen M. December 1 2001 California
Craun Christopher Brooke June 3 2006 .California
Cromey Robert W. March 19 1962- New York
Croom James June 2 2001 California
Culmer Ronald Douglas January 3 2006 Los Angeles
Cummings Patricia L. September 15 1980 California
Curry Dorothy R. November 22 -1981 California
Davis Esther June 3 1967 California
Davis Sarah Ann December 6 1997 California
Dawson Barbara August 18 2005 Utah
Debenham M. Warren June 29 1958 California
DeCoss Donald A. December 24 1960 California
Deeths Margaret E. December 6 2003 California
Del Castillo Gloria Rosa June 6 1998 California
Denman Scott L. April 11 1997 Massachusetts
DeRuff Elizabeth Anslow June 5 1999 California
Dillon Tommy Joe May 8 2006 Louisiana
Dobbin Robert. December 2 2006 California
Doggett William Jordan December 2 1995 California
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Donahoe Melanie Sue February 7 2006 El Camino Real
Donnelly Jeffrey Joseph June 3 2006 California
Droste Robert E. December 19 2000 Oregon
Duckworth Penelope July 29 2005 El Camino Real
Dumke Edward J: September 6 1978. Northern California
Duncan Stacy Williams Apri120 2000 West Missouri
Dunkel Lisa Marie December 6 1997 California
Dunlop Judith G. December 8 1990 California
Eastwood, Jr. ~ John H. March 22 1985 Indianapolis
Ekstrom Ellen L. December 7 2002 California
Erhard Michael E. C. December 7 1985 California
Eswein Nancy Gordon June 4 1994 California
Eunson .Lisa Kei December 1 2001 California
Evans Amber Stancliffe March 26 2007 Missouri
Evans Paul December 7 1968 Western New York
Fabian Richard G. July 22 1976. Dallas
Fay William M. January 25 2007 San Joaquin
Fellows Jessica Hansen June 3 2000 California
Fenton Fred November 1 2005 Louisiana
Fineanganofo Sosaia September 2 1993 Polynesia
Fisher Donald M. .December 1 2001 California
Fitterer John A. December 7 1981 Massachusetts
Rlexer Katharine January 15 2002 Olympia
Foote .Beth September 18 2007 California
Forbes David R. June 28 1953 California
Ford Richard B. June 1 S 1957 Washington
Fotch, Jr. Charlton Harvey October 20 1994 Southwest Florida
Fowler Richard P. November 30 1962- Pennsylvania
Fox Donald A. October 16 1973 Olympia
Fox Matthew Timothy December 3 1994 California
Fredericks John R., January 4 1957 Nevada
Fromberg ..Paul D. May 17 2004 Texas
Gaines Mary Moore June 3 1989 California
Galicia Kathryn K. June 3 2006 California
Gallagher John M. June_ 20 1965 California
Gallagher Mary Ellen Turner June 4 1994 California
Gardner John Gordon August 7 1990 Newark
Geisler William F. June 22 1968 California
George Susanne December 2 2006 California
Gibbs Charles P. September 7 1988 Minnesota
Gieselmann Robert K. November 1 2005 Easton
Glass Vanessa Stickler June 2 2001 California
Golenski John D. June 7 2003 California
Gompertz _Charles B. June 24 1962 California
Gordon David W. September 1 1963 Oregon
Goss, III James Paul June 7 1997 California
Gracely Carl B. July 8 1974 New Jersey
Graham Julie Ann July 10 1991 Rio Grande
Gray Victoria December 2 2006 California
Greeley Horace June 3 2006. California
Green David E. December 31 1969 California
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Green Tamara M. June 7 1986 California
Greene Margaret Catharine June 1 2002 California
Greene .Timothy December 5 1992 California
Greenwell Gail Elizabeth January 23 2002 Oregon
Gregg Robert C. November 11 1988 North Carolina
Griesel Bernard F. July 11 1968 Oregon
Grossman Stacey June 1 1996 California
Grotzinger Terri Ann September 6 1994 Montana
Hammond D. Murray January 1 1957 Los Angeles
Hansen Beth Arnold December 5 1987 California
Hansen Michael K. August 10 1987 Minnesota
Harden (Jones) Rosa Lee November 6 2000 Mississippi
Hardin Hugh F. December 22 1966 California
Harrigfeld Christopher Louis June 3 2000 California
Hartquist Connie C. June 25 1979 California
Hassett Stephen June 3 2006 California
Hayashi Scott B. September 8 1998 Utah
Heard Frederick W. March 11 2004 Oregon
Heglund Janice N. - June 4 .1994 California
Helmer Richard E. December 17 2002 West Missouri
Henderson Mark William June 3 2000 California
Heron Marsha S. December 7 2002 California
Herrera Martin Juarez December 6 2003 California
Herth Daniel E. June 25 1983 California
Hess Richard W. November 30 1989 Southeast Florida
Higgins ... Pamela Kay .June. 8 1.991. California  
Hill Barbara Jeanne June 6 1992 California
Hill, SSF Jude June 3 2006 California
Hintz Mary Louise June 3 1995 California
Hobbs Edward C. November 27 1959 California
Hoche-Mong Raymond March 27 1991 El Camino Real
Hocker William T. June 3 2006 California
Holder Arthur G. August 20 1986 Western NC
Holland Janet M. June 1 2005 Los Angeles
Holly Donald W. June 21 1959 California
Holt Joseph Holt June 14 1994 Dallas
Honeychurch J. Robert September 1 2001 Idaho
Honodel Jill May 17 2004 Northern California
Hornbeck Jennifer M. June 2 2001 California
Hoy G. Lois Pinneo June 26 1976 California
Huggard Linda June 2 2007 California
Hunter Lawrence S. February 15 2005 Los Angeles
Jamison Dorothy L. June 9 1990_ California
Jang T. Vincent December 4 2004 California
Jenevein Richard G. June 28 1953 California
Jensen Anne H. September 10 2007 Connecticut
Jensen Julia K. June 1 2002 California
Jizmagian Mary D. G. June 8 1985 California
Johnson Ida Louise May 11 2006 North Carolina
Johnson Jay E. February 7 2006 Chicago
Johnson Rudolph January 14 1981 California

DioCal 004585



APPENDIX H-5

Jones Alan W. September 17 1985 New York
Jones Derek L. December 14 1993 Minnesota
Jones Dorothy Kovacs December 8 1990 California
Jones James B. June 21 1964 California
Jones Vern E. July 25 1977 Oklahoma
Kater, Jr. John L. July 9 1997 Panama
Kerr Richard S. February 14 1983 Colorado
Kertland Gail Ellen December 5 1998 California
Keyser Henry G. December 28 1999 Hawaii
Kidd Robert M. June 25 1961 California
Kieschnick Frances Hall June 8 1987 Los Angeles
King Kenneth June 4 2005 California .
King-Smith, SSF Robert Hugh December 5 1980 Durham, England
Kinney Eugenia Wood October 22 1992 Colorado
Kinsey Theron H. December 28 1969 California
Kirkley John L. June 1 2002 California
Knight Hollinshead March 31 1995 Hawaii .
Knight Theolinda L. J. June 8 1991 California
Kossler Robert J. December 6 2003 California
Kuhlmann Martha C. June 1 2002 California
Kuschel Roberta D. May 24 1990 Hawaii
Kwan Franco C. February 24 1999 Long Island
Lam Connie Miu-sheung Ng June 3 2006 California
Landers Kay Marie June 7 1997 California
Lane Joseph Andrew June 3 1995 California
Lange-Soto Anna B. March 1 2000 El Camino Real
Larrimore Sloane (Chip) Barker June 3 1995 California
Larson, Jr. L. John October 3 1990 Arizona
Lau Gordon October 8 1985 Olympia
Lawrence Amy June 4 1994 California
Lawson Peter R. September 25 1980 Indianapolis
Lehman Katherine June 19 1982 California
Licari Luigi December 7 1996 California
Lieb James Marcus December 3 1988 California
Lindeman Eileen Ethel November 7 2007 San Diego
Lindeman Mitchell James September 6 2006 San Diego
Linn David N. June 28 1969 California
Littlefield Jeffrey B. June 13 2005 Olympia
Longacre Tracey E. December 4 2004 California
Lui David S. June 7 2003 California
Luther Carol MacMeeken June 5 1999 California
Lyman J. Rebecca June 5 1993 California
MacKenzie Vincent Victor December 4 1993 California
Maitrejean J. Patrick July 16 ]982 Colombia, S.A.
Manley Wendy Taylor July 1 1998 Michigan .
Manson Malcolm. H. March 27 1991 Oregon
Mapplebeckpalmer Richard W. June 1 1988 Oxford, England
Marin Mario R. December 6 1997 California
Marin Nora December 6 1997 California .
Martin Christopher H. August 18 2005 Los Angeles
Maxwell Kevin Burns December 8 1990 California
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McAdams Kathleen A. December 2 2000 California
McBride Ronald June 2 1988 Taiwan
McCann Robert E. October 24 1976 California
McDermott Matthew J. P. June 6 1987 California
McDougle Jane M. A. Lune 4 2005 California
McIlroy Ellen L. June 24 1972 California
McKeefry-Delmas Halley L. January 22 2001 Long Island
McKnight James F. June 5 1999 California
McMahon, Jr. Charles W. February 27 1989 Michigan
McManus Mary Christie December 7 1996 California
McSpadden Christine October 26 2001 New York
Merrell Robin Nikolaus September 21 1969 Colorado
Millard G. Richard November 25 1951 Connecticut
Miller Donald S. January 1 1986 Los Angeles
Mitchell Timothy J. June 1 2002 California
Moore Robert B. October 1 1992 El Camino Real
Morehouse Rebecca A. December 4 2004 California
Morlan Lynette K. June 5 2004 California
Morris Clayton L. November 28 1973 Oregon
Murdock Thomas September 1 1984 Oregon
Nefstead Eric M. June 1 2002 California
Nelson Leilani Lucas December 2 1989 California
Nern, Jr. William B. June 26 1971 California
Nesbitt Paula June 12 2006 Colorado
Newnam Elizabeth Ann August 5 1996 Northwest Texas
Newton Louis K. February 14 2001 Chelmsford, England
Nipps Leslie March 15 2001 Ohio
Oakes Elizabeth H. August 18 1994 Michigan
Oda-Burns John M. April 1 1967 Nassau
Oldham Robinett Lynn Margaret December 5 1998 California
Olmedo-Jaquenod Nina June 21 2007 Chicago
O'Neill Bruce Douglas June 4 1994 California
Osgood Thomas M. October 1 1978 Olympia
Ost Gary W.D. February 5 1982 Olympia
Ota David Y. August 14 1997 Hawaii
Parab Elizabeth Ann March 26 2007 El Camino Real
Parkin Jason Lloyd August 6 2000 Iowa
Parris Kenneth Wayne December 2 1995 California
Parsons Susan D. June 5 2004 California
Partanen Robert Carl June 3 2006 California
Pennekamp-Cumming Nancy December 2 2006 California
Perry Charles Austin October 15 1990 Washington
Peterson Richard T. February 19 1992 EI Camino Real
Phelps Walter E. June 21 1959 California
Phillips John B. June 26 1971 California
Pickerrell Nina Lynette June 1 1996 California
Pifke Lauran K. June 3 2006 California
Pope Kristin July 27 2004 El Camino Real
Porter John Harvey December 3 2005 California
Powell Everett December 1 2001 California
Powell John L. January 18 1953 Los Angeles
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Powell Kenneth J. December 1 2007 California
Pummill Joseph H. August 29 1983 Hawaii
Putnam Kevin T. November 1 2005 Southwestern Virginia
Quinn Marjory K. June 24 1972 California
Racusin Michele May 10 2005 San Joaquin
Ramirez S. Ivan May 10 1992 Virginia
Ramsden Charles L. July 27 2004 Bethlehem
Rankin William W. December 4 1997 Massachusetts
Rankin-Williams. Christopher June 12 2003 Los Angeles
Rawlinson John E. June 23 1973 California
Ray Harvey H. April 1 1981 North Carolina
Reichert Elaine Gilmer . December 11 L982 California
Reynolds Robert E. February 13 1989 Oregon
Rhodes Erroll F. W. June 8 1979 PB's List
Richardson W. Mark November 1 1992 New York
Rickey David Bruce December 23 1997 Newark
Riedell William G. September 24 1991. Colorado
Ring Bonnie December 7 1991 California
Roberson Whitney Wherrett December 6 1997 California
Rosen Elisabeth Payne June 4 1994 California
Ross David J. December 7 2002 California
Ross George C. L. September 5 1978 San Diego
Ross Patricia January 28 1998 Northern California
Rosso Tricia December 6 2003 California
Rountree Philip L. November 1 1982 Los Angeles
Rutherford R. Calvert January 1 ,1979 California
Ruyak Mark October 2 2006 Bethlehem
Salinaro Katherine E. M. December 7 1985 California
Sanders .Joanne Marie June 3 2000 California
Sandrock Hans E. December 5 1992 California
Saunders Ferdinand January 21 1966 Los Angeles
Schanhaar John R, December 15 1980 California
Schaper. Richard L. December 7 2002 California
Schell Donald J. June 30 1980 Idaho
Schell Peter Saint Gregory June 3 2006 California
Schmidt Kenneth L. December 21 1988 Pennsylvania
Schoenbrun Zoila C. December 7 1985 California
Schooler William Thomas December 3 1988_ California
Schultz Thomas Haines October 30 1998 Pittsburgh
Shaon Gerald Eugene December 3 1994 California
Sheetz David Allan June 3 1995 California
Shippen Sallie E. January 21 1993 Oregon
Silbaugh Morgan C. January 1 1990 - Central New York
Simons Daniel August 25 2004 Massachusetts
Sims Gregory M. June 1 1962 Los Angeles
Sinclair Scott G. June 26 1976 California
Singer Susan Jane December 8 1990 California
Sisson Duane Lynn June 3 1989 California
Skillings Thomas Benton June 3 1989 California
Smith Ann-Lining January 6 1980 California
Smith Bruce R. June 28 1980 California
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Smith Charming R. June 16 1997 Southern Ohio
Smith Richard L. June Z 2001 California
Smith Samuel E. June 24 1962 California
Southworth Richard L. September 1 1983 Navajoland
Sox H. David May 14 1979 PB's List
Spaulding Mark Alan June 9 1990 California
Stacy Clarence H. December 24 1957 California
Staley John H. October 16 1981 Los Angeles
Staller Margaretmary B. December 7 1985 California
Stanger Mark Edward June 6 1992 California
Starr David H., III June 4 2005 California
Stech Eugene A. June 6 1966 Newark
Sterling Franklin M. December 1 2007 California
Stickney James R. June 19 1982 California
Strane Steven R. June 13 1988 San Diego
Strid Paul Eric December 2 1989 California
Sturgess Amber Dee October 22 2007 Northwest Texas
Sutton John Davies June 3 1995 California
Swanson Karen S. May 17 1999 ' Hawaii
Swanson Richard A. May 12 1987 Northern California
Sweeney Sylvia October 29 _2001 Idaho
Sweet Fran McIver September 22 2000 El Camino Real
Swing William E. September 1 1979 Washington
Switz Robert June 5 1981 Southeast Florida
Taylor Charles W. March 26 1981 Washington
Taylor Marylou December 7 1985 California
Thompson Edward E. July 10 1997 Michigan
Thompson Roderick James August 13 1999 Rochester
Thompson Susan M. Apri129 2003 El Camino Real
Thunemann Paul B. June 19 1966 California
Toepfer Laura K. August 14 2003- Ohio
Tolley John C. April 12 1981 California
Tornquist Frances Cromwell June 3 1989 California
Torres Javier June 26 2007 Ecuador Central
Towers Arlen April 19 1977 West Texas
Toy Fran Yee June 9 1984 California
Trafton Clark W. July 31 1987 New York
Tramel James R. July 4 2004 California
Trapani Kathleen Marie December 2 2000 California
Traylor Thomas W. December 6 2003 California
Trutner Thomas K. June 19 1982 California
Turner Maurice January 1 1979 Massachusetts
Turney Anthony Brian June i 1996 California
Vaggione Richard June 1 1970 California
Van Sickle Kathleen J. June 27 1988 Northern California
van Waes Bernard C. October 19 2004 Northwest Texas
Vasquez Martha Sylvia April 30 2007 New York
Vettel-Becker Richard September 2 2003 Montana
Wagner Sharon LaVonne December 3 1988 California
Walker-Sprague Patricia September 19 2005 Olympia
Wall Anne Fuller June 3 2000 California
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Walters Roxanne Smith December 7 1985 California
Walters Sumner F. December 24 1980 Olympia
Walton Lori Ann June 5 2004 California
Waples Jan Susan February 5 2002 Iowa
Ward James S. June 24 1974 California
Ward Katherine Lydia June 4 1994 California
Warren Douglas G. August 1 1986 Arizona
Watan Jay Sapaen June 3 2006 California
Watson Chester F. February 16 1980 California
Weaver John J. June 14 1966 Michigan
Weicker Harold H. June 28 1993 California
Weil Louis July 14 ~ 1988 Chicago
Werner-Hall Judith B. June 2 2001 California
West Jan Hickman June 3 1989 California
Wheeler , Diana December 6 2003 California
Wicher, Jr. Edward A. June I 1981 San Joaquin
Wilkins Palmer O.. November 23 1977 California
Williams Christina H. E. December 7 2002 California
Williams Monrelle Theophilus April 3 2007 Barbados
Willis Ronnie W. June 1 2002 California
Wilmington Richard N. November 4 1966 New York
Wong Salying March 15 2006 Colorado
Wood Linda A. November 5 2003 El Camino Real
Woodroffe Eleanor T. November 5 1986 Pennsylvania
Yao Ting Chang. September 19 1966 California
Yeoman, III Eric B. December 24 1961 California
Young Malcolm G. May 3 1995 Northern California

-Young Shari Maruska May 9 1989 Los Angeles
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